
REGULAR MEETING 
MAYOR & BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

AGENDA 

Monday, June 8, 2020 
7:00 P.M. 

The June 8, 2020 meeting of the Mayor and Board of Trustees will be broadcast live on Cable 
Channels 6 and 99 beginning at 7 PM.  Consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order #2020-
07, public comments for this meeting may be provided via email or phone. 
Public comments will be taken in advance of the meeting via email at BRMeetings@burr- 
ridge.gov.  E-mailed public comments should identify whether the comment is intended to 
address a specific agenda item (please identify the agenda item) or is intended for general public 
comment under Section 9 of this Agenda.  Email comments for an agenda item will be read into 
the record during consideration of said item.  Other email comments will be read into the record 
under Section 9 of this Agenda.  
Public comments may also be made during the meeting by calling  (630) 850-7222.  Prior to 
voting on each agenda item, the Mayor will pause to receive telephone call comments.  The 
same procedure will be followed for any person seeking to address the Board on any other item 
of concern under Section 9 Public Comments. Each speaker addressing the Board of Trustees 
is asked to limit comments to five minutes. 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. ROLL CALL

3. PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

4. CONSENT AGENDA – OMNIBUS VOTE

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the Village Board and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
Board member or citizen so request, in which event the item will be removed from the
Consent Agenda, discussed by the Board, opened for public comment, and voted upon
during this meeting.

5. MINUTES

A. *  Approval of Regular Board Meeting of May 26, 2020

B. *  Receive and File Plan Commission Meeting of June 1, 2020



 
 

6. ORDINANCES 

A. Consideration of an Ordinance Granting an Amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-
452-03-94 to Permit an Addition to an Existing Building to Accommodate a Birthing 
Center (Z-07-2020: 7000 County Line Road - Weigand)  

B. Consideration of an Ordinance Granting a Variation as Per the Village of Burr 
Ridge Sign Ordinance for Approval of Changed Sign Copy for Three Ground Signs 
at 7000-7020 County Line Road (S-02-2020; 7000 County Line Road - Weigand)  
 

C. *  Approval of an Ordinance Authorizing the Sale by Online Auction of  Personal 
Property Owned by the Village of Burr Ridge (Public Works Vehicles) 

7. RESOLUTIONS 

A. *  Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Subaward Agreement Between the Village 
of Burr Ridge and the County of Cook for Burr Ridge Village Hall Security Upgrades 
(Grant Contract #769-2019-10663-20236054a)  

B. *  Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Subaward Agreement Between the Village 
of Burr Ridge and the County of Cook for Water Distribution Security Upgrades 
(Grant Contract #769-2019-10663-20236054b) 

C. *  Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Subaward Agreement Between the Village 
of Burr Ridge and the County of Cook for Water Transmission Main Inter-
Connection (Grant Contract #769-2019-10663-20236054c) 

8. CONSIDERATIONS 

A. Discussion and Update Regarding Village Response to COVID 19 – Including 
Outdoor Dining at Burr Ridge Restaurants   
 

B. *  Approval of Recommendation to Authorize Payment of Annual Fee for the 
Vigilant LEARN Database in the Amount of $5,000 

C. *  Approval of Request from DuPage Senior Citizens Council for Annual Donation 
to Provide Support and Services to Burr Ridge DuPage County Residents 

D. *  Approval of Vendor List Dated June 8, 2020, in the Amount of $189,424.20 for 
all Funds, plus $210,758.88 for Payroll for the Period Ending May 30, 2020, for a 
Grand Total of $400,183.08 Which Includes Special Expenditures of_$22,700 to 
Clark Environmental for Mosquito Abatement for May and June 2020 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

10. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



- 1 - June 4, 2020 

TO: Mayor and Board of Trustees 

FROM: Village Administrator Doug Pollock and Staff 

SUBJECT: Regular Meeting of June 8, 2020 

DATE: June 4, 2020 

6. ORDINANCES

A. Amend Oak Grove PUD to Permit Addition to Building

Please find attached an Ordinance granting an amendment to the Oak Grove
PUD permitting an addition to a commercial building at 7000 County Line
Road. Please also find a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of the PUD amendment.

The petitioner is attempting to open a birthing center at the subject property,
which was approved as a special use in 2019. The petitioner is attempting to
build an addition to the existing commercial building at the subject property,
which was formerly occupied by MB Financial Bank. In summary terms, the
existing building has three drive-thru lanes under a canopy; the addition would
wall in the canopy area and provide additional indoor space for the use. The
Plan Commission added a condition that the petitioner add a thin brick fascia
around the central band of the building to help elaborate the existing façade
throughout the property, but otherwise concluded that the request for the PUD
amendment was appropriate and fit the character of the neighborhood. No
residents objected to the petition. The recommendation was made subject to
the site plans and elevations otherwise provided by the petitioner.

Under normal procedures, the Board would direct staff to prepare an
Ordinance for final approval at its next meeting if approval of the PUD
amendment was desired; however, in light of the petitioner’s need to begin
necessary construction on the business in the most time-efficient manner
possible, staff requests immediate consideration of approval of an Ordinance
at this time.  Please note that there were no public objections to this request,
and the Commission unanimously recommended approval.

It is our recommendation: That the Ordinance be approved.

B. Sign Variation at 7000 County Line Road

Please find attached an Ordinance granting a sign variation to change sign
copy at 7000 County Line Road. Please also find a letter from the Plan
Commission recommending approval of the variation.

The purpose of the variation is to change existing sign copy at the subject
property; the Oak Grove PUD is unique in that three commercial buildings are



 - 2 - June 4, 2020 

located on a single lot of record, therefore all three commercial buildings must 
be regulated as if there was one building on the subject property. Petitions for 
variations to change of sign copy have been approved at the subject property 
multiple times in the past.  
 
Under normal procedures, the Board would direct staff to prepare an 
Ordinance for final approval at its next meeting if approval of the sign variation 
was desired; however, in light of the petitioner’s need to begin necessary 
construction on the business in the most time-efficient manner possible, staff 
requests immediate consideration of approval of an Ordinance at this time. 
Please note that there were no public objections to this request and the 
Commission unanimously recommended approval. 
 
It is our recommendation: That the Ordinance be approved.  

 
C. Authorize Sale by Online Auction of Property (Public Works Vehicles) 

 
The Village of Burr Ridge customarily disposes its surplus vehicles and 
equipment by auction to minimize costs in marketing the sale of items while 
maximizing revenue in their salvage value. The Department of Public Works 
often uses and rotates obsolete Police Department vehicles to save the Village 
equipment replacement fund, and now has two such vehicles along with one 
obsolete pickup truck as surplus. Therefore, the Department proposes to sell 
the vehicles using GovDeals.com, an on-line auction service exclusively for 
offerings of government agencies. The Village has used this site successfully 
in past auctions. Selling through this on-line auction incurs no cost to the 
Village, since the buyer pays the fees as part of a purchase. 
 
The following are recommended for sale on the on-line auction: 
 

I.D./SERIAL NUMBER YEAR/ MAKE/ MODEL MIN.VALUE 
1FTNX21L1YEB05621 2000 Ford F250 SD 4X4 

Pickup truck with plow 
$2,500 

   
2FAFP71W51X190677 2001 Ford Crown Victoria   

Police Interceptor 
$1,200 

   
1FMPU16536LA93482 2006 Ford Expedition $2,500 

 
It is our recommendation: That the ordinance permitting the sale of 
surplus vehicles be approved.  
 



 - 3 - June 4, 2020 

7. RESOLUTIONS 
 

A-C Agreements with Cook County for Security Initiative Grant Projects 
 

Three (3) separate Resolutions would approve the corresponding subaward 
agreements for grant funds administered by Cook County.  These grants were 
awarded to the Village in 2019 by the Cook County Department of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management through the Federal Urban Area 
Security Initiative.  In total, this program awarded the Village over $117,000 for 
these three (3) projects: 
 

• Village Hall Security Upgrades including key-card doors and locks 
• Water Distribution Security Upgrades including fencing at the Pump Center 
• Water Transmission Main Inter-Connection with Justice-Willow Springs 

Water Commission 
 
Police and Public Works staff joined efforts in these successful grant 
applications in May 2019.  The grants are unrelated to COVID-19 or other 
current emergencies, but support projects that provide security and resiliency 
to critical components of the Village’s infrastructure. 

 
It is our recommendation: That the Village Board adopt the three 
resolutions approving subagreements between the Village and the Cook 
County for UASI grant-funded projects. 

 
8. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

A. COVID 19 and Outdoor Dining Update 

As of Thursday, June 4, the outdoor dining tent sites across Burr Ridge have 
been operating for seven days. Opening night, May 29, was met with strong 
attendance at all participating establishments, with overwhelming compliments 
given by patrons about the quality and size of the eating areas, especially at 
Capri, Patti’s, and Eddie Merlot’s. Almost all restaurants reported higher per 
capita revenue at outdoor seating areas compared to indoor; for example, 
Patti’s Café reported that per capita revenue was 20% higher in the tent than 
indoors compared to the previous years’ May/June. At least three restaurants 
reported over 400% increases in revenue from May 29-June 4 compared to 
the carryout-online format from the previous week of May 22-28, while two 
reported large increases in their catering business due to marketing exposure 
brought by the tents. Falco’s Pizza reported that the addition of the outdoor 
dining tent on their property has increased sales by 30%, returning their top-
line revenue to within a margin of error of normal May/June levels. Falco’s has 
also stated that the response to expanded outdoor dining has prompted them 
to move forward with investment in an outdoor patio due to the positive 
customer response. These increases are partially driven due to the ability to 
more easily offer alcohol with food sales, where margins are significantly 
higher than food. All restaurants are optimistic that interest in outdoor dining 



 - 4 - June 4, 2020 

will increase over time due to increased comfort levels and education about 
new dining procedures. In addition to restaurant use, CycleBar has also begun 
to use the Food Court in the mornings to provide outdoor spin classes, which 
has been well received by existing members and has allowed the business to 
add 10 new members in the first week. 
 
Since the tents were opened on May 29, additional ramps were installed at 
Capri and the Food Court to eliminate trip hazards while additional traffic 
control devices were placed at almost all sites to provide further protection for 
diners. Finally, after a request was made by Amore Yoga and The Henn House 
for a tent, staff worked with the Village’s tent vendor to provide the two 
businesses with a shared tent at no cost to either the businesses or Village. 
To optimize program value, staff is removing the tent at Village Center Green, 
which was generally unused over the past week despite initial interest from 
Topaz. The rented tables and chairs that are presently in this tent are being 
moved to Wok ‘n Fire, who while not having a tent, still reported a significant 
increase in sales and requested additional seating capacity from the Village. 
The owner of Wok ‘n Fire has declined the placement of a tent outside of the 
restaurant due a number of poles and signs in the immediate vicinity blocking 
where tables may otherwise be placed. The removal of the Village Center 
Green tent will save approximately $3,000, while the Village remains on 
budget for its five-week programmatic budget of $115,000. To ensure that 
restaurants are adhering to all safety guidelines, staff has begun to meet with 
restaurants on an every-other-day basis to answer questions and assist with 
other logistical needs.  
 
Staff will continue to provide updates to the Board regarding the outdoor dining 
program at all future meetings.  
 

B. Annual Fee for Vigilant LEARN Database 

The annual subscription to the Vigilant LEARN Database provides police 
personnel with unlimited access to the data analytics of the License Plate 
Recognition (LPR) cameras in-use on two Burr Ridge police vehicles. The 
database also provides valuable LPR data captured throughout the United 
States, which is very valuable in criminal investigations. The annual 
subscription cost is $5,000. 
 
It is our recommendation: That payment of the annual subscription be 
approved.  

C. DuPage Senior Citizens Council Annual Donation  

Attached is a letter from Marylin Krolak, Executive Director of the DuPage 
Senior Citizens Council, requesting the annual contribution to help offset the 
costs of providing services to Burr Ridge residents in DuPage County.  The 
amount of $2,436 has been budgeted for this donation.  



 - 5 - June 4, 2020 

It is our recommendation: That the request for a donation by the 
DuPage County Senior Citizens Council in the amount of $2,436 be approved.  
 

D. Vendor List of June 8, 2020  
Attached is the vendor list dated June 8, 2020 in the amount of $189,424.20 
for all funds, plus $210,758.88 for payroll for the period ending May 30, 2020, 
for a grand total of $400,183.08, which includes special expenditures of 
$22,700 to Clarke Environmental for mosquito abatement for May and June 
2020.   

It is our recommendation: That the June 8, 2020 vendor list be 
approved. 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS 



11448 

REGULAR MEETING 
MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MAY 26, 2020 

CALL TO ORDER The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of May 26, 2020, 
was held and called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Gary Grasso.  Due to the Covid-19 Coronavirus 
pandemic and the Governor’s stay-at-home Order, this meeting was held via internet and telephone 
consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order #2020-07. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Gary Grasso. 

ROLL CALL  was taken by the Village Clerk and the results denoted the following present 
via video Zoom Meeting:  Trustees Paveza, Snyder, Mital, Schiappa, Franzese and Mayor Grasso. 
Trustee Mottl was present telephonically. Also present via video Zoom Meeting:  Village 
Administrator Doug Pollock, Assistant Village Administrator Evan Walter, Finance Director Jerry 
Sapp, Assistant Finance Director Amy Nelson, Director of Public Works Dave Preissig, Deputy Chief 
Marc Loftus, Village Clerk Karen Thomas and Village Attorney Mike Durkin.   

PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS   There were none. 

Mayor Grasso asked if anyone wanted anything removed from the Consent Agenda.  There were no 
requests to remove any items from the Consent Agenda.  

CONSENT AGENDA – OMNIBUS VOTE After reading the Consent Agenda by Mayor 
Gary Grasso, motion was made by Trustee Schiappa and seconded by Trustee Mital that the Consent 
Agenda – Omnibus Vote (attached as Exhibit A) and the recommendations indicated for each 
respective item, be hereby approved.  Any item removed from the Consent Agenda, will be discussed 
by the Board, opened for public comment, and voted upon during this meeting. 

Trustee Mottl called a Point of Order and asked whether Trustee Franzese was in the meeting or not. 

Mayor Grasso agreed and it was verified that Trustee Franzese was in the meeting and could hear 
everything. 

On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 – Trustees Schiappa, Mital, Franzese, Paveza, Snyder, 
NAYS : 1 – Trustee Mottl 
ABSENT:  0 – None 
There being five affirmative votes the motion carried. 

Mayor Grasso added that he wanted the record to show that the Consent Agenda included approval 
of the purchase of ammunition for the police department. 

5A



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11449 

APPROVAL OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES OF MAY 11, 2020  were approved 
for publication, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote. 
 
ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION GRANTING AN EXTENSION FOR COMPLETION OF 
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS FOR FALLINGWATER FIRST ADDITION 
SUBDIVISION  the Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, Adopted the Resolution. 
THIS IS RESOLUTION NO. R-15-20 
 
APPROVAL OF PURCHASE OF AMMUNITION FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
FROM KIESLER POLICE SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,995  the Board, under the 
Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, Approved the Purchase. 
 
APPROVAL OF VENDOR LIST DATED MAY 26, 2020 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $289,583.22 FOR ALL FUNDS, WHICH INCLUDES NO SPECIAL 
EXPENDITURES  the Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote Approved the Vendor 
List for the Period ending May 26, 2020 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 
APPROVAL OF VENDOR LIST DATED MAY 26, 2020 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021, IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $108,747.56 FOR ALL FUNDS, PLUS $201,905.62 FOR PAYROLL FOR 
THE PERIOD ENDING MAY 16, 2020, FOR A GRAND TOTAL OF $310,653.18, WHICH 
INCLUDES NO SPECIAL EXPENDITURES  the Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus 
Vote Approved the Vendor List for the Period ending May 26, 2020 for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 plus 
Payroll for the Period Ending May 16, 2020. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION RECOGNIZING 
RETIREMENT AFTER 41 YEARS OF DEDICATED SERVICE TO THE VILLAGE OF 
BURR RIDGE – KAREN THOMAS    Mayor Grasso read the Resolution 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Schiappa and seconded by Trustee Snyder to Adopt the Resolution. 
 
Trustee Mottl said that usually after the motion and second there is opportunity for comment and then 
a call for a vote.  Mayor Grasso replied not for this type of resolution but stated Trustee Mottl could 
speak. 
 
Trustee Mottl thanked the Mayor for the opportunity to speak and said he felt this was an example of 
why we needed term limits.  For this reason and others, he felt Ms. Thomas had served too long and 
planned to vote no on the Resolution. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 – Trustees Schiappa, Snyder, Mital, Franzese, Paveza  
NAYS : 1 – Trustee Mottl 
ABSENT:  0 – None 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11450 

There being five affirmative votes the motion carried. 
THIS IS RESOLUTION R-16-20 
 
Mayor Grasso extended his sincere congratulations to Village Clerk Thomas  He added that he was 
humbled to be the Mayor and to be able to read this  resolution to such a qualified, dedicated, public 
servant as she has been.  Ms. Thomas has set such an excellent example for how public service is 
achieved in the Village of Burr Ridge.  Mayor Grasso gave his sincere personal gratitude as the Mayor 
and on behalf of all the residents of the Village of Burr Ridge. 
 
Village Administrator Doug Pollock stated that after working with Ms. Thomas for nearly 25 years 
he wanted to thank her publicly as a colleague and as a friend for all these years.  He added that no 
one has contributed more to our attitude and culture of service as she has.  She has been a friend and 
mentor to many people at the Village Hall and other departments throughout the Village. 
 
Trustee Paveza added that Ms. Thomas has done a tremendous job as Village Clerk stating that they 
have rarely had to adjust or change the minutes that she provides for us.   
 
Trustee Mital said that Ms. Thomas does a great job and that she will really miss her. 
 
Trustee Schiappa wanted to thank Ms. Thomas for her service of 40 years. He added that she held 
this position because of her competence and her willingness to give herself to this town.  He 
appreciated her dedication to our Village.  
 
Trustee Franzese stated that when he served as Interim Village President, Ms. Thomas was very 
organized, thorough and efficient.  He stated that in all the years he had known her, he has always 
been impressed with her level of integrity.  He wished her the best of luck on her future endeavors. 
 
Trustee Snyder stated that it has been an honor and a pleasure working with Ms. Thomas.  She has 
made his job easier by explaining what a Trustee should and should not do. He asked if it would be 
possible to place a commemorative plaque at the front counter in her honor. 
 
In response, Mayor Grasso said that would be a very nice gesture and said that they would look into 
doing that. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked if any other Staff member would like to make a comment. 
 
Finance Director Jerry Sapp wanted to second all the comments made by Village Administrator 
Pollock.  He added that after all the years he has worked with her he refers to her as our “Beloved 
Village Clerk” and wished Ms. Thomas good luck. 
 
 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11451 

DISCUSSION AND UPDATE REGARDING VILLAGE RESPONSE TO COVID 19 AND 
GOVERNOR’S RESTORE ILLINOIS PLAN 
 
CONSIDERATION OF PROVIDING OUTDOOR SEATING FACILITIES IN DOWNTOWN 
BURR RIDGE Village Administrator Doug Pollock stated that at the last meeting they had 
discussed the status of the Governor’s Restore Illinois plan and the Village of Burr Ridge and DuPage 
County’s response to it.  Since then we have learned that we will be moving to Phase 3 of the 
Governor’s plan this Friday.  On May 20, the Governor announced that he would allow for outdoor 
dining for any region that goes into Phase 3.  With that in mind, Assistant Village Administrator Evan 
Walter and Management Analyst Andrez Beltran put together a plan to accommodate additional 
outdoor dining for our restaurants for the Board’s consideration. 
 
Mr. Walter stated that the outdoor dining plan involves two items.  First is the policy document stating 
what the Village will be permitting on a temporary basis in regards to outdoor dining.  The second 
document is a pricing and layout strategy that we have established with a tent company.  The general 
premise of the plan is to establish seven tent sites around downtown Burr Ridge.  These sites will be 
for outdoor dining.  They are located in strategic areas that we have identified and will included 
moorings, gutters, table and chairs, lighting and fans. 
 
Mr. Walter added that Falco’s Pizza on Rt. 83 wanted to participate in this program if possible.  
Adding the cost of an additional tent for Falco’s, the not to exceed price is $115,000 for a five-week 
rental of eight tents.  This would go from May 29 thru July 3 with a weekly extension price of $7,000 
a week beyond July 3. 
 
Trustee Paveza asked if any Hotel/Motel funds could be used.  Mayor Grasso added that was a 
possibility and was confident they would be able to fund it in some combination of resources available 
to the Village. 
 
Mr. Pollock stated that it is very likely that the funds would have to come out of our General Fund 
Reserves.  He said that staff would research whether hotel taxes could be used or if the cost would be 
covered by CARES funding.  Mr. Pollock advised the Board that they should assume the worst case 
scenario that we have to use General Fund Reserves.  He added that staff views this as an investment 
to our restaurant industry in town.  Some of the money will come back to us in sales tax and place of 
eating tax and may save some restaurants from going out of business. 
 
Trustee Mital liked the idea but wanted to know who bears the liability if someone were to get hurt. 
Mr. Pollock stated that for the tent areas, we would require a hold harmless agreement be signed by 
the restaurants indicating that the Village is an additional insured and that we are held harmless to 
any liability.  She also asked if the restaurant would be contributing to any of the costs incurred.   
 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11452 

Mayor Grasso stated that they had debated that and felt the restaurants are already stretched for 
money.  Even though we do not share in the profits of these restaurants, we do profit from them being 
part of our community.  Ultimately, it will be up to the Board to decide. 
  
In response to Trustee Mital’s question why some restaurants were not included, Mr. Walter advised 
that both Coopers Hawk and the Hampton Social were waiting to open their entire chain at once.  
Topaz and Wok N Fire have a large amount of outdoor space that they can access without a tent.  
 
Trustee Mottl wanted to know how much money we had already given to the restaurants.  Mr. Walter 
advised that they had given 6 to 7 restaurants $7,500 each.  Trustee Mottl wanted to know how much 
place of eating tax we bring in each year. Finance Director Jerry Sapp advised that it was 
approximately $400,000 a year.  In response to Trustee Mottl’s questions on why the businesses are 
not getting other federal assistance, Mayor Grasso stated that not all are eligible for federal funds.  He 
went on to say he did not know what programs that the businesses may be taking advantage of but 
felt that this is something the Village can do for them and a good use of our money. 
 
Trustee Mottl asked if Staff knew if other Villages were doing things like this.  He added he would 
be in favor of closing off streets or giving zoning variances for tents but giving away money without 
any strings attached makes him uncomfortable. 
 
Trustee Snyder wanted to know how much money the Village received from capital funding from the 
state.  Mr. Pollock stated that they received $115,000 through the Rebuild Illinois capital fund and 
expect to receive 5 similar payments over the next 3 years.  He added that this money can only be 
used for capital and could not be used for this type of program. 
 
Discussion continued about getting the restaurants to contribute toward the costs of the tents.  Trustee 
Mital suggested that we could go ahead with a two-week plan and then review everything at our next 
meeting in June.  Both Trustees Franzese and Snyder supported the plan as an investment in our 
restaurants. 
 
Trustee Mottl questioned how we had money for this program and yet two months ago, we did not 
have money for the police pension fund and we needed home rule to solve that.  In response, Mayor 
Grasso stated that they were looking at the long-term stability of the pension and that was not in the 
same category as this one time funding. 
 
Trustee Schiappa agreed that the restaurants need the help now and we have the ability to do that.   
However, he believes that it should be communicated to them that we are willing to help them out 
now but would be looking for something in return to help with the costs later on. 
 
Mayor Grasso commented that he believes all the restaurants understand that.  If we lose a business, 
it is not a guarantee that we will fill that business space.  It is not that easy to replace them.   We need 
to keep that in mind when we are trying to keep the good businesses that we already have.  



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11453 

Trustee Mottl believes that businesses come here because it makes good business sense.  They will 
not stay here because of charity and handouts that the Village gives them.  If their business is viable, 
they should be willing to invest, if not, charity from the Village will not make a difference. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Snyder and seconded by Trustee Schiappa to approve the program as 
proposed with a review at the June 8 meeting. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked if there was any other discussion.  There was none. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Village Administrator Pollock if anyone from the public had called or emailed 
comments.  Mr. Pollock stated there was none. 
 
Village Attorney Mike Durkin asked Mr. Pollock to make sure that the contracts would have the 
option to cancel after June 8 or on a week-to-week basis. 
 
Trustee Snyder amended the motion and Trustee Schiappa agreed to include the verification of the 
option to cancel the contracts on a week-to-week basis. 
 
On Roll Call, Vote Was: 
AYES:  5 – Trustees Snyder, Schiappa, Franzese, Paveza, Mital  
NAYS : 1 – Trustee Mottl 
ABSENT:  0 – None 
There being five affirmative votes the motion carried. 
 
DISCUSSION AND UPDATE REGARDING FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET 
 
Village Administrator Doug Pollock stated that they did not have a lot of data at this time but wanted 
to give a monthly update on the budget.  Mr. Pollock asked Finance Director Jerry Sapp and Assistant 
Finance Director Amy Nelson to give the update. 
 
Mr. Sapp started by going over the timing of the revenue coming in and explained how they have a 
lag time of one to a three month in receiving them.  At this time, we are projecting a $336,730 shortfall 
for the fiscal year 19-20 with March and April having the biggest impact from COVID-19 on it.   Ms. 
Nelson highlighted certain funds such as the Hotel/Motel, Places of Eating and the Motor Fuel Tax, 
which all came in a little higher than the reductions they had predicted.   She advised that they should 
be getting in the March sales tax figures sometime in June and would have them available for the 
June 22 meeting. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked if any of the Trustees had any questions.  There was none. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Village Administrator Pollock if anyone from the public had called or emailed 
comments.   There was none. 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11454 

Trustee Mottl called a Point of Order on the public comments.  He stated that he was getting many 
comments from the public that the link they have is so far behind that when we call for public 
comments they have to wait 5-6 minutes to participate.  Brad Miller from Orbis IT Support advised 
that is a function of YouTube and the Zoom connection to it.  He added that we do not have any 
control over it.   
 
Because of the delay, Mayor Grasso instructed Mr. Pollock to interrupt the meeting if anyone did call 
in with a comment. There was also concerns over residents having the wrong number to call in on.  
After checking with others who had used the same number, it was decided that it was the correct 
number. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked that the public continue to try to call in and that they will put them on as soon 
as they do. 
 
DISCUSSION OF VILLAGE CLERK VACANCY 
 
Village Administrator Doug Pollock stated that there was no action needed to be taken by the Board 
tonight.  As mentioned earlier, Village Clerk Karen Thomas will be retiring at the end of the week, 
leaving the position vacant.  Assistant Village Manager Evan Walter has been designated Deputy 
Village Clerk and along with Staff will assume the responsibilities of the Village Clerk until a new 
clerk is appointed or elected in next year’s election.  
 
Mayor Grasso pointed out that they would have to go through a referendum in order to have the 
Village Clerk changed to an appointed position.  Discussion went on over which option may be better 
and it was decided that waiting for a new election would be best. 
 
Mr. Miller from Orbis IT Support mentioned that he had someone on the line that may want to speak.  
Ellen Raymond was on the line and stated she had had problems calling in earlier. She wanted to 
compliment Village Clerk Karen Thomas for helping the residents and that she had been a huge help 
to her in researching documents stored by the village.  She also thanked the Trustees for their fiscal 
responsibility and accountability. 
 
Upon being asked, Mr. Miller explained the process for calling in for those having problems. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Mr. Miller if anyone else from the public had called in.   There was none. 
 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11455 

REQUEST FOR ADDRESS CONFIRMATION FOR ALL ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
Mayor Grasso stated that at the recommendation of counsel this was put on the agenda.  He stated 
that he directed the Village Clerk to verify the addresses of all the elected officials and she did not 
have a definitive address for Trustee Mottl.  He has been told that Trustee Mottl’s unit was 
unoccupied, for sale, that a moving van had been seen there and a report showed no water usage.  
Mayor Grasso added that he had received an email from a news reporter today that was sent to the 
reporter from Trustee Mottl, which stated, “Once I close I will provide the Village with my address”. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Trustee Mottl if that was his position.  Trustee Mottl responded with the 
question, “Mayor, did you commit property tax fraud and claim two primary residences?”  Mayor 
Grasso asked if Trustee Mottl was going to state his address or not. 
 
Trustee Mottl then asked the Mayor where his primary residence was and the Mayor responded with 
his address.  Trustee Mottl responded by making two more personal accusations toward Mayor Grasso 
presented in the form of questions.  At this point, Trustee Schiappa called a Point of Order to censure 
Trustee Mottl.  Trustee Franzese suggested that Trustee Mottl be expelled from the meeting. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Village Attorney Mike Durkin what the procedure was to expel a trustee.  Mr. 
Durkin stated that the trustee would have had to commit disorderly conduct or violated the rules of 
conduct.  He reminded everyone in attendance that there has been a questioned put forward regarding 
the residency of all trustees and elected officials.  He stated that everyone has responded and there 
has been information regarding Trustee Mottl’s residence and that it may have been sold. 
 
Trustee Mottl stated that his home had not sold and that he was disturbed about the amount of time 
spent on this issue.  He added that it is the Mayors attempt to harass, intimidate, silence, threaten and 
remove him because he was a political opponent. He stated that he lives at the same address that he 
always has. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked that the record show that Trustee Mottl would not provide his address.  At this 
point, Trustee Mottl interrupted with another personal accusation/question for the Mayor.  Mayor 
Grasso suggested that they table this request and give Trustee Mottl time to close on his home and 
then provide the Village with his address.    
 
Motion was made by Trustee Schiappa and seconded by Trustee Paveza to table this item. 
 
Motion was approved by a voice vote with Trustee Mottl voting no. 
 
Trustee Franzese called a Point of Order and asked the Village Attorney if Trustee Mottl was allowed 
to vote on this.  Mr. Durkin added that even though you should not vote when you have an interest in 
the matter, Robert Rules of Order does not prohibit or bar him from voting.  Mr. Durkin added since 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11456 

we were taking a vote by acclamation the motion passed without the need to record the number of 
votes. 
  
DISCUSSION OF RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT FOR DESIGN ENGINEERING AND PLAN PREPARATION OF THE ELM 
STREET CULVERT REPLACEMENT PROJECT TO HAMPTON, LENZINI AND 
RENWICK, INC. OF WOODRIDGE, ILLINOIS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$51,320   Public Works Director David Preissig gave a brief summary on the Elm Street Culvert 
Replacement Project. The project kicked off in January 2020 with an anticipated summer of 2020 
construction date.   The engineers prepared their report and summarized their findings to be presented 
to the Stormwater Committee meeting in May.  Unfortunately, the committee was not able to meet 
so they were asked to review and comment. 
 
Tonight, Mr. Preissig added, the Board needs to choose a preferred option.  The engineers have 
determined that a single cell box culvert is more appropriate than what exists today.  He reviewed the 
different options for the Board and stated they each offered benefits.   He advised the engineers are 
ready to start Phase 2, which is the detailed design engineering, and plan preparation phase, which 
will cost $51,320.   The revised FY20-21 budget does include the engineering cost for this project. 
 
Mayor Grasso advised that they had gotten some responses from a few residents.  One of the residents 
sent him an email today asking for this to be continued until the residents could be heard.  He asked 
if there would be any issues if this decision were delayed for a couple of meetings.  Mr. Preissig stated 
no as they were now anticipating a 2021 summer construction date. 
 
The Trustees discussed the different options and agreed to table the decision until residents input can 
be heard.  Mayor Grasso added that he would like the residents to meet with Mr. Preissig before a 
decision is made.   Mayor Grasso also mentioned that since it is by Elm School that he may reach out 
to the school and see if there is any grants that they could apply for. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Franzese and seconded by Trustee Mital to continue this item until the 
June 22 meeting. 
 
Motion was approved by unanimous voice vote.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS Mayor Grasso asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Village Administrator Doug Pollock advised that he did have an email from a resident regarding the 
Elm Street culvert project and that the email was sent to all of the Trustees.  Mayor Grasso said it was 
 not necessary to read into the record at this time because all of the Trustees received the email and 
the item was tabled as requested by the resident.  He said that the email will be made part of the record 
when this is considered.  
 



Regular Meeting 
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge 
May 26, 2020 
 

11457 

Resident Richard Morton wanted to make a brief comment on helping the restaurants.  He thought 
that trying to recover some costs from the restaurants was poorly considered.  
 
He also wanted to talk about Village Clerk Karen Thomas and the resolution that was approved 
earlier.   Mr. Morton added that whenever he had a question or concern, she was always very 
responsive.  He stated that she was also very helpful in arranging for their HOA meetings.  He wanted 
to congratulate her on her success and hope she enjoys her life’s next chapter. 
 
Mayor Grasso asked Village Administrator Pollock if anyone from the public had called or emailed 
comments.   There was none. 
 
REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS 
 
Trustee Mital reported there was a 74% response rate on the Census.  She asked that everyone spread 
the word to participate in the Census.  
 
Mayor Grasso asked if there was any way to tell us what areas were responding well or which were 
not so that we may be able to campaign in the areas that are not.  Trustee Mital did not know and said 
she would look into that for the next meeting. 
 
Mayor Grasso advised that the Village would be going into Phase 3 this Friday, May 29.  He asked 
everyone to come out and support our businesses. 
 
In closing, Mayor Grasso stated that Trustee Mottl continues to attack people personally including 
himself and his family even though he knows he has no basis for it.  He added that it comes with the 
job, which is unfortunate. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Franzese and Seconded by Trustee Snyder that the Regular Meeting of 
May 26, 2020 be adjourned.  
 
The Motion was approved by a unanimous voice vote of the Board of Trustees and the meeting was 
adjourned at 9:02 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary or discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects 
that no discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item. 
 
_____________________________________ 
Karen J. Thomas 
Village Clerk 
Burr Ridge, Illinois 
 
APPROVED BY the President and Board of Trustees this ______ day of ____________, 2020. 



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2020 

I. ROLL CALL

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 
7:00 p.m. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois by 
Chairman Trzupek. Due to the State’s Declaration of Emergency, this meeting was held via web 
conferencing system consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order #2020-07.  

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:  

PRESENT: 7 – Broline, Petrich, Farrell, Hoch, Irwin, Parrella, and Trzupek 
ABSENT 1 – Stratis  

Assistant Village Administrator Evan Walter was also present. 

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

Commissioner Petrich requested that several clarifications be made regarding his affirmative vote 
on Z-01-2020, specifically related to the use of the 200-person meeting space at King-Bruwaert.  

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Petrich and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
approve the minutes of the April 20, 2020 Plan Commission meeting accepting Commissioner 
Petrich’s amendments.   

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:  

AYES:  7 – Petrich, Irwin, Farrell, Hoch, Broline, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Chairman Trzupek conducted the swearing in of all those wishing to speak during the public 
hearing on the agenda for the meeting.  

Z-07-2020: 7000 County Line Road (Wiegand); PUD Amendment and Findings of Fact

Chairman Trzupek requested an overview of the petition. Mr. Walter said that the petitioner is 
Laura Weigand on behalf of Birth Partners, Inc., a Birthing Center at 7000 County Line Road. The 
petitioner requests an amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-452-03-94 to permit an addition to an 
existing building to accommodate a birthing center at the subject property. The aforementioned 

5B



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting 

ordinance created the Oak Grove PUD as is presently constituted; the proposed addition thus 
requires an amendment to the PUD.  
 
Mr. Walter said that the petitioner is proposing to expand the existing 3,000-square foot building 
at the subject property to create a 5900-square foot building solely housing the use that was 
approved in 2019. In general, the expansion would remove the existing drive-thru canopy stalls on 
the building and enclose said area. The proposed addition would result in the west eaves being in 
the same location of the current drive-thru canopy; the proposed addition otherwise complies with 
all required setbacks in the B-1 Business District. The proposed addition also meets the Floor Area 
Ratio Requirements of 40% in this zoning district (8.5%) as well as the maximum height 
requirements of 35 feet. No parking would be eliminated by the addition, while a one-way drive 
aisle would be maintained to allow for patient access, etc. to the building. Additional impervious 
surface would not be added to the site, thus necessitating no alterations to the development’s 
stormwater capacity. No dedicated emergency access areas would be constructed by the proposed 
additions.  
 
Commissioner Petrich asked for clarification regarding the entrance doors on the subject building. 
Nathan Elliot, the architect for the petitioner, stated that doors would not be altered in location.  
 
Chairman Trzupek asked if the building addition’s façade would be constructed using EIFS. Mr. 
Elliot confirmed that EIFS would be used to create the stone and masonry reliefs. Chairman 
Trzupek asked if EIFS was a prohibited material. Mr. Walter said that EIFS was a “discouraged” 
material according to the Zoning Ordinance. Chairman Trzupek said that he understood the need 
to contain costs, but was not in favor of the entire elevation being made by EIFS. Chairman 
Trzupek said he supported the concept of adding a thin brick fascia around a designated band of 
the building addition at window level to break up the material. The Plan Commission supported 
this suggestion. Mr. Elliot and Ms. Wiegand said that this change was acceptable. Chairman 
Trzupek also requested that the petitioner add landscaping around the building where impervious 
areas were to be removed.  
 
At 7:32pm, a MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner 
Irwin to close the public hearing.   
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Hoch, Irwin, Broline, Farrell, Petrich, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner Irwin to 
recommend approval of an amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-452-03-94 to permit an addition to 
an existing building to accommodate a birthing center at 7000 County Line Road, subject to all 
plans submitted by the petitioner as well as under the condition that a thin brick fascia be added 
around the entirety of the building’s window-level elevations. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Hoch, Irwin, Farrell, Petrich, Broline, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 
IV.  CORRESPONDENCE  
 
V. OTHER PETITIONS 
 
S-02-2020:  7000 County Line Road (Wiegand); Sign Variation and Findings of Fact 
 
Chairman Trzupek requested an overview of the petition. Mr. Walter said that the petitioner is 
Laura Weigand on behalf of Birth Partners, Inc., a Birthing Center at 7000 County Line Road. The 
petitioner requests an amendment to a previous variation to change the copy on three existing 
ground signs located on a lot of record at 7000-7020 County Line at Oak Grove PUD. No 
additional signage is being added to the subject property; this variation is solely related to design 
elements of three specific and existing ground signs. As the existing signs were permitted by a 
variation that was made subject to the design of the existing signs, the petitioner requires a 
variation to change the copy on the existing monuments.   
 
Mr. Walter said that the building at 7000 County Line Road is part of the same lot of record as two 
other parcels with free-standing buildings: Cadence Preschool (7010 County Line Road) and 
Busey Bank (7020 County Line Road). These three parcels comprise the Oak Grove subdivision, 
which was built in 1993. Under the Sign Ordinance, each lot of record in the Village is permitted 
to have 100 square feet of signage. The amount of signage on this lot is unusual due to there being 
three principal, separately owned buildings on separate parcels on one lot of record. There are four 
existing ground signs and a wall sign in Oak Grove totaling 460 total square feet in size. The 
existing signs include one ground sign for Birth Partners, Inc., two ground signs at Busey Bank 
(including a directory ground sign), and one existing ground sign at Cadence. Aside from their 
requiring approval to change the sign copy at a PUD, the proposed sign elevations met all 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance. 
 
No discussion was held on this petition otherwise.  
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Farrell and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
recommend approval of a variation to change the copy on three existing ground signs located on a 
lot of record at 7000-7020 County Line at Oak Grove PUD. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Farrell, Petrich, Hoch, Irwin, Broline, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes 
June 1, 2020 Regular Meeting 

 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 
VII. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Farrell and SECONDED by Commissioner Petrich to 
cancel the June 15, 2020 meeting due to a lack of business.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:   
 
AYES:  7 – Farrell, Petrich, Hoch, Irwin, Broline, Parrella, and Trzupek 
NAYS: 0 – None 
 
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 7-0. 
 
The next scheduled Plan Commission meeting is July 6, 2020.  
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
A MOTION was made by Commissioner Farrell and SECONDED by Commissioner Broline to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:42p.m.  ALL MEMBERS VOTING AYE, the meeting was adjourned 
at 7:42p.m. 
 
Respectfully 
Submitted:  

  

 Evan Walter, Assistant Village Administrator  
 



ORDINANCE NO. A-452-__-20 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING AN AMENDMENT TO PUD ORDINANCE #A-452-03-
94 TO PERMIT AN ADDITION TO AN EXISTING BUILDING TO 

ACCOMMODATE A BIRTHING CENTER  

(Z-07-2020: 7000 County Line Road - Wiegand) 

 WHEREAS, an application for a PUD amendment for certain 

real estate has been filed with the Assistant Village 

Administrator of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage 

Counties, Illinois, and said application has been referred to 

the Plan Commission of said Village and has been processed in 

accordance with the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, said Plan Commission of this Village held a public 

hearing on the question of granting said PUD amendment on June 

1, 2020, at the Burr Ridge Village Hall, at which time all 

persons desiring to be heard were given the opportunity to be 

heard; and 

 WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was 

provided for said public hearing not more than 30 nor less than 

15 days prior to said public hearing by publication in The Doings 

Weekly, a newspaper of general circulation in this Village, there 

being no newspaper published in this Village; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission has made 

its report on the request for the PUD amendment, including its 

findings and recommendations, to this Mayor and Board of 

6A



 

 
  

Trustees, and this Mayor and Board of Trustees has duly 

considered said report, findings, and recommendations. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1:  All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public 

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference. This Mayor and 

Board of Trustees find that the granting of the PUD amendment 

indicated herein is in the public good and in the best interests 

of the Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent 

with and fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge Zoning 

Ordinance as set forth in Section II thereof. 

 Section 2:  That this Mayor and Board of Trustees, after 

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the 

Plan Commission and other matters properly before it, in addition 

to the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as follows: 

A. That the Petitioner for the PUD amendment for the 
property located at 7000 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, 
Illinois, is Laura Wiegand (hereinafter "Petitioner"). 
The Petitioner requests an amendment to PUD Ordinance 
#A-452-03-94 to permit an addition to an existing 
building to accommodate a birthing center at the 
subject property.  

B. That the amendment will not detract from the public 
health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

C. That the amendment will not adversely impact any 
adjacent properties. 

D. That the amendment will allow the petitioner to bring 
a necessary service to the residents of the Village. 



 

 
  

E. That the site plan of the property is adequate for the 
use. 
 

F. That adequate traffic facilities are present on or 
adjacent to the property. 
 

G. That the use is not contrary to the objectives of the 
Official Comprehensive Plan. 
 

H. That the amendment will otherwise conform to the 
applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
 Section 3:  That the amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-452-03-

94 to permit an addition to an existing building to accommodate 

a birthing center is hereby granted for the property commonly 

known as 7000 County Line Road and identified by the Permanent 

Real Estate Index Number of: 09-24-404-002; 09-24-404-004; 09-

24-404-005. 

 Section 4:   That approval of the PUD amendment shall be 

subject to the submitted elevations and site plans found in 

Exhibit A, as well as subject to the condition that a thin brick 

fascia be added around the entirety of the building’s window-

level elevations.  

 Section 5: That this Ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication 

as required by law.  The Deputy Village Clerk is hereby directed 

and ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

 

 

 



 

 
  

 PASSED this 8th day of June, 2020, by the Corporate 

Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES:   
 
NAYS:    
 
ABSENT:  
  
   

 APPROVED by the Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge on this 

8th day of June, 2020. 

 

 

  

 Mayor 

ATTEST:  

  

     Deputy Village Clerk  
 



VILLAGE OF

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE
7660 County Line Rd. * Burr Ridge, IL 60527

(630)654-8181 a Fax (630) 654-8269 s www.burr-ridge.gov

Gary Grasso

Mayor

Karen J. Thomas

Village Clerk

J. Douglas Polloclc

Village Administrator

June 3,2020

Mayor Gary Grasso and Board ofTmstees

7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: Z-Q7-2020:7000 County Line Road (Wiesand); PUD Amendment and Findinss of Fact

Dear Mayor and Board ofTmstees:

The Plan Commission transmits its recommendation to approve a request by Laura Wiegand for

an amendment to PUD Ordinance ^A-452-03-94 to permit an addition to an existing building to
accommodate a birthing center at 7000 County Line Road.

After due notice, as required by law, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on

June 1,2020. The petitioner is attempting to open a birthing center at the subj ect property, which
was approved as a special use in 2019. The petitioner is attempting to build an addition to the
existing commercial building at the subject property, which was formerly occupied by MB
Financial Bank. In summary terms, the existing building has three drive-thru lanes under a

canopy; the addition would wall in the canopy area and provide additional indoor space for the
use. The Plan Commission added a condition that the petitioner add a thin brick fascia around
the central band of the building to help elaborate the existing facade throughout the property, but
otherwise concluded that the request for the PUD amendment was appropriate and fit the
character of the neighborhood. No residents objected to the petition. The recommendation was

made subject to the site plans and elevations otherwise provided by the petitioner.

The Plan Commission, by a vote of 7 to 0, recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a

request by Laura Wiegand for an amendment to PUD Ordinance ^A-452-03-94 to permit an
addition to an existing building to accommodate a birthing center at 7000 County Line Road,

subject to all plans submitted by the petitioner as well as under the condition that a thin brick
fascia be added around the entirety of the building's window-level elevations.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Village of Burr Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals



 
Z-07-2020: 7000 County Line Road (Weigand); Requests an amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-
452-03-94 to permit an addition to an existing building to accommodate a birthing center at the 
subject property. 

HEARING: 
June 1, 2020 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Assistant Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER: 
Laura Weigand o/b/o 
Birth Partners, Inc. 
 
PETITIONER STATUS: 
Approved Tenant  
 
EXISTING ZONING: 
B-1 Business PUD 
 
LAND USE PLAN: 
Recommends Retail, Service, and 
Office Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Commercial Building 
 
SITE AREA: 
1.59 Acres 
 
SUBDIVISION: 
Oak Grove 
 
PARKING: 
25 Spaces  

 
 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
Z-07-2020: 7000 County Line Road (Wiegand); PUD Amendment and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The petitioner is Laura Weigand on behalf of Birth Partners, Inc., a Birthing Center at 7000 County 
Line Road. The petitioner requests an amendment to PUD Ordinance #A-452-03-94 to permit an 
addition to an existing building to accommodate a birthing center at the subject property. The 
aforementioned ordinance created the Oak Grove PUD as is presently constituted; the proposed 
addition thus requires an amendment to the PUD.  
The petitioner is proposing to expand the existing 3,000-square foot building at the subject 
property to create a 5900-square foot building solely housing the use that was approved in 2019. 
In general, the expansion would remove the existing drive-thru canopy stalls on the building and 
enclose said area. The proposed addition would result in the west eaves being in the same location 
of the current drive-thru canopy; the proposed addition otherwise complies with all required 
setbacks in the B-1 Business District. The proposed addition also meets the Floor Area Ratio 
Requirements of 40% in this zoning district (8.5%) as well as the maximum height requirements 
of 35 feet. No parking would be eliminated by the addition, while a one-way drive aisle would be 
maintained to allow for patient access, etc. to the building. Additional impervious surface would 
not be added to the site, thus necessitating no alterations to the development’s stormwater capacity. 
The elevations of the proposed addition would be masonry and stone reliefs to match the existing 
building’s elevations. No dedicated emergency access areas would be constructed by the proposed 
additions.  

Land Use and Site Analysis 
The subject property is 1.59 acres on a shared parcel with two other commercial buildings at the 
Oak Grove PUD. The subject property is bounded by O-2 Office uses to the west, a church zoned 
R-2B Residential to the north, and a mixture of residential and industrial uses to the east zoned R-
3 Residential, R-A Research Assembly, and L-I Light Industrial. The other tenants of the Oak 
Grove PUD include Cadence Preschool and Busey Bank. 

Public Hearing History 
In 2019, the Village approved a text amendment to add “Birthing Center” as a special use in the 
B-1 Business District and a special use to the petitioner to operate a Birthing Center as per the 
amended Zoning Ordinance.  
Several sign variations have been granted for the Oak Grove PUD, which is unusually limited in 
the number of signs permitted due to three buildings being located on a single parcel.  

Public Comment 
No public comment was received on this petition. 

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided Findings of Fact for the PUD Amendment. If the Plan Commission 
choses to recommend approval of a PUD Amendment to accommodate the proposed expansion, 
staff recommends that it be made subject to the petitioner’s submitted site plans.  

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 











ORDINANCE NO. A-923-__-20 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION AS PER  
THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE SIGN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF CHANGED 
SIGN COPY FOR THREE GROUND SIGNS AT 7000-7020 COUNTY LINE ROAD 

(S-02-2020: 7000 County Line Road – Wiegand) 

 WHEREAS, an application for a sign variation has been filed 

with the Assistant Village Administrator of the Village of Burr 

Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, Illinois, and said application 

has been referred to the Plan Commission of said Village and has 

been processed in accordance with the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance; 

and 

 WHEREAS, said Plan Commission of this Village considered the 

question of granting said sign variation on June 1, 2020, at the 

Burr Ridge Village Hall, at which time all persons desiring to be 

heard were given the opportunity to be heard; and 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission has made 

its report on the request for a sign variation, including its 

findings and recommendations, to this Mayor and Board of Trustees, 

and this Mayor and Board of Trustees has duly considered said 

report, findings, and recommendations. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1:  All Exhibits submitted at the aforesaid public 

hearing are hereby incorporated by reference.  This Mayor and Board 

6B



of Trustees find that the granting of the sign variation indicated 

herein is in the public good and in the best interests of the 

Village of Burr Ridge and its residents, is consistent with and 

fosters the purposes and spirit of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance 

as set forth in Article I thereof. 

 Section 2:  That this Mayor and Board of Trustees, after 

considering the report, findings, and recommendations of the Plan 

Commission and other matters properly before it, in addition to 

the findings set forth in Section 1, finds as follows:  

A. That the applicant for the sign variations for the 
property located at 7000 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, 
Illinois, is Laura Wiegand (hereinafter "Applicant"). 
The applicant requests a sign variation as to permit 
changed sign copy on three existing signs on the subject 
property.  

B. The proposed signs have simple design features and 
intends to act as part of a directory sign for businesses 
located at separate but jointly-owned properties. 

C. The variation is necessary due to the petitioner’s 
property having a large number of tenants.  

D. The proposed signs are intended to serve members of the 
public.  

E. The proposed signs will not be distracting from the 
character of the locality. 

 
 Section 3:  That sign variations from the Sign Ordinance are 

hereby granted for the property commonly known as 7000 County Line 

Road and subject to compliance with the submitted sign elevations 

attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 Section 4: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and 

effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication as 



required by law.  The Deputy Village Clerk is hereby directed and 

ordered to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form. 

 
PASSED this 8th day of June, 2020 by the Corporate Authorities of 

the Village of Burr Ridge on a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:    
 
NAYS:    
 
ABSENT:   
   

 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the Village of Burr Ridge on this  
 
8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 

  

 Mayor 

ATTEST:  

  

     Deputy Village Clerk  
  



VILLAGE OF

"^^W^Wf-'
"',.^^."'':^.''-'

A VERY SPECIAL PLACE
7660 County Line Rd. • Burr Ridge, IL 60527

(630)654-8181 • Fax (630) 654-8269 • www.burr-ridge.gov

Gary Grasso

Mayor

Karen J. Thomas

Village Clerk

J. Douglas Pollock

Village Administrator

June 3,2020

Mayor Gary Grasso and Board ofTmstees

7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: S-02-2020: 7000 County Line Road (Wiesand): Sisn Variation

Dear President and Board ofTmstees:

The Plan Commission transmits for your consideration its recommendation to approve a sign

variation to permit changes in sign copy on three existing signs on the property at 7000-7020
County Line Road.

The Plan Commission considered this request on June 1, 2020. The petitioner requested a
variation to change the copy of existing signs on the property. Several previous variations

permitted the construction of the subject signs, but a clause in the ordinance granting the variation

stated that it was granted subject to the exact design of the current signage, and thus an
amendment to the previous variation was required. The Plan Commission ultimately concluded

that the request was consistent with the needs of the property and would not deter from the

character of the property or neighborhood. No public comment was provided on this petition.

After due consideration, the Plan Commission, by vote of 7 to 0, recommends that the Board of

Trustees approve the changes in sign copy on three existing signs on the property at 7000-7020

County Line Road.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chaimian

Village of Burr Ridge
Plan Commission/Zonmg Board of Appeals



 
S-02-2020: 7000 County Line Road (Wiegand); Requests an amendment to a previous variation to 
change the copy on three previously permitted ground signs on the lot of record at 7000-7020 County 
Line Road. 

HEARING:  
June 1, 2020 
 
TO: 
Plan Commission 
Greg Trzupek, Chairman 
 
FROM:  
Evan Walter 
Assistant Village Administrator 
 
PETITIONER: 
Laura Wiegand 
 
PETITIONER STATUS: 
Approved Tenant 
 
EXISTING ZONING:  
B-1 Business PUD  
 
LAND USE PLAN:  
Recommends Retail, Service, and 
Office Uses 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
Commercial Building 
 
SITE AREA: 
1.59 Acres  
 
SUBDIVISION: 
Oak Grove 
 
PARKING: 
25 Spaces 

 
 

 

 

 



Staff Report and Summary 
S-02-2020:  7000 County Line Road (Wiegand); Variation and Findings of Fact 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The petitioner is Laura Wiegand, on behalf of Birth Partners, Inc., a Birthing Center at 7000 
County Line Road. The petitioner requests an amendment to a previous variation to change the 
copy on three existing ground signs located on a lot of record at 7000-7020 County Line at Oak 
Grove PUD. No additional signage is being added to the subject property; this variation is solely 
related to design elements of three specific and existing ground signs. As the existing signs were 
permitted by a variation that was made subject to the design of the existing signs, the petitioner 
requires a variation to change the copy on the existing monuments.   
The building at 7000 County Line Road is part of the same lot of record as two other parcels with 
free-standing buildings: Cadence Preschool (7010 County Line Road) and Busey Bank (7020 
County Line Road). These three parcels comprise the Oak Grove subdivision, which was built in 
1993. Under the Sign Ordinance, each lot of record in the Village is permitted to have 100 square 
feet of signage. The amount of signage on this lot is unusual due to there being three principal, 
separately-owned buildings on separate parcels on one lot of record. There are four existing ground 
signs and a wall sign in Oak Grove totaling 460 total square feet in size. The existing signs include 
one ground sign for Birth Partners, Inc., two ground signs at Busey Bank (including a directory 
ground sign), and one existing ground sign at Cadence. Aside from their requiring approval to 
change the sign copy at a PUD, the proposed sign elevations meet all requirements of the Sign 
Ordinance.  
Six previous petitions have been considered related to signs in the Oak Grove subdivision at 7000-
7020 County Line Road:  

1. 1993; two variations were approved to permit multiple ground signs at 7020 County Line 
Road, increasing the total amount of signage to 278 square feet.  

2. 1994; a variation was approved to permit an additional ground sign at 7000 County Line 
Road, increasing the total amount of signage to 351 square feet.  

3. 1997; a variation was approved to replace an existing ground sign with a larger sign, 
increasing the total amount of signage to 384 square feet.  

4. 2017; a variation was approved to permit an additional wall sign at 7020 County Line Road, 
increasing the total amount of signage to 428 square feet.  

5. 2018; a variation was approved to permit an additional ground sign at 7010 County Line 
Road, increasing the total amount of signage to 460 square feet.  

6. 2019; a variation was approved to amend the sign copy on three signs at 7000 County Line 
Road related to MB Financial Bank.  

Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
The petitioner has provided findings of fact which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in 
agreement with those findings. If the Plan Commission chooses to recommend approval of the 
variations, they should be approved subject to the site plan submitted by the petitioner. 

Appendix 
Exhibit A – Petitioner’s Materials 











ORDINANCE NO. ___-__-20 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE BY ONLINE AUCTION OF PERSONAL
PROPERTY OWNED BY THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 

(PUBLIC WORKS VEHICLES) 
 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of at least three-fourths of the 

Corporate Authorities of the Village of Burr Ridge, it is no longer 

necessary or useful to, or in the best interest of, the Village of 

Burr Ridge to retain ownership of the personal property hereinafter 

described; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge to dispose of said personal 

property through GovDeals, an on-line auction service exclusively 

serving government agencies used previously by the Village; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge, Cook and DuPage Counties, 

Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1:  Pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-76-4, the Mayor and 

Board of Trustees of the Village of Burr Ridge find that the 

following described property owned by the Village of Burr Ridge is 

no longer necessary or useful to the Village of Burr Ridge, and the 

best interests of the Village will be served by its sale: 

I.D./SERIAL NUMBER YEAR MAKE MODEL MIN.VALUE 

1FTNX21L1YEB05621 2000 FORD F250 SD 4X4 $2,500 

2FAFP71W51X190677 2001 FORD CROWN VICTORIA $1,200 

1FMPU16536LA93482 2006 FORD EXPEDITION $2,500 

6C



-2-

SECTION 2:  No bid which is less than the minimum price set 

forth in the list of property to be sold shall be accepted. 

SECTION 3:  Upon payment of the full auction price, the 

Village Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to convey 

and transfer title of the aforesaid personal property to the 

successful bidder. 

 SECTION 4:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

from and after its passage, by a vote of at least three-fourths of 

the Corporate Authorities, and approval in the manner provided by 

law. 

ADOPTED this 8th day of June, 2020 pursuant to a roll call vote 

as follows:   

AYES:   - 

NAYS:   - 

ABSENT:   - 

APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2020 by the Mayor of the Village 

of Burr Ridge. 

   Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

Deputy Village Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUBAWARD AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
OF BURR RIDGE AND THE COUNTY OF COOK FOR BURR RIDGE VILLAGE HALL

SECURITY UPGRADES (GRANT CONTRACT #769-2019-10663-20236054a) 

WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge (“Village”) and the County 
of Cook acting on behalf of the State of Illinois through the 
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“Cook 
County”), desire to enter into a Subaward Agreement (Exhibit A), 
pertaining to the award of certain Urban Area Security Initiative 
funds awarded to the Village to utilize for costs relating to 
planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercise needs to 
prevent, protect against, mitigate, respond to, and recover from 
acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events (“Eligible 
Costs”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the said Agreement Cook County shall 
provide an amount not to exceed $36,300.00 to the Village for said 
Eligible Costs; and  

WHEREAS, in order to receive such funds the Village will 
allocate an amount not greater than $8,700.00 of non-Federal funds 
towards the said Eligible Costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator and the Board of Trustees 
believe and hereby declare that it is in the best interest of the 
Village and its residents to approve said Agreement and shall 
allocate the amount not greater than $8,700.00 of non-Federal funds 
towards said Eligible Costs to receive said Funds; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

ADOPTED this 8th day of June, 2020, by a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT:  

APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2020, by the Mayor of the 

Village of Burr Ridge. 

    Mayor 
ATTEST: 

    Deputy Village Clerk

7A



Burr Ridge-20236054a-17UASICOOK - 
2019 Subrecipient Agreement 

2017 HSGP GRANT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMW-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

AWARDED 10/01/2017 

Page 1 of 29 

TONI PRECKWINKLE 
PRESIDENT 

Cook County Board 
of Commissioners

WILLIAM M. BARNES, Jr 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Department of Homeland Security 
and Emergency Management 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF COOK 
AND 

THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS 

THIS SUBAWARD AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the County of Cook 
(“County”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, acting through its Department of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“DHSEM”), and the Village of Burr Ridge, a 
municipal corporation in the State of Illinois, (“Subrecipient”), by and through its Village 
Administrator. 

 RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the U.S.  Department of Homeland Security (“DHS” or “Federal Awarding Agency”), 
through its Grant Programs Directorate (“GPD”) administers the Homeland Security Grant Program 
(“HSGP”), which includes the Urban Area Security Initiative (“UASI”) grant program. 

WHEREAS, DHS awarded the State of Illinois (“State”), through its Illinois Emergency Management 
Agency (“IEMA”), a 2017 UASI grant, Federal grant # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Agreement No. 2017UASICOOK (“2017 Grant Agreement”), a copy of which 
agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A, IEMA has awarded the County 2017 UASI grant funds in an 
amount not exceeding $20,361,280.17 (“2017 Grant”) to utilize for costs related to the 
planning, organization, equipment. training, and exercise needs that prevent, protect against, mitigate, 
respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events; and 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to subaward a portion of the 2017 UASI Grant (“Subaward”) to 
Subrecipient as further detailed in this Agreement;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipts and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

The above recitals are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof. 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 2 of 29 

ARTICLE II  
SUBRECIPIENT INFORMATION AND CERTIFICATION 

2.1. Nature of Entity; FEIN Number; and DUNS Number.  Subrecipient certifies the following 
information is true and accurate: 

Subrecipient is ☒ a unit of government, ☐ an institution of higher education, ☐ a nonprofit 
organization;  

Subrecipient’s correct FEIN is 36-2517422; and 

Subrecipient’s correct DUNS number is 178938007. 

2.2. Standing and Authority. Subrecipient warrants that: 

(a) Subrecipient has the requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
all documents to be executed by it regarding this Agreement, to perform its obligations
hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the other documents to be executed by
Subrecipient regarding this Agreement, and the performance by Subrecipient of its obligations
hereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary entity action.

(c) It recognizes this Agreement and all other documents related to this Agreement, including the
2017 Grant Agreement, all applicable Federal laws, regulations, rules, and guidance, constitute
the legal, valid and binding obligations of Subrecipient enforceable against Subrecipient in
accordance with their respective terms.

2.3 Certification. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient certifies:  

i. All representations made in this Agreement are true and correct and

ii. All funds awarded pursuant to this Agreement shall be used only for the purpose(s)
described herein.

Subrecipient acknowledges its subaward is made solely upon this certification and that any false 
statements, misrepresentations, or material omissions shall be the basis for immediate termination of this 
Agreement and repayment of all funds awarded to Subrecipient. 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 3 of 29 

ARTICLE III  
SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

3.1 Term and Extension.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2019 
(“Effective Date”) and shall expire on July 31, 2020 (“Expiration Date”), unless terminated pursuant to 
this Agreement.  This Agreement may only be extended upon the written agreement of the parties and as 
permitted by DHS at its sole discretion.  In no event shall payments be made for obligations incurred, 
equipment purchased, or work performed before the Effective Date or after the Expiration Date of this 
Agreement.   

3.2 Purpose of Subaward.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Subrecipient 2017 UASI Grant 
funds for the allowable costs of the Subrecipient’s project (“Project”) described in its Scope of Project 
and Budget Detail Worksheet (“Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet”), attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

3.3 Amount of Subaward and Use of Funds; Subrecipient Matching Funds.  The Subaward is for an 
amount not to exceed $36,300.00 and shall be used only to implement the Project, Village of Burr 
Ridge Police Department - Burr Ridge Village Hall Security Upgrades, in conformance with this 
Agreement and for no other purpose.  Subrecipient agrees to match the amount of the award with non-
Federal funds in the amount of $8,700.00. 

3.4 Grant Assurances; Other Requirements.  
(a) Subrecipient shall comply with all the conditions and limitations set forth in the 2017 UASI Grant
Agreement.

(b) In addition to complying with terms and conditions of the 2017 UASI Grant Agreement,
Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable statutes, regulations, executive orders, requirements,
policies, guides, guidelines, information bulletins, County policies and requirements and any conditions
imposed by DHS and IEMA (collectively “Requirements”) including but not limited to the following:

i. Department of Homeland Security Notice of Funding Opportunity Fiscal Year 2017
Homeland Security Grant Program
(https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992)

ii. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”)
(https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-
part200.pdf)

iii. The Department of Homeland Security’s Standard Terms and Conditions for Fiscal Year
2017
(https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%2

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf


  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 4 of 29 

 
 

0Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-
17.pdf)  

 
iv. Illinois Emergency Management Agency Federal Grants Policy Manual 

(https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy 
Manual.pdf)  

All Requirements applicable to the Subaward are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference 
as if fully set forth herein.   
 
(c) By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees it is assumed to have read, 
understood, and accepted all Requirements as binding. 
 
3.5 Administrative Requirements.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the County is acting as 
a "pass-through entity" (as such term is defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.74) for this Subaward and that the 
County shall have the rights and obligations relating to this Subaward and its administration as set forth 
in this Agreement and in the Uniform Guidance.  

3.6 NIMS Implementation and Reporting. Subrecipients receiving HSGP funding are required to 
implement the National Incident Management System (“NIMS”). FY 2017 HSGP recipients must use 
standardized resource management concepts for resource typing, credentialing, and an inventory to 
facilitate the effective identification, dispatch, deployment, tracking and recovery of resources.  Sample 
Resource Typing Form can be found in Exhibit C. (The NIMS Training Program and the NIMS 
Implementation Objectives can be found at https://www.fema.gov/training-0 and  
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting, respectively.  Refer to the DHSEM Grant 
Guidance Manual for further information.)  

3.7 Procurement Requirements.  Subrecipient shall follow its own procurement requirements if those 
requirements comply with all applicable federal and State of Illinois, County and local laws, statutes, 
regulations, requirements, policies, guides, guidelines and instructions, including the most recent 
restrictions on the purchase of general purpose equipment and on purchases of specified controlled 
equipment.  See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 
 
3.8 Equipment List Requirements.  Subrecipient may only purchase equipment listed on the DHS 
Authorized Equipment List (AEL), a list of equipment types allowed under the HSGP consisting of 21 
equipment categories.  The AEL can be found at https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list.   
 
3.9 Accounting Requirements.  Subrecipient shall maintain effective control and accountability over 
all funds, equipment, property, and other assets under this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall keep records 
sufficient to permit the tracking of funds to ensure that expenditures are made in accordance with this 
Agreement and federal requirements. 
 

https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/training-0
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 5 of 29 

 
 

3.10 Financial Management and System of Internal Controls. As prescribed at 2 C.F.R. § 200.303, 
Subrecipient must: 
 

i. Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides 
reasonable assurance that it is managing the Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 
  

ii. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal awards.  
 

iii. Evaluate and monitor its compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of Federal awards.  
 

iv. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance 
identified in audit findings. 
 

v. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other 
information DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County designate as sensitive or Subrecipient 
considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state and local laws regarding privacy 
and obligations of confidentiality. 

 
3.11 Audit Requirements.   
 
(a) If Subrecipient expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards (from all sources including pass-
through subawards) during a fiscal year, Subrecipient shall arrange for a single organization-wide audit 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 C.F.R. Subpart F.  Such audit must be submitted to 
DHSEM no later than nine (9) months after the end of the Subrecipient’s fiscal year. 

 
(b) If Subrecipient expends less than $750,000 in Federal awards during its fiscal year and is not 
subject to the audit requirements in subsection (a), Subrecipient must have a financial statement audit 
conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS); if Subrecipient expends 
between $500,000 and $749,999 in Federal and State awards combined, Subrecipient must have a financial 
statement audit conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards 
(GAGAS). Subrecipient shall submit these financial statement audit reports to DHSEM either within, 

i. 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s) or 
ii. 180 calendar days after the end of the audit period, whichever is earlier. 

 
3.12 Project or Budget Revisions.  The Subrecipient shall only use the funds provided under this 
Agreement for the itemized expenditures identified in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet 
(Exhibit B) and shall not spend more than the specified amount for each such itemized expenditure. The 
Subrecipient may request, in writing, approval from DHSEM to modify the expenditures itemized or the 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 6 of 29 

 
 

amounts specified in any Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  Any request for project or budget revisions 
must be submitted for review and approval to the County using the Program Project Modification Request 
Form (Exhibit E).  This request shall be submitted in the form and manner specified by the DHSEM.  The 
Subrecipient must obtain DHSEM’s written approval prior to making an expenditure that is not in 
compliance with a Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet. 
 
3.13 Project Completion. Subrecipient shall complete the Project (“Project Completion”), which 
includes, but is not limited to ordering, accepting delivery, installing equipment and full completion of 
performance of any service agreements or contracts, by the Expiration Date of this Agreement ("Project 
Completion Deadline"). The Subrecipient shall pay out the funds, submit to DHSEM a final report and 
documentation of expenditures made, and submit to DHSEM all requests for payment no later than forty-
five (45) days after the Project Completion Deadline.  DHSEM has the discretion, and reserves the right, 
to not reimburse the Subrecipient for an expenditure that does not comply with all the requirements 
established in this paragraph. 
 
3.14 Close Out Financial Report.  Subrecipient must submit to DHSEM a final close-out financial report 
and narrative using the format provided in Exhibit K by July 17, 2020. 
 
3.15 Record Keeping.  Subrecipient shall (1) maintain records for equipment, non- expendable personal 
property, and real property and (2) as often as deemed necessary by DHS, FEMA, IEMA, County or any 
of their duly authorized representatives, permit DHS, FEMA, IEMA, Auditor General, Attorney General 
or any of their duly authorized representatives to have full access to and the right to examine any pertinent 
books, documents, papers and records of the Subrecipient involving transactions related to this 
Agreement. This provision requires, at a minimum, that Subrecipient shall: 

i. Cooperate with any compliance review or complaint investigation conducted by the DHS, 
FEMA, IEMA or the County, 

ii. Maintain appropriate backup documentation, and 
iii. Comply with all other special reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements as may 

be required by DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County. 
Subrecipient acknowledges the funds provided by this Agreement are federal pass-through funds that must 
be accounted for in the jurisdiction's single audit, if required, pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.   
 
3.16 Remedies for Noncompliance.   
 
(a) Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that, in the event Subrecipient fails to comply with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement or with any Requirements referenced in Section 3.4, above, the 
Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County shall have the right to take one or more of the actions set 
forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.338.  Such actions may include, without limitation, the withholding of cash 
payments, suspension and/or termination of the Subaward, and the disallowing of certain costs incurred 
under the Subaward.  Any costs incurred by Subrecipient during a suspension or after termination of the 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 7 of 29 

Subaward shall not be considered allowable under the Subaward unless allowed under 2 C.F.R. § 200.342. 
Subrecipient shall be liable to the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County for any Subaward funds 
used by Subrecipient in violation of any Requirements, and Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the County for any sums the Federal Awarding Agency or IEMA determines Subrecipient used 
in violation of such Requirements. 

(b) Subrecipient shall be granted the opportunity to object to and challenge the taking of any remedial
action by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County in accordance with the provisions set forth
in 2 C.F.R. § 200.341.

3.17  Termination.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the Subaward, and any obligation to 
disburse to or reimburse Subrecipient in connection thereto, may be terminated in whole or in part by 
DHS, IEMA or the County as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate 
the Subaward only as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  In the event the Subaward is terminated, all 
obligations and requirements of this Agreement and the Subaward shall survive and continue in full force 
and effect with respect to any portion of the Subaward remaining prior to such termination, including, 
without limitation, the closeout and post closeout requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 
PAYMENT 

4.1 Basis of Payment.  The Subrecipient will be reimbursed on a cost reimbursement basis for 
allowable Project costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient pursuant to the Scope/Budget Detail 
Worksheet (Exhibit B). The Subrecipient must submit reimbursement request forms to DHSEM for each 
reimbursement request as detailed below in 4.2. 

4.2 Method of Payment.   

(a) Subrecipient will submit requests for reimbursement identifying the payment due for the Project
costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient in such detail and supported by such documents as
the County may require using the Reimbursement Request Form (Exhibit G), including Original Invoices
and Proof of Payment (See, Exhibit H for examples) and the Equipment Inventory Form (Exhibit I) if
necessary. If the subrecipient paid for their Projects costs using checks, then a copy of the cancelled
check(s) – front and back (showing bank stamp) – should be submitted.  If a credit card was used, then
card receipt along with the credit card statement should be submitted.  If a bank transfer is used, then the
journal entry from the agencies accounting system should be submitted.  The requests for reimbursement
and supporting documents should be sent via email to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov.

(b) The County will reject any reimbursement requests that include costs that were incurred or paid
by any party other than the Subrecipient. The County will use reasonable efforts to respond to the
Subrecipient’s request for reimbursement within 30 calendar days after submission by either (i) processing

mailto:DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov


Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 8 of 29 

the payment or (ii) notifying the Subrecipient of the way in which the request is deficient and the 
adjustments the Subrecipient must make to receive payment. Within 15 days after receiving such 
notification from the County, and after completing such adjustment(s), the Subrecipient may resubmit a 
revised request for reimbursement form and the County thereafter will use reasonable efforts to respond 
to the Subrecipient’s request within 15 days.  

4.3 Waiver of Payment.  The Subrecipient waives all rights to payment if the request for 
reimbursement is submitted after the termination or completion of this Agreement. Costs incurred by the 
Subrecipient after the Expiration Date or after earlier termination of this Agreement will not be paid by 
the County.  

4.4. Allowable Costs.  All costs allowed by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA and/or DHSEM are 
not considered final and may be disallowed upon the completion of audits ordered or performed by the 
County or the appropriate federal agency. In the event of a disallowance, the Subrecipient will refund the 
amount disallowed to the County.  

4.5 Availability of Appropriation; Sufficiency of Funds.  This Agreement is contingent upon and 
subject to the availability of sufficient funds. The County may terminate or suspend this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, without penalty or further payment being required, if (i) sufficient funds for this 
Agreement have not been appropriated or otherwise made available to the County by the Federal funding 
source or (ii) the County determines that funds will not or may not be available for payment.  The County 
shall provide notice, in writing, to Subrecipient of any such funding failure and its election to terminate 
or suspend this Agreement as soon as practicable.  Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Section 
will be effective upon the date of the written notice unless otherwise indicated. 

4.6 Certification. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.415, each invoice and report submitted by Subrecipient 
must contain the following certification by an official authorized to legally bind the Subrecipient: 

By signing this report/payment request, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief 
that the report/payment request is true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, 
disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms 
and conditions of the Federal or State award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, 
civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. 
Code Title 18, Section 1001and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). 

4.7 Overpayment.   If DHSEM or a subrecipient determines there has been an overpayment of federal 
preparedness funds, duplicate payment, or any other instance in which the subrecipient has received funds 
that are not associated with an authorized expenditure, this amount must be returned to DHSEM.  Any 
interest earned on the overpayment in excess of the maximum that may be retained shall be remitted to 
the DHSEM according to federal rules and regulations. 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 9 of 29 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Subrecipient represents and warrants each of the following as of the date of this Agreement and at all 
times throughout the term of this Agreement: 

Legal Authority.  Subrecipient’s execution of this Agreement is authorized by a resolution, 
ordinance or other evidence of legal authority from the Subrecipient’s governing body. The 
signature of the individual signing on the Subrecipient’s behalf has been made with complete 
and full authority to commit the Subrecipient to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Subrecipient must provide evidence of signature authority and the Subrecipient Signature 
Authorization Form (Exhibit F) to the County with the executed Agreement. 

No Misstatements. No document furnished or to be furnished by Subrecipient to the County in 
connection with this Agreement, any reimbursement request or any other document relating to 
any of the foregoing, contains or will contain any untrue statement of material fact or omits or 
will omit a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading, 
under the circumstances under which any such statement shall have been made. 

Eligibility to Receive Federal Funds. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient represents 
and warrants it is eligible to receive federal funds, and specifically certifies as follows:   

(a) Subrecipient is not suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participation in
federal assistance programs, as required by Executive Order 12549 and 12689,
“Debarment and Suspension” and implemented by the DOJ at 2 CFR Part 2867.

(b) Subrecipient complies with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, Limitation on Use of Appropriated
Funds to Influence Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions, as implemented
by the DOJ at 28 CFR Part 69.

(c) Subrecipient complies with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as amended, 41
U.S.C. § 701 et seq., and will continue to provide a drug-free workplace as required
under that Act and implementing regulations. See, 2 CFR Part 182, Subpart B.

(d) Subrecipient is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt, including without
limitation, delinquent audit disallowances, loans, taxes, and any outstanding debts
with the Treasury.

Subrecipient acknowledges that the foregoing representations, warranties and certifications of 
eligibility to receive federal funds are material terms of the Agreement. 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 10 of 29 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 
REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

Subrecipient shall be responsible for compliance with the certifications and assurances enumerated in any 
of the Requirements to the extent that same apply to Subrecipient including without limitation the 
following:  

a. No Pending Application(s) Disclosure.  Subrecipient has no pending request(s) for funding to 
support the same project being funded under this Agreement and that seeks to cover the identical 
cost items outlined in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  If Subrecipient cannot so 
certify, it shall complete, execute and submit a Disclosure of Pending Applications form (Exhibit 
J) upon execution of this Agreement.  

 
b. Debarment. Subrecipient certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Agreement by any Federal 
department or agency. 
 

c. Criminal Convictions. Subrecipient certifies that neither it nor any managerial agent of 
Subrecipient has been convicted of a felony under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or that at least 
five (5) years have passed since the date of the conviction.  
 

d. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006. Subrecipient certifies that it is in 
compliance with the terms and requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 6101. 
 

e. Lobbying and Political Activities.  Subrecipient certifies that: 
 

i. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection with awarding any Federal Contract, the making of 
any federal grant, the making federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and 
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
ii. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress relating to this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.  See, 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf 

 

https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 11 of 29 

iii. The undersigned shall require that the language of the foregoing two subsections be included
in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

f. Hatch Act.  Subrecipient certifies it will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§
1501-1508 and §§ 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with federal funds.

g. Privacy and Personally Identifiable Information.  Subrecipient agrees to comply with all
confidentiality requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 3789g and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to
collection, use, and revelation of data or information. Subrecipient further agrees, as a condition
of Subaward approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. § 22.23.  See, https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf.

ARTICLE VII 
CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Subrecipient will comply, as applicable, with all federal and state laws and regulations relating to civil 
rights protections and nondiscrimination. These include, but are not limited to: 

a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., which
provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.  The DHS regulations for this statute
are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.,
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of gender in educational programs and activities. The
DHS regulations for this statute are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

c) The Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which
prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities,
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing
entities.  The implementing regulation for this statute is codified at 28 C.F.R. Part 35.

d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.   The FEMA regulation for this statute is codified at 44 C.F.R. Part 7, Subpart E.

https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 12 of 29 

e) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which
provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States will, solely
by reason of the disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.
The DHS regulation for this statute is codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 15.

f) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under
which the application for Federal assistance is being made and any other applicable statutes.

ARTICLE VIII 
MAINTENANCE AND ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS; MONITORING 

8.1 Records Retention. Subrecipient shall maintain for three (3) years from the date of submission of 
the final expenditure report, adequate books, all financial records and, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Subaward, adequate to comply with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333, 
unless a different retention period is specified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. If any litigation, claim or audit related 
to the purchases contemplated herein is started before the expiration of the retention period, the records 
must be retained until all litigation, claims or audit exceptions involving the records have been resolved 
and final action taken. 

8.2 Accessibility of Records. Subrecipient, in compliance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, shall make books, 
records, related papers, supporting documentation and personnel relevant to this Agreement available to 
authorized County representatives, the County's Inspector General, Federal authorities, any person 
identified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, and any other person as may be authorized by the County (including 
auditors) or by the City of Chicago. Subrecipient shall cooperate fully in any such audit or inquiry. 

8.3 Failure to Maintain Books and Records. Failure to maintain books, records and supporting 
documentation, as described in this Article VIII, shall establish a presumption in favor of the State for the 
recovery of any funds paid by the State under this Agreement for which adequate books, records and 
supporting documentation are not available to support disbursement. 

8.4 Monitoring and Access to Information.  Subrecipient must monitor its activities to assure 
compliance with applicable Requirements and to assure its performance expectations are being achieved. 
County shall monitor the activities of Subrecipient to assure compliance with all requirements and 
performance expectations of the award. An annual monitoring visit is expected and will be scheduled with 
a 30-day notification.  Subrecipient shall timely submit all financial and performance reports, and shall 
supply, upon the County's request, documents and information relevant to the Subaward.  The County 
may make site visits as warranted by program needs. See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.328 and § 200.331. 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 13 of 29 

ARTICLE IX  
EQUIPMENT OR PROPERTY REQUIREMENTS 

9.1 Equipment and Procurement.  Equipment acquired pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to 
the requirements of Title 2 C.F.R. § 200.313. For the purposes of this Article t, "Equipment" is defined as 
tangible nonexpendable property, having a useful life of more than one year which costs $5,000 or more 
per unit. Items costing less than $5,000 but acquired under the "Equipment" category of the Grant must 
also be listed on the Equipment Listing   

9.2 Use.  Equipment must be used by Subrecipient in the program or project for which it was acquired 
as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by Federal funds. 
When no longer needed for the original program or project, the Equipment may be used in other activities 
currently or previously supported by a Federal agency. 

9.3 Availability for Like Programs.  Subrecipient must make Equipment available for use on other like 
projects or programs currently or previously supported by the Federal Government, providing such use 
will not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it was originally acquired. First 
preference for other use must be given to other programs or projects supported by the awarding agency.  
In addition, in accordance with applicable DHS, FEMA, IEMA and Cook County policies and 
requirements, Subrecipient shall make the Equipment and supplies available to other authorized entities, 
including call out for mutual aid and interagency regional emergency responses. 

9.4 Prohibition against Disposition/Encumbrance. Subrecipient is prohibited from, and may not sell, 
transfer, encumber (other than original financing) or otherwise dispose of said equipment, material, or real 
property during the Term without prior approval of the County. Any real property acquired using Grant 
Funds must comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.311.

9.5. Equipment Listing.  Subrecipient must maintain a list of each piece of Equipment acquired with 
its Subaward. The Equipment Listing must be kept up to date at all times. Any changes must be recorded 
in the Equipment Listing within ten (10) business days and the updated list shall immediately be forwarded 
to DHSEM. Equipment records must be maintained that include: (a) a description of the property, (b) a 
serial number or other identification number, (c) the source of property, (d) who holds title, (e) the 
acquisition date, (f) cost of the property, (g) percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property, 
(h) the location, (i) use and condition of the property, (j) DHSEM asset tag number, and (k) any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property. Records must be retained by
the Subrecipient in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.313 (d) (1).
9.6 Identification Decal.  All Equipment obtained under this Agreement must have an appropriate
identification decal and asset tag (provided by DHSEM) affixed to it and, when practical, must be affixed
where it is readily visible.

9.7 Inventory.  A physical inventory of the Equipment must be taken by the Subrecipient and the 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 14 of 29 

results reconciled with the Equipment Listing at least once every two years or prior to any site visit by 
Federal or County auditors/monitors. The Subrecipient is required to submit a letter certifying as to the 
accuracy of the Equipment Listing to DHSEM, in the frequency as above.  

9.8. Transfer of Equipment. County shall have the right to require that Subrecipient transfer to County 
any equipment, including title thereto, purchased in whole with Subaward funds, if County determines 
that Subrecipient has not met the conditions of 2 C.F.R. § 200.439(a). County shall notify Subrecipient in
writing should County require the transfer of such equipment.  Upon such notification by County, and 
upon receipt or delivery of such equipment to County, Subrecipient will be deemed to have transferred 
the equipment to County as if Subrecipient had executed a bill of sale therefor. 

ARTICLE X 
INSURANCE 

10.1 Insurance coverage. As required by 2 C.F.R. § 310, Subrecipient must, at a minimum, provide 
insurance sufficient to cover the replacement cost of any and all real or personal property, or both, 
purchased or, otherwise acquired, or improved in whole or in part, with funds disbursed pursuant to this 
Agreement.   

10.2. Claims. If a claim is submitted for losses related to real or personal property, or both, purchased 
in whole with funds from this Agreement, any recovered monies shall be surrendered to County. 

ARTICLE XI 
INDEMNIFICATION; LIABILITY 

11.1 Indemnification.  Subrecipient agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its 
Commissioners, officials, employees, agents and representatives, and their respective heirs, successors 
and assigns, from and against any and all costs, expenses, attorney's fees, losses, damages and liabilities 
incurred or suffered directly or indirectly from or attributable to any claims arising out of or incident to 
the Subrecipient’s performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, or the acts or omissions of the 
Subrecipient’s officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees or invitees.  Subrecipient 
expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance protection required of the 
Subrecipient, or otherwise provided by the Subrecipient, shall in no way limit the responsibility to 
indemnify the County as hereinabove provided.  
11.2 Liability.  The County assumes no liability for actions of the Subrecipient under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the negligent acts and omissions of the Subrecipient's agents, employees, and 
subcontractors in their performance of the Subrecipient's duties as described under this Agreement. In 
addition, the County makes no representations, or warranties, express or implied, as to fitness for use, 
condition of, or suitability of any equipment purchased pursuant to this Agreement, except as those 
representations are made by the manufacturer of said equipment. As to the nature and condition of said 
equipment, in the use of said equipment, the Subrecipient agrees to hold County harmless for any defects 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 15 of 29 

or misapplications. To the extent allowed by law, the Subrecipient agrees to hold harmless County against 
any and all liability, loss, damage, costs, or expenses, including attorney's fees, arising from the intentional 
torts, negligence, or breach of the Agreement by the Subrecipient, with the exception of acts performed in 
conformance with an explicit, written directive of the County or DHSEM. 

ARTICLE XII 
NOTICE 

12.1 The individuals identified in this section shall be authorized to act as the liaisons of the County 
and the Subrecipient, respectively, with respect to this Agreement:  

Notices to the County/DHSEM shall be addressed to: 
Ellen O’Connor, Grant Coordinator  
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
69 West Washington Street, Suite 2600  
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov 

Notices to Subrecipient shall be addressed to: 
Marc Loftus, Deputy Chief of Police 
Village of Burr Ridge 
7660 County Line Rd 
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 
mloftus@burr-ridge.gov 

12.2 The Subrecipient must notify the County of any significant change in the Subrecipient’s 
organizational structure. Significant changes include, but are not limited to, changes in:  

i. The official(s) to whom notice regarding the Agreement is provided and their mailing
address; and

ii. The Subrecipient’s leadership, key staff and/or the Subrecipient’s program sites, including
the Chief or executive director, site director, fiscal director; name, ownership, Federal
employer identification number (FEIN), DUNS number or taxpayer certification; legal status
(including not-for-profit status); site address or agency official address or telephone
numbers; and the location or storage site of any Equipment purchased through this
Agreement.

Such communication must be directed within ten (10) calendar days of such occurrence (or, in the case of 
changes in legal status (including not-for-profit status), address, name, ownership, FEIN or taxpayer 
certification, forty-five (45) days in advance) to the County.  No promise or undertaking made in this 
Agreement is an assurance that the County agrees to continue this Agreement should the Subrecipient 

mailto:ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov
mailto:mloftus@burr-ridge.gov


Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 16 of 29 

reorganize, change owners, or otherwise substantially change the character of the Subrecipient’s structure, 
function, or purpose. 

ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Assignment Prohibited. Subrecipient acknowledges that this Agreement (including Subrecipient’s 
right to receive payments hereunder) may not be sold, assigned, or transferred in any manner by 
Subrecipient.  Any actual or attempted sale, assignment, or transfer by Subrecipient without the prior 
written approval of the County shall render this Agreement null, void and of no further effect. 

13.2 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended at any time during its Term by mutual 
consent of the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties. 

13.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, its other provisions shall not 
be affected thereby. 

13.4 No Waiver. No failure of either Party to assert any right or remedy hereunder will act as a waiver 
of either Party's right to assert such right or remedy at a later time or constitute a course of business upon 
which either Party may rely for the purpose of denial of such a right or remedy. 

13.5 Applicable Law; Claims. This Agreement and all subsequent amendments thereto, if any, shall be 
governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.  The County does not waive 
sovereign immunity by entering into this Agreement. 

13.6 Compliance with Law. This Agreement and Subrecipient's obligations and services hereunder are 
hereby made and must be performed in compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, including, 
without limitation, Federal regulations and Cook  

13.7 Compliance with Freedom of Information Act. Upon request, Subrecipient shall make available to 
the County all documents in its possession that the County deems necessary to comply with requests made 
under the Freedom of Information Act. (5 ILCS 140/7(2)).  

13.8 Office of the Independent Inspector General.  Subrecipient agrees it will abide by all provisions of 
the Cook County Code of Ordinances pertaining to the authority of the Office of the Independent Inspector 
General and acknowledges it is unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of said office to refuse 
to cooperate with the Independent Inspector General.  

13.9 Headings. Article and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 
and are not intended to define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof.  
13.10 Attachments.  This Agreement has the following attachments which are incorporated into this 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 17 of 29 

Agreement as if set out: 

Exhibit A: 2017 UASI Grant Agreement 
Exhibit B: Scope of Services and Budget Detail Worksheet 
Exhibit C: NIMS – Sample Resource Typing Form and Guidance 
Exhibit D: Sample of Authorized Equipment List with Hyperlink 
Exhibit E: Program/Project Modification Request Form 
Exhibit F: Subrecipient Signature Authorization Form  
Exhibit G: Reimbursement Request Form 
Exhibit H: Sample of Proof of Payment & Copy of Original Invoice 
Exhibit I: Equipment Inventory Form 
Exhibit J: 
Exhibit K: 

Disclosure of Pending Applications Form 
Final Close-Out Financial Report 

In the event of any inconsistencies or conflict between the language of this Agreement and the 
attachments, the language of the attachments shall control, but only to the extent of the conflict or 
inconsistency. 

13.11 Entire Agreement. Subrecipient and County acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the 
entire agreement between them and that no promises, terms, or conditions not recited, incorporated or 
referenced herein, including prior agreements or oral discussions, shall be binding upon either 
Subrecipient or County. 

13.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be considered to be one and the same agreement, binding on all Parties hereto, notwithstanding that all 
Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Duplicated signatures, signatures transmitted via 
facsimile, or signatures contained in a Portable Document Format (PDF) document shall be deemed 
original for all purposes. 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 18 of 29 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the parties through their 
authorized representatives as set forth below.  

ON BEHALF OF COOK COUNTY: 

__________________________________ 
William M. Barnes Jr., Executive Director   
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management  

Date: ______________________________ 

ON BEHALF OF THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS : 

___________________________________ 
J. Douglas Pollock, Village Administrator

Date: ______________________________ 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 19 of 29 

EXHIBIT A 
2017 UASI GRANT AGREEMENT 





































































Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 20 of 29 

EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND BUDGET DETAIL WORKSHEET 



EXHIBIT B 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient - Scope of Services & Budget Detail Worksheet 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ 

Program Category: ____________________________ 

DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Scope of Services: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Budget Detail: 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Sub-Recipient DUNS Number: ________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Name (Print): __________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Signature: _____________________________________________  

Operating Expenses Award Amount 

Training $ 

Consumable Expenses (Training) $ 

Exercise $ 

Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) $ 

Equipment Less Than $5,000 $ 

Supplies $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

Sub-Total $ 

Capital Equipment (Asset More Than $5,000) 

Computer Equipment $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ 

Security Upgrades $ 

Other Equipment $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

Sub-Total $ 

TOTAL AWARDED $ 



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 21 of 29 

EXHIBIT C 
NIMS – SAMPLE RESOURCE TYPING FORM 



Equipment or 
Training

NIMS Typed Discipline 
or State/Local 

Discipline/Community 
of Interest Supported

NIMS Typed Resource 
Supported

NIMS 
Type #

State/Local Typed 
Resource Supported 

(if applicable)

Typed Equipment 
Purchased

# of Personnel 
Trained for 

Typed Teams

# of Typed 
Teams Trained

Sustain Current 
Capability/Add New 

Capability
Core Capability Supported Cost of Purchase Comments

Grant-Funded Typed Resource Report

Tool Instructions:
1. Each row should contain one piece of equipment purchased with or training held using grant funds for current reporting period. Only report purchases and trainings that have already been completed and funds have been expended and drawn down.
2. Choose from the drop-down menu whether the line is for equipment or training, the NIMS Typed Discipline, NIMS Typed Resource and NIMS Type #, as published by FEMA's National Integration Center (NIC) that the equipment supports, if NIMS Typed.
2a. If equipment or training is not NIMS Typed, choose "State/Local Other" in drop-down menu and provide State/Local typing or Community of Interest information in the Comments.
3. Choose whether the piece of equipment or training is to "Sustain Current" existing capabilities or will increase or "Add New" capability .
4. Choose the Core Capability or Capabilities that the Typed Resource supports. If more than one Core Capability is applicable, expand the columns by clicking the '+' above the 'Cost of Purchase' column to show more 'Core Capability Supported' columns.
5. Enter the cost of the equipment or training.
6. Enter additional information in the Comments, including a brief description of whether the training or equipment purchased sustains existing capabilities; adds or improves an existing capability; or builds a new capability from scratch.

SAMPLE

EXHIBIT C



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 22 of 29 

EXHIBIT D 
SAMPLE FEMA - AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT LIST (Use Hyperlink) 



EXHIBIT D
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management

(SAMPLE) FEMA Authorized Equipment List (Partial Listing - Use Hyperlink)
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list

AEL # Title

01WF-01-COLD Outerwear, Cold Weather, Wildland Fire Fighting Protective 04HW-02-BARC Equipment, Bar Code Reading and Printing

02EX-00-EXTR Materials, Energetic, Bomb Squad Training 04HW-02-RFID Devices, Radio Frequency Identification

03OE-01-VSTO Vests, Operational 04MD-01-VCAM Camera, Video

03OE-02-FIBR Systems, Fiber Optic 04MD-02-PROJ Projector, Video

03OE-03-DAMS Devices, Containment/Diversion 04MD-03-DISP Display, Video

03OE-03-LOTO System, Lock Out/Tag Out 04SN-01-PTMS Station, Portable Meteorological

03OE-04-BALA Balaclava, Fire Resistant 04SN-01-XMIT Transmission Device, Wireless, Remote Sensor

03OE-07-ROBT Robots 04SW-04-NETW Software, Network

03OE-07-ROVL Vehicles, Remotely Operated, Land 04SW-05-SCAD System, SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)

03OE-07-SUAS System, Small Unmanned Aircraft 05AU-00-BIOM Device, Biometric User Authentication

03OE-07-UMVS System, Unmanned Maritime Vehicle 05AU-00-TOKN System, Remote Authentication

04AP-01-CADS System, Dispatch, Computer Aided 05EN-00-ECRP Software, Encryption

04AP-02-AVLS Systems, Automatic Vehicle Locating (AVL) 05EN-00-ETRN Encryption, Data Transmission

04AP-02-DGPS Device, Global Positioning System (GPS) 05HS-00-FRNS Software, Forensic

04AP-02-OAPT System, Operations Area Personnel Tracking 05HS-00-MALW Software, Malware Protection

04AP-03-GISD Data, Geospatial 05HS-00-PFWL System, Personal Firewall

04AP-03-GISS System, Geospatial Information (GIS) 05NP-00-FWAL Firewall, Network

04AP-04-RISK Software, Risk Management 05NP-00-IDPS System, Intrusion Detection/Prevention

04AP-05-CDSS Systems and Tools, ICS 05NP-00-SCAN Tools, Vulnerability Scanning

04AP-05-CRED System, Credentialing 05NP-00-SEIM System, Security Event/Incident Management

04AP-05-SVIS Software, Operational Space Visualization 05PM-00-PTCH System, Patch/Configuration Management

04AP-06-CBRN Software, CBRNE/Commercial Chemical/Hazard 06CC-01-CELL Communications and Computing Device, Handheld

04AP-06-PMOD Software, Plume Modeling 06CC-02-2WAY Device, Messaging, 2-Way Text

04AP-06-TRAF Software, Traffic Modeling 06CC-02-DSAD Device, Data Service Access

04AP-07-INVN Software, Equipment Tracking and Inventory 06CC-02-PAGE Services/Systems, Paging

04AP-08-SIMS Simulators 06CC-03-SATB Phone, Satellite Base

04AP-09-ALRT Systems, Public Notification and Warning 07ED-04-LASR Detector, Explosive, Laser-Based, Standoff

04AP-10-GNAI System, Artificial Intelligence 10PE-01-PCHG Chargers, Phone and Radio

04HW-01-INHW Hardware, Computer, Integrated 10PE-01-WCHG Chargers, Power Chair

04HW-01-MOBL Computer, Mobile Data 11RE-00-RFCB References, CBRNE

11RE-00-RFDB Databases, Reference 19AF-01-FEED Equipment and Supplies, Feeding Support

11RE-00-RFEX References, Field Expedient 19AF-01-HYGN Equipment and Supplies, Personal Hygeine

https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


AEL # Title

11RE-00-RFNC Reference Materials, Non-CBRNE 19AF-01-MOB Equipment, Mobility Support

12TR-00-H2OT Trailer, Water/Source 19AF-02-BACC Bedding and Accessories, Service Animal

12TR-00-MOVR Mover, Prime, for Equipment/Water Trailers 19AF-02-RELF Relieving Stations, Service Animal

12TR-00-TEQP Trailer, Equipment 19FD-01-IRAT Rations, Initial Deployment

12VE-00-ABUS Vehicle, Mass Casualty Transport 19FD-01-URAT Rations, Unit-Feeding

12VE-00-CMDV Vehicle, Command, Mobile 19FD-01-WATR Water, Potable, Packaged

12VE-00-MISS Vehicle, Specialized Mission 19GN-00-BGPK Bags / Packs

12VE-00-SPEC Vehicle, Specialized Emergency Management 19GN-00-COMP Compressors and Systems, Breathing Air

13IT-00-INTL Systems, Intelligence Sharing 19GN-00-FANE Fan, Intrinsically Safe, Exhaust

14CI-00-COOP System, Information Technology Contingency Operations 19GN-00-FANV Fan, Cooling/Heating/Ventilation

14EX-00-BCAN Receptacles, Trash, Blast-Resistant 19GN-00-FUEL Container, Fuel Storage

14EX-00-BSIR Systems, Building, Blast/Shock/Impact Resistant 19GN-00-H2OD System, Water Distribution

14SW-01-DOOR Doors and Gates, Impact Resistant 19GN-00-HSSF Housing, Subsistence and Sanitation

14SW-01-EXTM System, Fire Extinguisher Monitoring 19GN-00-OPCK Overpack

14SW-01-LITE Lighting, Area, Fixed 19GN-00-RFGR Refrigerator/Freezer

14SW-01-PACS System, Physical Access Control 19MH-00-BULK Equipment, Bulk Material Handling

14SW-01-SIDP Systems, Personnel Identification 19MH-00-CART Cart, Field

14SW-01-SIDV Systems, Vehicle Identification 19MH-00-CHMS Containers, Hazardous Material Shipping

14SW-01-SNSR Sensors/Alarms, System and Infrastructure Monitoring, Standalone 19MH-00-CONT Containers, Storage

14SW-01-VIDA Systems, Video Assessment, Security 19MH-00-CPAC Carts, Portable Air Cylinder

14SW-01-WALL Barriers: Fences; Jersey Walls 19MH-00-CPGC Carts, Portable Compressed Gas Cylinder

14SW-02-RADR Systems, Radar 19SS-00-SHEL Systems, Shelter, Rapid Deployment

14SW-02-SONR Systems, Sonar 19SS-00-SHEN System, Environmental Control

14SW-02-VBAR Barriers, Vessel 19SS-00-SHEP System, Collective Protective

16AC-01-ACRS Equipment and Supplies, Small Animal Capture and Restraint 20CS-01-AFIS Equipment, Fingerprint Processing and Identification

16AD-03-RFID Radio Frequency Information Devices 20CS-02-EVID Systems and Equipment, Evidence Collection

16AD-03-TAGS Tags and markers 20CS-02-SUPP Equipment and Supplies, Crime Scene Processing

17WC-00-BOAT Watercraft, CBRNE Prevention and Response 20CS-02-UVLT Equipment, Alternate Light Source Detection

18AC-00-ACFT Aircraft, CBRNE 20TE-00-NTRY Equipment, Tactical Entry

18AC-00-ACMC Equipment/Kits, Aircraft Mass Casualty Conversion 21GN-00-CCEQ Equipment, Citizen Corps

18AC-00-ACUP Equipment and Upgrades, Aircraft, CBRNE 21GN-00-CNST Consulting Services in Support of Equipment Acquisition

19AF-01-CHLD Equipment and Supplies, Infants and Children 21GN-00-INST Installation

19AF-01-COMM Equipment, Communications and Sensory Support 21GN-00-LEAS Leasing of Space for Equipment Storage

21GN-00-SHIP Shipping 21GN-00-MAIH Maintenance, HDER

21GN-00-TRNG Training 21GN-00-MAIN Maintenance

21GN-00-XMLP Programming for XML Compliance 21GN-00-OCEQ Equipment & Supplies, Information/Emergency Operations/Fusion Centers





Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 23 of 29 

EXHIBIT E 
PROGRAM/PROJECT MODIFICATION REQUEST FORM 





EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  _________________________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ 

Request Date: ________     

Budget Expense Category: ______________     

DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Type of Modification: _____________    

Scope of Services: ________________ 

Instructions - Please respond to the questions below.  Incomplete forms will not be considered.  Note: The term of the agreement 
can only be modified by DHSEM and approved by the State of Illinois (IEMA). 

1. Is the modification requested within the original approved category?  Please explain.

2. Will the modification request allow for the project to be completed within the original performance period of the project?

3. Have the original project objectives for the project been accomplished?

4. Please list all Authorized Equipment List (AEL) numbers, a brief description of the equipment, per unit cost estimate, and 
number of units (if applicable). For training costs, list the FEMA approved training course numbers that apply to this
modification (if applicable).

5. Provide a justification for the project modification.  What is the modification your organization would like to make and 
why is the project modification being requested?  Please include details.

Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below (if applicable). 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________________  Signature: _______________________________________ 

Job Title: ________________________________________    Date: __________________________________ 



EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Grant Coordinator  Director of Finance 

Name: ___________________________________         Name: _______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: ____________________________ 

□ Approved □ Denied □ Approved □ Denied

COMMENTS: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 24 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
SUBRECIPIENT SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION FORM 

  



EXHIBIT F 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Signature Authorization Form 

Name of Entity: _________________________________________________________ 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 
Contract # _________________________      FY: _______       Fund: _____________            Project:  _____________

Urban Areas Security Initiative Program (UASI)    _______________       _______________        _____________________ 
Grant Program and Year                  Grant Start Date          Grant End Date          CFDA# 

 THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY SUB-RECIPIENT 

Sub-Recipient Contact Name (Point of Contact) Agency FEIN# 

Address         DUNS # 

City, State, Zip Code Sub-Recipient  Contact  Phone#     

Sub-Recipient Contact Email Sub-Recipient Contact Fax # 

THIS DOCUMENT IS PART OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN DHSEM AND THE SUB-RECIPIENT IDENTIFIED ABOVE. 

The person whose signature is furnished below is hereby authorized to sign reimbursement request forms and other 
related documents for the UASI Grant program indicated above and funded by DHSEM via a grant award.  Upon 
acceptance of this grant award, the following information is needed to complete your grant sub-agreement and should 
be emailed to DHSEM as soon as possible to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov. 

Signatory Name (Print): ________________________________________________________ 

Signatory Titles (Print): ________________________________________________________ 

Signatory Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 

Describe any limitations on the above person's authority here: 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE OF THIS APPROVAL: ______________________________________________________ 

This form is to be completed as part of executing a Sub-Recipient agreement identified by the above fund and contract number.  Completing this form is 
one of the conditions necessary to receive funds from Cook County DHSEM. A copy of this form must be on file for all persons with authorization and 
approved by an individual of higher authority than the person being granted authority.



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 25 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT G 
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 

 
 

 
  



EXHIBIT G

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Reimbursement Request Form 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  ________________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Project Name: _________________________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Submittal Date: ______________ Submittal # _________ 

Instructions - Please use the space below to provide the amount and a description of the expense you are seeking reimbursement for in the appropriate approved expenditure category shown below. This 
form must be submitted with the supporting invoices(s) documenting the expense(s) incurred and proof that the expense(s) has been paid by you before the expense is considered for review and approval 
for reimbursement. 

Expenditure Category Total Award Amount AEL# 

Reimbursement Amount 
Requested 

Balance of Award 
Available Notes 

Operating Expense 

     Training $ $ $ 

Consumable Expenses $ $ $ 

Personal Protection 
Equipment (PPE) 

$ $ $ 

Exercise $ $ $ 

Equipment Less Than 
$5,000 per 1 Item 

$ $ $ 

Supplies $ $ $ 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

Capital Expense (Asset Greater Than $5,000 per 1 Item) 

Computer Equipment $ $ $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ $ $ 

Security Upgrades 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

TOTAL $ $ $ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory: DHSEM Reviewer: 

Name (print): _____________________________  Name (print): ______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: _________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Job Title: __________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________  Date: _____________________________________



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 26 of 29 

EXHIBIT H 
SAMPLE OF PROOF OF PAYMENT & ORIGINAL INVOICE 



Exhibit H – Proof of Payment 

1. If equipment or services are purchased with a check, include the invoice (proof of expense) and
obtain a front and back copy of the canceled check image that corresponds with the check
number used for payment.

2. Check must be written out to Vendor.
3. Amount requested should match amount paid to vendor.
4. Invoice number should be on the check and/or Purchase Order number.
5. If equipment or services are purchased with a credit card, then print a copy of the bank or credit

card statement that shows your proof of payment, include the credit card receipt.
6. Retain proof of all correspondence with the grantor (DHSEM) concerning your payment(s).

Authorized Signature(s) Invoice # and PO # if applicable 

Name of Vendor Same as Invoice

Must be prior to end 
of Grant Date 

Organization Name 

Same as Invoice



Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 
Vendor Information Below: 

INVOICE 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Fax Enter fax 
Email | Website 

INVOICE # 1959 
 DATE July 31, 2019 

TO: 
Sub-Recipient Name 
Organization Name 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Email 

FOR Project or service description 
P.O. # If Needed 

Description Number of 
Items 

Cost per Item Total per Item 

Description and serial number for each item. 3 $100 $300 

Enter description 2 Enter amount 

Enter description 3 Enter amount 

Enter description 4 Enter amount 

This is a sample Invoice from your Vendor.
Please have the following information on each invoice: 

Name of Vendor, Address and Remit to Address 
Organization’s Name and Address where items were delivered 

Invoice Number, Invoice Date 
Name of Project (if possible) and PO number used (if applicable) 

Description of Item(s) purchased include serial numbers on invoice (if possible) 
Number of Items purchased and cost of each individual item with total of all (see above example) 

Grand Total for the Invoice should match the amount reimbursed 
Please Note:  There should be NO Sales Taxes Paid 

Total Enter total amount 

Make all checks payable to Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 

Payment is due within 30 days. 
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Name | Phone | Email 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

Exhibit H – Sample Vendor Invoice 





Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 27 of 29 

EXHIBIT I 
EQUIPMENT INVENTORY FORM 



EXHIBIT I 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Equipment Inventory Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Instructions - Please complete and submit this form for any capital equipment purchases approved in the grant 
agreement.  Capital equipment is defined as those items whose fair market value is $5,000 or greater and whose useful 
life is more than one year. This form must be submitted with the Reimbursement Request Form when reimbursement is 
being sought. 

Purchase Amount: $_____________________ Purchase Date: _____________________ 

Manufacturer: ________________________ Model #: __________________________ 

Serial #: _____________________________ AEL #: ____________________________ 

Estimated Useful Life: __________________ DHSEM Tag # (if applicable): ________________________ 

Item Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________  

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________    Signature: ________________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

DHSEM Master Asset List 

DHSEM Data Entered By: _____________________________    Date Entered: ____________________________ 

DHSEM Physical Inspections 

DHSEM Inspector Inspection Date 

_____________________________________________________________   ________________________



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 28 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT J 
DISCLOSURE OF PENDING APPLICATIONS FORM 

  



  EXHIBIT J 
 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Subrecipient Disclosure of Pending Application Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________  DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________  UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

The Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM), as administrator of Federal 
grants, is responsible for ensuring compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations in the performance of grant 
work with regard to DHSEM Grantees. 
 
Grantees are to disclose whether they have pending or awarded applications for federally funded assistance that include 
requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this grant and will cover the identical cost items 
outlined in their application to DHSEM.  The disclosure should include both direct applications for federal funding (e.g., 
applications to federal agencies) and indirect applications for such funding (e.g., applications to state agencies that will be 
sub-awarding federal funds). This information is needed to help avoid any inappropriate duplication of funding. Leveraging 
multiple funding sources in a complementary manner to implement comprehensive programs or projects is encouraged 
and is not seen as inappropriate duplication. 
 
If ________________________________________ does not have any current or pending applications that was submitted 
within the last 12 months for federally funded assistance (through federal, state, or local agencies that will be sub-awarding 
Federal funds) that include requests for funding to support the same project (as mentioned in your Edward Byrne Justice 
Assistance Grant [JAG] Program grant application), and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application then, 
please certify the following statement is true, check the box and fill in your organization's name. 
 
“________________________________________ does not have pending applications submitted within the last 12 months 
for federally funded assistance, which includes requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under the 
UASI Grant Program, and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application."  □ TRUE  
 
If ________________________________________ does have a current or pending application as described above, please 
check the most appropriate box below and provide the following information in a separate document using the example 
outlined below with all pending or awarded applications submitted within the last 12 months. □ YES □ NO 
 
Grantees that have pending or awarded applications must show: 

1. The Federal or State funding agency. 

2. The solicitation name/project name. 
3. The point of contact information at the applicable funding agency. 

 
EXAMPLE 

Federal or State Funding 
Agency 

Project Name Point of Contact at 
Funding Agency 

Application Date 

    
 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 
 

Name (Print): __________________________________     Signature: _________________________________________  

 

Job Title: _______________________________________   Date: _____________________         
 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 29 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT K 
FINAL CLOSE-OUT FINANCIAL REPORT  

 



Date

Line
Subrecipient 

Contract 
Number

Category Description of Product/Services
FTE (# if subject 

to Personnel 
Cap)

Subject to 
Personnel Cap

 ($ Amount)
EHP (YorN)

Line Item Cost 
Attributable to 
Organization 

(UASI)

Proposed Change 
to UASI Budget 

 (+/-)

New Budget After 
Proposed Change 

(UASI)

LETPA (UASI)
 ($ Amount)

1 Equipment 0 -$  N -$  -$  -$  -$  

2 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

3 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

4 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

5 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

6 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

7 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

8 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

9 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

10 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

-$          -$          -$            -$            

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/government/grant/bulletins/info358.pdf

2017 Homeland Security Grant Program - Urban Area Security Initiative
Attachment A:  Budget Detail Worksheet

 TOTAL PROJECT REQUEST 

__x_ New (1st submission)
___  Updated/corrected
___  FINAL

Subrecipient Name

Project Subtotal

Category Legend Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Information

NOTE:  Once the New Budget Total has 
been approved, you will use that total 
as your total cost column numbers.

Planning https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html   Click on FY 2017 HSGP NOFO_6 1 17 900 FINAL.pdf
Organization
Equipment (Provide AEL #) Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Activity (LETPA) Definition
Training See Page 62 of the NOFO
Exercises
M&A Personnel Cap Definition

EXHIBIT K - SAMPLE PAGE OF FINAL CLOSEOUT REPORT
FULL REPORT WILL BE EMAILED TO SUBRECIPIENT

https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUBAWARD AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE
OF BURR RIDGE AND THE COUNTY OF COOK FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION 
SECURITY UPGRADES (GRANT CONTRACT #769-2019-10663-20236054b) 

WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge (“Village”) and the County 
of Cook acting on behalf of the State of Illinois through the 
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“Cook 
County”), desire to enter into a Subaward Agreement (Exhibit A), 
pertaining to the award of certain Urban Area Security Initiative 
funds awarded to the Village to utilize for costs relating to 
planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercise needs to 
prevent, protect against, mitigate, respond to, and recover from 
acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events (“Eligible 
Costs”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the said Agreement Cook County shall 
provide an amount not to exceed $48,000.00 to the Village for said 
Eligible Costs; and  

WHEREAS, in order to receive such funds the Village will 
allocate an amount not greater than $16,000.00 of non-Federal funds 
towards the said Eligible Costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator and the Board of Trustees 
believe and hereby declare that it is in the best interest of the 
Village and its residents to approve said Agreement and shall 
allocate the amount not greater than $16,000.00 of non-Federal 
funds towards said Eligible Costs to receive said Funds; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

ADOPTED this 8th day of June, 2020, by a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT:  

APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2020, by the Mayor of the 

Village of Burr Ridge. 

    Mayor 
ATTEST: 

   Deputy Village Clerk

7B



Burr Ridge-20236054b-17UASICOOK - 
2019 Subrecipient Agreement 

2017 HSGP GRANT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMW-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

AWARDED 10/01/2017 

Page 1 of 29 

TONI PRECKWINKLE 
PRESIDENT 

Cook County Board 
of Commissioners

WILLIAM M. BARNES, Jr 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Department of Homeland Security 
and Emergency Management 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF COOK 
AND 

THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS 

THIS SUBAWARD AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the County of Cook 
(“County”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, acting through its Department of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“DHSEM”), and the Village of Burr Ridge, a 
municipal corporation in the State of Illinois, (“Subrecipient”), by and through its Village 
Administrator. 

 RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the U.S.  Department of Homeland Security (“DHS” or “Federal Awarding Agency”), 
through its Grant Programs Directorate (“GPD”) administers the Homeland Security Grant Program 
(“HSGP”), which includes the Urban Area Security Initiative (“UASI”) grant program. 

WHEREAS, DHS awarded the State of Illinois (“State”), through its Illinois Emergency Management 
Agency (“IEMA”), a 2017 UASI grant, Federal grant # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Agreement No. 2017UASICOOK (“2017 Grant Agreement”), a copy of which 
agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A, IEMA has awarded the County 2017 UASI grant funds in an 
amount not exceeding $20,361,280.17 (“2017 Grant”) to utilize for costs related to the 
planning, organization, equipment. training, and exercise needs that prevent, protect against, mitigate, 
respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events; and 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to subaward a portion of the 2017 UASI Grant (“Subaward”) to 
Subrecipient as further detailed in this Agreement;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipts and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

The above recitals are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof. 



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 2 of 29 

ARTICLE II  
SUBRECIPIENT INFORMATION AND CERTIFICATION 

2.1. Nature of Entity; FEIN Number; and DUNS Number.  Subrecipient certifies the following 
information is true and accurate: 

Subrecipient is ☒ a unit of government, ☐ an institution of higher education, ☐ a nonprofit 
organization;  

Subrecipient’s correct FEIN is 36-2517422; and 

Subrecipient’s correct DUNS number is 178938007. 

2.2. Standing and Authority. Subrecipient warrants that: 

(a) Subrecipient has the requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
all documents to be executed by it regarding this Agreement, to perform its obligations
hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the other documents to be executed by
Subrecipient regarding this Agreement, and the performance by Subrecipient of its obligations
hereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary entity action.

(c) It recognizes this Agreement and all other documents related to this Agreement, including the
2017 Grant Agreement, all applicable Federal laws, regulations, rules, and guidance, constitute
the legal, valid and binding obligations of Subrecipient enforceable against Subrecipient in
accordance with their respective terms.

2.3 Certification. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient certifies:  

i. All representations made in this Agreement are true and correct and

ii. All funds awarded pursuant to this Agreement shall be used only for the purpose(s)
described herein.

Subrecipient acknowledges its subaward is made solely upon this certification and that any false 
statements, misrepresentations, or material omissions shall be the basis for immediate termination of this 
Agreement and repayment of all funds awarded to Subrecipient. 



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 3 of 29 

ARTICLE III  
SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

3.1 Term and Extension.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2019 
(“Effective Date”) and shall expire on July 31, 2020 (“Expiration Date”), unless terminated pursuant to 
this Agreement.  This Agreement may only be extended upon the written agreement of the parties and as 
permitted by DHS at its sole discretion.  In no event shall payments be made for obligations incurred, 
equipment purchased, or work performed before the Effective Date or after the Expiration Date of this 
Agreement.   

3.2 Purpose of Subaward.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Subrecipient 2017 UASI Grant 
funds for the allowable costs of the Subrecipient’s project (“Project”) described in its Scope of Project 
and Budget Detail Worksheet (“Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet”), attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

3.3 Amount of Subaward and Use of Funds; Subrecipient Matching Funds.  The Subaward is for an 
amount not to exceed $48,000.00 and shall be used only to implement the Project, Village of Burr 
Ridge Public Works Department - Water Distribution Security Upgrades, in conformance with this 
Agreement and for no other purpose.  Subrecipient agrees to match the amount of the award with non-
Federal funds in the amount of $16,000.00. 

3.4 Grant Assurances; Other Requirements.  
(a) Subrecipient shall comply with all the conditions and limitations set forth in the 2017 UASI Grant
Agreement.

(b) In addition to complying with terms and conditions of the 2017 UASI Grant Agreement,
Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable statutes, regulations, executive orders, requirements,
policies, guides, guidelines, information bulletins, County policies and requirements and any conditions
imposed by DHS and IEMA (collectively “Requirements”) including but not limited to the following:

i. Department of Homeland Security Notice of Funding Opportunity Fiscal Year 2017
Homeland Security Grant Program
(https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992)

ii. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”)
(https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-
part200.pdf)

iii. The Department of Homeland Security’s Standard Terms and Conditions for Fiscal Year
2017
(https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%2

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf


  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 4 of 29 

 
 

0Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-
17.pdf)  

 
iv. Illinois Emergency Management Agency Federal Grants Policy Manual 

(https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy 
Manual.pdf)  

All Requirements applicable to the Subaward are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference 
as if fully set forth herein.   
 
(c) By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees it is assumed to have read, 
understood, and accepted all Requirements as binding. 
 
3.5 Administrative Requirements.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the County is acting as 
a "pass-through entity" (as such term is defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.74) for this Subaward and that the 
County shall have the rights and obligations relating to this Subaward and its administration as set forth 
in this Agreement and in the Uniform Guidance.  

3.6 NIMS Implementation and Reporting. Subrecipients receiving HSGP funding are required to 
implement the National Incident Management System (“NIMS”). FY 2017 HSGP recipients must use 
standardized resource management concepts for resource typing, credentialing, and an inventory to 
facilitate the effective identification, dispatch, deployment, tracking and recovery of resources.  Sample 
Resource Typing Form can be found in Exhibit C. (The NIMS Training Program and the NIMS 
Implementation Objectives can be found at https://www.fema.gov/training-0 and  
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting, respectively.  Refer to the DHSEM Grant 
Guidance Manual for further information.)  

3.7 Procurement Requirements.  Subrecipient shall follow its own procurement requirements if those 
requirements comply with all applicable federal and State of Illinois, County and local laws, statutes, 
regulations, requirements, policies, guides, guidelines and instructions, including the most recent 
restrictions on the purchase of general purpose equipment and on purchases of specified controlled 
equipment.  See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 
 
3.8 Equipment List Requirements.  Subrecipient may only purchase equipment listed on the DHS 
Authorized Equipment List (AEL), a list of equipment types allowed under the HSGP consisting of 21 
equipment categories.  The AEL can be found at https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list.   
 
3.9 Accounting Requirements.  Subrecipient shall maintain effective control and accountability over 
all funds, equipment, property, and other assets under this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall keep records 
sufficient to permit the tracking of funds to ensure that expenditures are made in accordance with this 
Agreement and federal requirements. 
 

https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/training-0
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 5 of 29 

3.10 Financial Management and System of Internal Controls. As prescribed at 2 C.F.R. § 200.303, 
Subrecipient must: 

i. Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides
reasonable assurance that it is managing the Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

ii. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal awards.

iii. Evaluate and monitor its compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of Federal awards.

iv. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance
identified in audit findings.

v. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other
information DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County designate as sensitive or Subrecipient
considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state and local laws regarding privacy
and obligations of confidentiality.

3.11 Audit Requirements.  

(a) If Subrecipient expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards (from all sources including pass-
through subawards) during a fiscal year, Subrecipient shall arrange for a single organization-wide audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 C.F.R. Subpart F.  Such audit must be submitted to
DHSEM no later than nine (9) months after the end of the Subrecipient’s fiscal year.

(b) If Subrecipient expends less than $750,000 in Federal awards during its fiscal year and is not
subject to the audit requirements in subsection (a), Subrecipient must have a financial statement audit
conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS); if Subrecipient expends
between $500,000 and $749,999 in Federal and State awards combined, Subrecipient must have a financial
statement audit conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards
(GAGAS). Subrecipient shall submit these financial statement audit reports to DHSEM either within,

i. 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s) or
ii. 180 calendar days after the end of the audit period, whichever is earlier.

3.12 Project or Budget Revisions.  The Subrecipient shall only use the funds provided under this 
Agreement for the itemized expenditures identified in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet 
(Exhibit B) and shall not spend more than the specified amount for each such itemized expenditure. The 
Subrecipient may request, in writing, approval from DHSEM to modify the expenditures itemized or the 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 6 of 29 

 
 

amounts specified in any Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  Any request for project or budget revisions 
must be submitted for review and approval to the County using the Program Project Modification Request 
Form (Exhibit E).  This request shall be submitted in the form and manner specified by the DHSEM.  The 
Subrecipient must obtain DHSEM’s written approval prior to making an expenditure that is not in 
compliance with a Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet. 
 
3.13 Project Completion. Subrecipient shall complete the Project (“Project Completion”), which 
includes, but is not limited to ordering, accepting delivery, installing equipment and full completion of 
performance of any service agreements or contracts, by the Expiration Date of this Agreement ("Project 
Completion Deadline"). The Subrecipient shall pay out the funds, submit to DHSEM a final report and 
documentation of expenditures made, and submit to DHSEM all requests for payment no later than forty-
five (45) days after the Project Completion Deadline.  DHSEM has the discretion, and reserves the right, 
to not reimburse the Subrecipient for an expenditure that does not comply with all the requirements 
established in this paragraph. 
 
3.14 Close Out Financial Report.  Subrecipient must submit to DHSEM a final close-out financial report 
and narrative using the format provided in Exhibit K by July 17, 2020. 
 
3.15 Record Keeping.  Subrecipient shall (1) maintain records for equipment, non- expendable personal 
property, and real property and (2) as often as deemed necessary by DHS, FEMA, IEMA, County or any 
of their duly authorized representatives, permit DHS, FEMA, IEMA, Auditor General, Attorney General 
or any of their duly authorized representatives to have full access to and the right to examine any pertinent 
books, documents, papers and records of the Subrecipient involving transactions related to this 
Agreement. This provision requires, at a minimum, that Subrecipient shall: 

i. Cooperate with any compliance review or complaint investigation conducted by the DHS, 
FEMA, IEMA or the County, 

ii. Maintain appropriate backup documentation, and 
iii. Comply with all other special reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements as may 

be required by DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County. 
Subrecipient acknowledges the funds provided by this Agreement are federal pass-through funds that must 
be accounted for in the jurisdiction's single audit, if required, pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.   
 
3.16 Remedies for Noncompliance.   
 
(a) Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that, in the event Subrecipient fails to comply with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement or with any Requirements referenced in Section 3.4, above, the 
Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County shall have the right to take one or more of the actions set 
forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.338.  Such actions may include, without limitation, the withholding of cash 
payments, suspension and/or termination of the Subaward, and the disallowing of certain costs incurred 
under the Subaward.  Any costs incurred by Subrecipient during a suspension or after termination of the 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 7 of 29 

 
 

Subaward shall not be considered allowable under the Subaward unless allowed under 2 C.F.R. § 200.342.  
Subrecipient shall be liable to the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County for any Subaward funds 
used by Subrecipient in violation of any Requirements, and Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the County for any sums the Federal Awarding Agency or IEMA determines Subrecipient used 
in violation of such Requirements. 
 
(b) Subrecipient shall be granted the opportunity to object to and challenge the taking of any remedial 
action by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County in accordance with the provisions set forth 
in 2 C.F.R. § 200.341. 
 
3.17  Termination.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the Subaward, and any obligation to 
disburse to or reimburse Subrecipient in connection thereto, may be terminated in whole or in part by 
DHS, IEMA or the County as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate 
the Subaward only as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  In the event the Subaward is terminated, all 
obligations and requirements of this Agreement and the Subaward shall survive and continue in full force 
and effect with respect to any portion of the Subaward remaining prior to such termination, including, 
without limitation, the closeout and post closeout requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 
PAYMENT 

4.1 Basis of Payment.  The Subrecipient will be reimbursed on a cost reimbursement basis for 
allowable Project costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient pursuant to the Scope/Budget Detail 
Worksheet (Exhibit B). The Subrecipient must submit reimbursement request forms to DHSEM for each 
reimbursement request as detailed below in 4.2. 
 
4.2 Method of Payment.    
 
(a) Subrecipient will submit requests for reimbursement identifying the payment due for the Project 
costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient in such detail and supported by such documents as 
the County may require using the Reimbursement Request Form (Exhibit G), including Original Invoices 
and Proof of Payment (See, Exhibit H for examples) and the Equipment Inventory Form (Exhibit I) if 
necessary. If the subrecipient paid for their Projects costs using checks, then a copy of the cancelled 
check(s) – front and back (showing bank stamp) – should be submitted.  If a credit card was used, then 
card receipt along with the credit card statement should be submitted.  If a bank transfer is used, then the 
journal entry from the agencies accounting system should be submitted.  The requests for reimbursement 
and supporting documents should be sent via email to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov. 
 
(b) The County will reject any reimbursement requests that include costs that were incurred or paid 
by any party other than the Subrecipient. The County will use reasonable efforts to respond to the 
Subrecipient’s request for reimbursement within 30 calendar days after submission by either (i) processing 

mailto:DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov


  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 8 of 29 

 
 

the payment or (ii) notifying the Subrecipient of the way in which the request is deficient and the 
adjustments the Subrecipient must make to receive payment. Within 15 days after receiving such 
notification from the County, and after completing such adjustment(s), the Subrecipient may resubmit a 
revised request for reimbursement form and the County thereafter will use reasonable efforts to respond 
to the Subrecipient’s request within 15 days.  
 
4.3 Waiver of Payment.  The Subrecipient waives all rights to payment if the request for 
reimbursement is submitted after the termination or completion of this Agreement. Costs incurred by the 
Subrecipient after the Expiration Date or after earlier termination of this Agreement will not be paid by 
the County.  
 
4.4. Allowable Costs.  All costs allowed by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA and/or DHSEM are 
not considered final and may be disallowed upon the completion of audits ordered or performed by the 
County or the appropriate federal agency. In the event of a disallowance, the Subrecipient will refund the 
amount disallowed to the County.  
 
4.5 Availability of Appropriation; Sufficiency of Funds.  This Agreement is contingent upon and 
subject to the availability of sufficient funds. The County may terminate or suspend this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, without penalty or further payment being required, if (i) sufficient funds for this 
Agreement have not been appropriated or otherwise made available to the County by the Federal funding 
source or (ii) the County determines that funds will not or may not be available for payment.  The County 
shall provide notice, in writing, to Subrecipient of any such funding failure and its election to terminate 
or suspend this Agreement as soon as practicable.  Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Section 
will be effective upon the date of the written notice unless otherwise indicated. 
 
4.6 Certification. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.415, each invoice and report submitted by Subrecipient 
must contain the following certification by an official authorized to legally bind the Subrecipient: 
 

By signing this report/payment request, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief 
that the report/payment request is true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, 
disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms 
and conditions of the Federal or State award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, 
civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. 
Code Title 18, Section 1001and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). 
 

4.7 Overpayment.   If DHSEM or a subrecipient determines there has been an overpayment of federal 
preparedness funds, duplicate payment, or any other instance in which the subrecipient has received funds 
that are not associated with an authorized expenditure, this amount must be returned to DHSEM.  Any 
interest earned on the overpayment in excess of the maximum that may be retained shall be remitted to 
the DHSEM according to federal rules and regulations. 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 9 of 29 

 
 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Subrecipient represents and warrants each of the following as of the date of this Agreement and at all 
times throughout the term of this Agreement: 
 

Legal Authority.  Subrecipient’s execution of this Agreement is authorized by a resolution, 
ordinance or other evidence of legal authority from the Subrecipient’s governing body. The 
signature of the individual signing on the Subrecipient’s behalf has been made with complete 
and full authority to commit the Subrecipient to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Subrecipient must provide evidence of signature authority and the Subrecipient Signature 
Authorization Form (Exhibit F) to the County with the executed Agreement. 

 
No Misstatements. No document furnished or to be furnished by Subrecipient to the County in 
connection with this Agreement, any reimbursement request or any other document relating to 
any of the foregoing, contains or will contain any untrue statement of material fact or omits or 
will omit a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading, 
under the circumstances under which any such statement shall have been made. 

 
Eligibility to Receive Federal Funds. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient represents 
and warrants it is eligible to receive federal funds, and specifically certifies as follows:   
 
(a) Subrecipient is not suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participation in 

federal assistance programs, as required by Executive Order 12549 and 12689, 
“Debarment and Suspension” and implemented by the DOJ at 2 CFR Part 2867.  
 

(b) Subrecipient complies with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, Limitation on Use of Appropriated 
Funds to Influence Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions, as implemented 
by the DOJ at 28 CFR Part 69. 
 

(c) Subrecipient complies with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as amended, 41 
U.S.C. § 701 et seq., and will continue to provide a drug-free workplace as required 
under that Act and implementing regulations. See, 2 CFR Part 182, Subpart B. 
 

(d) Subrecipient is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt, including without 
limitation, delinquent audit disallowances, loans, taxes, and any outstanding debts 
with the Treasury. 

 
Subrecipient acknowledges that the foregoing representations, warranties and certifications of 
eligibility to receive federal funds are material terms of the Agreement. 
 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 10 of 29 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 
REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

Subrecipient shall be responsible for compliance with the certifications and assurances enumerated in any 
of the Requirements to the extent that same apply to Subrecipient including without limitation the 
following:  

a. No Pending Application(s) Disclosure.  Subrecipient has no pending request(s) for funding to 
support the same project being funded under this Agreement and that seeks to cover the identical 
cost items outlined in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  If Subrecipient cannot so 
certify, it shall complete, execute and submit a Disclosure of Pending Applications form (Exhibit 
J) upon execution of this Agreement.  

 
b. Debarment. Subrecipient certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Agreement by any Federal 
department or agency. 
 

c. Criminal Convictions. Subrecipient certifies that neither it nor any managerial agent of 
Subrecipient has been convicted of a felony under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or that at least 
five (5) years have passed since the date of the conviction.  
 

d. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006. Subrecipient certifies that it is in 
compliance with the terms and requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 6101. 
 

e. Lobbying and Political Activities.  Subrecipient certifies that: 
 

i. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection with awarding any Federal Contract, the making of 
any federal grant, the making federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and 
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
ii. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress relating to this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, 
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.  See, 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf 

 

https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 11 of 29 

iii. The undersigned shall require that the language of the foregoing two subsections be included
in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

f. Hatch Act.  Subrecipient certifies it will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§
1501-1508 and §§ 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with federal funds.

g. Privacy and Personally Identifiable Information.  Subrecipient agrees to comply with all
confidentiality requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 3789g and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to
collection, use, and revelation of data or information. Subrecipient further agrees, as a condition
of Subaward approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. § 22.23.  See, https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf.

ARTICLE VII 
CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Subrecipient will comply, as applicable, with all federal and state laws and regulations relating to civil 
rights protections and nondiscrimination. These include, but are not limited to: 

a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., which
provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.  The DHS regulations for this statute
are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.,
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of gender in educational programs and activities. The
DHS regulations for this statute are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

c) The Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which
prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities,
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing
entities.  The implementing regulation for this statute is codified at 28 C.F.R. Part 35.

d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.   The FEMA regulation for this statute is codified at 44 C.F.R. Part 7, Subpart E.

https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf


  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 12 of 29 

 
 

e) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which 
provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States will, solely 
by reason of the disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
The DHS regulation for this statute is codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 15.  
 
f) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under 
which the application for Federal assistance is being made and any other applicable statutes.  

ARTICLE VIII 
MAINTENANCE AND ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS; MONITORING 

8.1 Records Retention. Subrecipient shall maintain for three (3) years from the date of submission of 
the final expenditure report, adequate books, all financial records and, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Subaward, adequate to comply with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333, 
unless a different retention period is specified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. If any litigation, claim or audit related 
to the purchases contemplated herein is started before the expiration of the retention period, the records 
must be retained until all litigation, claims or audit exceptions involving the records have been resolved 
and final action taken. 
 
8.2 Accessibility of Records. Subrecipient, in compliance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, shall make books, 
records, related papers, supporting documentation and personnel relevant to this Agreement available to 
authorized County representatives, the County's Inspector General, Federal authorities, any person 
identified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, and any other person as may be authorized by the County (including 
auditors) or by the City of Chicago. Subrecipient shall cooperate fully in any such audit or inquiry. 
 
8.3 Failure to Maintain Books and Records. Failure to maintain books, records and supporting 
documentation, as described in this Article VIII, shall establish a presumption in favor of the State for the 
recovery of any funds paid by the State under this Agreement for which adequate books, records and 
supporting documentation are not available to support disbursement. 
 
8.4 Monitoring and Access to Information.  Subrecipient must monitor its activities to assure 
compliance with applicable Requirements and to assure its performance expectations are being achieved. 
County shall monitor the activities of Subrecipient to assure compliance with all requirements and 
performance expectations of the award. An annual monitoring visit is expected and will be scheduled with 
a 30-day notification.  Subrecipient shall timely submit all financial and performance reports, and shall 
supply, upon the County's request, documents and information relevant to the Subaward.  The County 
may make site visits as warranted by program needs. See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.328 and § 200.331. 
  



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 13 of 29 

ARTICLE IX  
EQUIPMENT OR PROPERTY REQUIREMENTS 

9.1 Equipment and Procurement.  Equipment acquired pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to 
the requirements of Title 2 C.F.R. § 200.313. For the purposes of this Article t, "Equipment" is defined as 
tangible nonexpendable property, having a useful life of more than one year which costs $5,000 or more 
per unit. Items costing less than $5,000 but acquired under the "Equipment" category of the Grant must 
also be listed on the Equipment Listing   

9.2 Use.  Equipment must be used by Subrecipient in the program or project for which it was acquired 
as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by Federal funds. 
When no longer needed for the original program or project, the Equipment may be used in other activities 
currently or previously supported by a Federal agency. 

9.3 Availability for Like Programs.  Subrecipient must make Equipment available for use on other like 
projects or programs currently or previously supported by the Federal Government, providing such use 
will not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it was originally acquired. First 
preference for other use must be given to other programs or projects supported by the awarding agency.  
In addition, in accordance with applicable DHS, FEMA, IEMA and Cook County policies and 
requirements, Subrecipient shall make the Equipment and supplies available to other authorized entities, 
including call out for mutual aid and interagency regional emergency responses. 

9.4 Prohibition against Disposition/Encumbrance. Subrecipient is prohibited from, and may not sell, 
transfer, encumber (other than original financing) or otherwise dispose of said equipment, material, or real 
property during the Term without prior approval of the County. Any real property acquired using Grant 
Funds must comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.311.

9.5. Equipment Listing.  Subrecipient must maintain a list of each piece of Equipment acquired with 
its Subaward. The Equipment Listing must be kept up to date at all times. Any changes must be recorded 
in the Equipment Listing within ten (10) business days and the updated list shall immediately be forwarded 
to DHSEM. Equipment records must be maintained that include: (a) a description of the property, (b) a 
serial number or other identification number, (c) the source of property, (d) who holds title, (e) the 
acquisition date, (f) cost of the property, (g) percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property, 
(h) the location, (i) use and condition of the property, (j) DHSEM asset tag number, and (k) any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property. Records must be retained by
the Subrecipient in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.313 (d) (1).
9.6 Identification Decal.  All Equipment obtained under this Agreement must have an appropriate
identification decal and asset tag (provided by DHSEM) affixed to it and, when practical, must be affixed
where it is readily visible.

9.7 Inventory.  A physical inventory of the Equipment must be taken by the Subrecipient and the 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 14 of 29 

 
 

results reconciled with the Equipment Listing at least once every two years or prior to any site visit by 
Federal or County auditors/monitors. The Subrecipient is required to submit a letter certifying as to the 
accuracy of the Equipment Listing to DHSEM, in the frequency as above.  
 
9.8. Transfer of Equipment. County shall have the right to require that Subrecipient transfer to County 
any equipment, including title thereto, purchased in whole with Subaward funds, if County determines 
that Subrecipient has not met the conditions of 2 C.F.R. § 200.439(a). County shall notify Subrecipient in 
writing should County require the transfer of such equipment.  Upon such notification by County, and 
upon receipt or delivery of such equipment to County, Subrecipient will be deemed to have transferred 
the equipment to County as if Subrecipient had executed a bill of sale therefor. 

ARTICLE X 
INSURANCE 

10.1 Insurance coverage. As required by 2 C.F.R. § 310, Subrecipient must, at a minimum, provide 
insurance sufficient to cover the replacement cost of any and all real or personal property, or both, 
purchased or, otherwise acquired, or improved in whole or in part, with funds disbursed pursuant to this 
Agreement.   
 
10.2. Claims. If a claim is submitted for losses related to real or personal property, or both, purchased 
in whole with funds from this Agreement, any recovered monies shall be surrendered to County. 

ARTICLE XI 
INDEMNIFICATION; LIABILITY 

11.1 Indemnification.  Subrecipient agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its 
Commissioners, officials, employees, agents and representatives, and their respective heirs, successors 
and assigns, from and against any and all costs, expenses, attorney's fees, losses, damages and liabilities 
incurred or suffered directly or indirectly from or attributable to any claims arising out of or incident to 
the Subrecipient’s performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, or the acts or omissions of the 
Subrecipient’s officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees or invitees.  Subrecipient 
expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance protection required of the 
Subrecipient, or otherwise provided by the Subrecipient, shall in no way limit the responsibility to 
indemnify the County as hereinabove provided.  
11.2 Liability.  The County assumes no liability for actions of the Subrecipient under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the negligent acts and omissions of the Subrecipient's agents, employees, and 
subcontractors in their performance of the Subrecipient's duties as described under this Agreement. In 
addition, the County makes no representations, or warranties, express or implied, as to fitness for use, 
condition of, or suitability of any equipment purchased pursuant to this Agreement, except as those 
representations are made by the manufacturer of said equipment. As to the nature and condition of said 
equipment, in the use of said equipment, the Subrecipient agrees to hold County harmless for any defects 



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 15 of 29 

or misapplications. To the extent allowed by law, the Subrecipient agrees to hold harmless County against 
any and all liability, loss, damage, costs, or expenses, including attorney's fees, arising from the intentional 
torts, negligence, or breach of the Agreement by the Subrecipient, with the exception of acts performed in 
conformance with an explicit, written directive of the County or DHSEM. 

ARTICLE XII 
NOTICE 

12.1 The individuals identified in this section shall be authorized to act as the liaisons of the County 
and the Subrecipient, respectively, with respect to this Agreement:  

Notices to the County/DHSEM shall be addressed to: 
Ellen O’Connor, Grant Coordinator  
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
69 West Washington Street, Suite 2600  
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov 

Notices to Subrecipient shall be addressed to: 
David Preissig, Director of Public Works & Village Engineer 
Village of Burr Ridge 
7660 County Line Rd 
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 
dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov 

12.2 The Subrecipient must notify the County of any significant change in the Subrecipient’s 
organizational structure. Significant changes include, but are not limited to, changes in:  

i. The official(s) to whom notice regarding the Agreement is provided and their mailing
address; and

ii. The Subrecipient’s leadership, key staff and/or the Subrecipient’s program sites, including
the Chief or executive director, site director, fiscal director; name, ownership, Federal
employer identification number (FEIN), DUNS number or taxpayer certification; legal status
(including not-for-profit status); site address or agency official address or telephone
numbers; and the location or storage site of any Equipment purchased through this
Agreement.

Such communication must be directed within ten (10) calendar days of such occurrence (or, in the case of 
changes in legal status (including not-for-profit status), address, name, ownership, FEIN or taxpayer 
certification, forty-five (45) days in advance) to the County.  No promise or undertaking made in this 
Agreement is an assurance that the County agrees to continue this Agreement should the Subrecipient 

mailto:ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov
mailto:dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov


Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 16 of 29 

reorganize, change owners, or otherwise substantially change the character of the Subrecipient’s structure, 
function, or purpose. 

ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Assignment Prohibited. Subrecipient acknowledges that this Agreement (including Subrecipient’s 
right to receive payments hereunder) may not be sold, assigned, or transferred in any manner by 
Subrecipient.  Any actual or attempted sale, assignment, or transfer by Subrecipient without the prior 
written approval of the County shall render this Agreement null, void and of no further effect. 

13.2 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended at any time during its Term by mutual 
consent of the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties. 

13.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, its other provisions shall not 
be affected thereby. 

13.4 No Waiver. No failure of either Party to assert any right or remedy hereunder will act as a waiver 
of either Party's right to assert such right or remedy at a later time or constitute a course of business upon 
which either Party may rely for the purpose of denial of such a right or remedy. 

13.5 Applicable Law; Claims. This Agreement and all subsequent amendments thereto, if any, shall be 
governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.  The County does not waive 
sovereign immunity by entering into this Agreement. 

13.6 Compliance with Law. This Agreement and Subrecipient's obligations and services hereunder are 
hereby made and must be performed in compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, including, 
without limitation, Federal regulations and Cook  

13.7 Compliance with Freedom of Information Act. Upon request, Subrecipient shall make available to 
the County all documents in its possession that the County deems necessary to comply with requests made 
under the Freedom of Information Act. (5 ILCS 140/7(2)).  

13.8 Office of the Independent Inspector General.  Subrecipient agrees it will abide by all provisions of 
the Cook County Code of Ordinances pertaining to the authority of the Office of the Independent Inspector 
General and acknowledges it is unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of said office to refuse 
to cooperate with the Independent Inspector General.  

13.9 Headings. Article and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 
and are not intended to define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof.  
13.10 Attachments.  This Agreement has the following attachments which are incorporated into this 



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 17 of 29 

Agreement as if set out: 

Exhibit A: 2017 UASI Grant Agreement 
Exhibit B: Scope of Services and Budget Detail Worksheet 
Exhibit C: NIMS – Sample Resource Typing Form and Guidance 
Exhibit D: Sample of Authorized Equipment List with Hyperlink 
Exhibit E: Program/Project Modification Request Form 
Exhibit F: Subrecipient Signature Authorization Form  
Exhibit G: Reimbursement Request Form 
Exhibit H: Sample of Proof of Payment & Copy of Original Invoice 
Exhibit I: Equipment Inventory Form 
Exhibit J: 
Exhibit K: 

Disclosure of Pending Applications Form 
Final Close-Out Financial Report 

In the event of any inconsistencies or conflict between the language of this Agreement and the 
attachments, the language of the attachments shall control, but only to the extent of the conflict or 
inconsistency. 

13.11 Entire Agreement. Subrecipient and County acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the 
entire agreement between them and that no promises, terms, or conditions not recited, incorporated or 
referenced herein, including prior agreements or oral discussions, shall be binding upon either 
Subrecipient or County. 

13.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be considered to be one and the same agreement, binding on all Parties hereto, notwithstanding that all 
Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Duplicated signatures, signatures transmitted via 
facsimile, or signatures contained in a Portable Document Format (PDF) document shall be deemed 
original for all purposes. 



Burr Ridge-20236054b-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 18 of 29 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the parties through their 
authorized representatives as set forth below.  

ON BEHALF OF COOK COUNTY: 

__________________________________ 
William M. Barnes Jr., Executive Director   
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management  

Date: ______________________________ 

ON BEHALF OF THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS: 

___________________________________ 
J. Douglas Pollock, Village Administrator

Date: ______________________________ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 19 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
2017 UASI GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

  





































































  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 20 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND BUDGET DETAIL WORKSHEET 

  



EXHIBIT B 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient - Scope of Services & Budget Detail Worksheet 

    Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Scope of Services: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Budget Detail: 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Sub-Recipient DUNS Number: ________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Name (Print): __________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Signature: _____________________________________________  

Operating Expenses Award Amount 

Training $ 

Consumable Expenses (Training) $ 

Exercise $ 

Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) $ 

Equipment Less Than $5,000 $ 

Supplies $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

Sub-Total $ 

Capital Equipment (Asset More Than $5,000) 

Computer Equipment $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ 

Security Upgrades $ 

Other Equipment $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

Sub-Total $ 

TOTAL AWARDED $ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 21 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
NIMS – SAMPLE RESOURCE TYPING FORM  



Equipment or 
Training

NIMS Typed Discipline 
or State/Local 

Discipline/Community 
of Interest Supported

NIMS Typed Resource 
Supported

NIMS 
Type #

State/Local Typed 
Resource Supported 

(if applicable)

Typed Equipment 
Purchased

# of Personnel 
Trained for 

Typed Teams

# of Typed 
Teams Trained

Sustain Current 
Capability/Add New 

Capability
Core Capability Supported Cost of Purchase Comments

Grant-Funded Typed Resource Report

Tool Instructions:
1. Each row should contain one piece of equipment purchased with or training held using grant funds for current reporting period. Only report purchases and trainings that have already been completed and funds have been expended and drawn down.
2. Choose from the drop-down menu whether the line is for equipment or training, the NIMS Typed Discipline, NIMS Typed Resource and NIMS Type #, as published by FEMA's National Integration Center (NIC) that the equipment supports, if NIMS Typed.
2a. If equipment or training is not NIMS Typed, choose "State/Local Other" in drop-down menu and provide State/Local typing or Community of Interest information in the Comments.
3. Choose whether the piece of equipment or training is to "Sustain Current" existing capabilities or will increase or "Add New" capability .
4. Choose the Core Capability or Capabilities that the Typed Resource supports. If more than one Core Capability is applicable, expand the columns by clicking the '+' above the 'Cost of Purchase' column to show more 'Core Capability Supported' columns.
5. Enter the cost of the equipment or training.
6. Enter additional information in the Comments, including a brief description of whether the training or equipment purchased sustains existing capabilities; adds or improves an existing capability; or builds a new capability from scratch.

SAMPLE

EXHIBIT C



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 22 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT D 
SAMPLE FEMA - AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT LIST (Use Hyperlink) 

  



EXHIBIT D
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management

(SAMPLE) FEMA Authorized Equipment List (Partial Listing - Use Hyperlink)
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list

AEL # Title

01WF-01-COLD Outerwear, Cold Weather, Wildland Fire Fighting Protective 04HW-02-BARC Equipment, Bar Code Reading and Printing

02EX-00-EXTR Materials, Energetic, Bomb Squad Training 04HW-02-RFID Devices, Radio Frequency Identification

03OE-01-VSTO Vests, Operational 04MD-01-VCAM Camera, Video

03OE-02-FIBR Systems, Fiber Optic 04MD-02-PROJ Projector, Video

03OE-03-DAMS Devices, Containment/Diversion 04MD-03-DISP Display, Video

03OE-03-LOTO System, Lock Out/Tag Out 04SN-01-PTMS Station, Portable Meteorological

03OE-04-BALA Balaclava, Fire Resistant 04SN-01-XMIT Transmission Device, Wireless, Remote Sensor

03OE-07-ROBT Robots 04SW-04-NETW Software, Network

03OE-07-ROVL Vehicles, Remotely Operated, Land 04SW-05-SCAD System, SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)

03OE-07-SUAS System, Small Unmanned Aircraft 05AU-00-BIOM Device, Biometric User Authentication

03OE-07-UMVS System, Unmanned Maritime Vehicle 05AU-00-TOKN System, Remote Authentication

04AP-01-CADS System, Dispatch, Computer Aided 05EN-00-ECRP Software, Encryption

04AP-02-AVLS Systems, Automatic Vehicle Locating (AVL) 05EN-00-ETRN Encryption, Data Transmission

04AP-02-DGPS Device, Global Positioning System (GPS) 05HS-00-FRNS Software, Forensic

04AP-02-OAPT System, Operations Area Personnel Tracking 05HS-00-MALW Software, Malware Protection

04AP-03-GISD Data, Geospatial 05HS-00-PFWL System, Personal Firewall

04AP-03-GISS System, Geospatial Information (GIS) 05NP-00-FWAL Firewall, Network

04AP-04-RISK Software, Risk Management 05NP-00-IDPS System, Intrusion Detection/Prevention

04AP-05-CDSS Systems and Tools, ICS 05NP-00-SCAN Tools, Vulnerability Scanning

04AP-05-CRED System, Credentialing 05NP-00-SEIM System, Security Event/Incident Management

04AP-05-SVIS Software, Operational Space Visualization 05PM-00-PTCH System, Patch/Configuration Management

04AP-06-CBRN Software, CBRNE/Commercial Chemical/Hazard 06CC-01-CELL Communications and Computing Device, Handheld

04AP-06-PMOD Software, Plume Modeling 06CC-02-2WAY Device, Messaging, 2-Way Text

04AP-06-TRAF Software, Traffic Modeling 06CC-02-DSAD Device, Data Service Access

04AP-07-INVN Software, Equipment Tracking and Inventory 06CC-02-PAGE Services/Systems, Paging

04AP-08-SIMS Simulators 06CC-03-SATB Phone, Satellite Base

04AP-09-ALRT Systems, Public Notification and Warning 07ED-04-LASR Detector, Explosive, Laser-Based, Standoff

04AP-10-GNAI System, Artificial Intelligence 10PE-01-PCHG Chargers, Phone and Radio

04HW-01-INHW Hardware, Computer, Integrated 10PE-01-WCHG Chargers, Power Chair

04HW-01-MOBL Computer, Mobile Data 11RE-00-RFCB References, CBRNE

11RE-00-RFDB Databases, Reference 19AF-01-FEED Equipment and Supplies, Feeding Support

11RE-00-RFEX References, Field Expedient 19AF-01-HYGN Equipment and Supplies, Personal Hygeine

https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


AEL # Title

11RE-00-RFNC Reference Materials, Non-CBRNE 19AF-01-MOB Equipment, Mobility Support

12TR-00-H2OT Trailer, Water/Source 19AF-02-BACC Bedding and Accessories, Service Animal

12TR-00-MOVR Mover, Prime, for Equipment/Water Trailers 19AF-02-RELF Relieving Stations, Service Animal

12TR-00-TEQP Trailer, Equipment 19FD-01-IRAT Rations, Initial Deployment

12VE-00-ABUS Vehicle, Mass Casualty Transport 19FD-01-URAT Rations, Unit-Feeding

12VE-00-CMDV Vehicle, Command, Mobile 19FD-01-WATR Water, Potable, Packaged

12VE-00-MISS Vehicle, Specialized Mission 19GN-00-BGPK Bags / Packs

12VE-00-SPEC Vehicle, Specialized Emergency Management 19GN-00-COMP Compressors and Systems, Breathing Air

13IT-00-INTL Systems, Intelligence Sharing 19GN-00-FANE Fan, Intrinsically Safe, Exhaust

14CI-00-COOP System, Information Technology Contingency Operations 19GN-00-FANV Fan, Cooling/Heating/Ventilation

14EX-00-BCAN Receptacles, Trash, Blast-Resistant 19GN-00-FUEL Container, Fuel Storage

14EX-00-BSIR Systems, Building, Blast/Shock/Impact Resistant 19GN-00-H2OD System, Water Distribution

14SW-01-DOOR Doors and Gates, Impact Resistant 19GN-00-HSSF Housing, Subsistence and Sanitation

14SW-01-EXTM System, Fire Extinguisher Monitoring 19GN-00-OPCK Overpack

14SW-01-LITE Lighting, Area, Fixed 19GN-00-RFGR Refrigerator/Freezer

14SW-01-PACS System, Physical Access Control 19MH-00-BULK Equipment, Bulk Material Handling

14SW-01-SIDP Systems, Personnel Identification 19MH-00-CART Cart, Field

14SW-01-SIDV Systems, Vehicle Identification 19MH-00-CHMS Containers, Hazardous Material Shipping

14SW-01-SNSR Sensors/Alarms, System and Infrastructure Monitoring, Standalone 19MH-00-CONT Containers, Storage

14SW-01-VIDA Systems, Video Assessment, Security 19MH-00-CPAC Carts, Portable Air Cylinder

14SW-01-WALL Barriers: Fences; Jersey Walls 19MH-00-CPGC Carts, Portable Compressed Gas Cylinder

14SW-02-RADR Systems, Radar 19SS-00-SHEL Systems, Shelter, Rapid Deployment

14SW-02-SONR Systems, Sonar 19SS-00-SHEN System, Environmental Control

14SW-02-VBAR Barriers, Vessel 19SS-00-SHEP System, Collective Protective

16AC-01-ACRS Equipment and Supplies, Small Animal Capture and Restraint 20CS-01-AFIS Equipment, Fingerprint Processing and Identification

16AD-03-RFID Radio Frequency Information Devices 20CS-02-EVID Systems and Equipment, Evidence Collection

16AD-03-TAGS Tags and markers 20CS-02-SUPP Equipment and Supplies, Crime Scene Processing

17WC-00-BOAT Watercraft, CBRNE Prevention and Response 20CS-02-UVLT Equipment, Alternate Light Source Detection

18AC-00-ACFT Aircraft, CBRNE 20TE-00-NTRY Equipment, Tactical Entry

18AC-00-ACMC Equipment/Kits, Aircraft Mass Casualty Conversion 21GN-00-CCEQ Equipment, Citizen Corps

18AC-00-ACUP Equipment and Upgrades, Aircraft, CBRNE 21GN-00-CNST Consulting Services in Support of Equipment Acquisition

19AF-01-CHLD Equipment and Supplies, Infants and Children 21GN-00-INST Installation

19AF-01-COMM Equipment, Communications and Sensory Support 21GN-00-LEAS Leasing of Space for Equipment Storage

21GN-00-SHIP Shipping 21GN-00-MAIH Maintenance, HDER

21GN-00-TRNG Training 21GN-00-MAIN Maintenance

21GN-00-XMLP Programming for XML Compliance 21GN-00-OCEQ Equipment & Supplies, Information/Emergency Operations/Fusion Centers





  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 23 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
PROGRAM/PROJECT MODIFICATION REQUEST FORM 

  





EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  _________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Request Date: ________     Type of Modification: _____________    

Budget Expense Category: ______________     Scope of Services: ________________ 

Instructions - Please respond to the questions below.  Incomplete forms will not be considered.  Note: The term of the agreement 
can only be modified by DHSEM and approved by the State of Illinois (IEMA). 

1. Is the modification requested within the original approved category?  Please explain.

2. Will the modification request allow for the project to be completed within the original performance period of the project?

3. Have the original project objectives for the project been accomplished?

4. Please list all Authorized Equipment List (AEL) numbers, a brief description of the equipment, per unit cost estimate, and 
number of units (if applicable). For training costs, list the FEMA approved training course numbers that apply to this
modification (if applicable).

5. Provide a justification for the project modification.  What is the modification your organization would like to make and 
why is the project modification being requested?  Please include details.

Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below (if applicable). 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________________  Signature: _______________________________________ 

Job Title: ________________________________________    Date: __________________________________ 



EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Grant Coordinator  Director of Finance 

Name: ___________________________________         Name: _______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: ____________________________ 

□ Approved □ Denied □ Approved □ Denied

COMMENTS: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 24 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
SUBRECIPIENT SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION FORM 

  



EXHIBIT F 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Signature Authorization Form 

Name of Entity: _________________________________________________________ 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 
Contract # _________________________      FY: _______       Fund: _____________            Project:  _____________

Urban Areas Security Initiative Program (UASI)    _______________       _______________        _____________________ 
Grant Program and Year                  Grant Start Date          Grant End Date          CFDA# 

 THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY SUB-RECIPIENT 

Sub-Recipient Contact Name (Point of Contact) Agency FEIN# 

Address         DUNS # 

City, State, Zip Code Sub-Recipient  Contact  Phone#     

Sub-Recipient Contact Email Sub-Recipient Contact Fax # 

THIS DOCUMENT IS PART OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN DHSEM AND THE SUB-RECIPIENT IDENTIFIED ABOVE. 

The person whose signature is furnished below is hereby authorized to sign reimbursement request forms and other 
related documents for the UASI Grant program indicated above and funded by DHSEM via a grant award.  Upon 
acceptance of this grant award, the following information is needed to complete your grant sub-agreement and should 
be emailed to DHSEM as soon as possible to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov. 

Signatory Name (Print): ________________________________________________________ 

Signatory Titles (Print): ________________________________________________________ 

Signatory Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 

Describe any limitations on the above person's authority here: 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE OF THIS APPROVAL: ______________________________________________________ 

This form is to be completed as part of executing a Sub-Recipient agreement identified by the above fund and contract number.  Completing this form is 
one of the conditions necessary to receive funds from Cook County DHSEM. A copy of this form must be on file for all persons with authorization and 
approved by an individual of higher authority than the person being granted authority.



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 25 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT G 
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 

 
 

 
  



EXHIBIT G

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Reimbursement Request Form 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  ________________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Project Name: _________________________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Submittal Date: ______________ Submittal # _________ 

Instructions - Please use the space below to provide the amount and a description of the expense you are seeking reimbursement for in the appropriate approved expenditure category shown below. This 
form must be submitted with the supporting invoices(s) documenting the expense(s) incurred and proof that the expense(s) has been paid by you before the expense is considered for review and approval 
for reimbursement. 

Expenditure Category Total Award Amount AEL# 

Reimbursement Amount 
Requested 

Balance of Award 
Available Notes 

Operating Expense 

     Training $ $ $ 

Consumable Expenses $ $ $ 

Personal Protection 
Equipment (PPE) 

$ $ $ 

Exercise $ $ $ 

Equipment Less Than 
$5,000 per 1 Item 

$ $ $ 

Supplies $ $ $ 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

Capital Expense (Asset Greater Than $5,000 per 1 Item) 

Computer Equipment $ $ $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ $ $ 

Security Upgrades 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

TOTAL $ $ $ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory: DHSEM Reviewer: 

Name (print): _____________________________  Name (print): ______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: _________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Job Title: __________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________  Date: _____________________________________



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 26 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT H 
SAMPLE OF PROOF OF PAYMENT & ORIGINAL INVOICE 

 
 
 

  



Exhibit H – Proof of Payment 

1. If equipment or services are purchased with a check, include the invoice (proof of expense) and
obtain a front and back copy of the canceled check image that corresponds with the check
number used for payment.

2. Check must be written out to Vendor.
3. Amount requested should match amount paid to vendor.
4. Invoice number should be on the check and/or Purchase Order number.
5. If equipment or services are purchased with a credit card, then print a copy of the bank or credit

card statement that shows your proof of payment, include the credit card receipt.
6. Retain proof of all correspondence with the grantor (DHSEM) concerning your payment(s).

Authorized Signature(s) Invoice # and PO # if applicable 

Name of Vendor Same as Invoice

Must be prior to end 
of Grant Date 

Organization Name 

Same as Invoice



Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 
Vendor Information Below: 

INVOICE 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Fax Enter fax 
Email | Website 

INVOICE # 1959 
 DATE July 31, 2019 

TO: 
Sub-Recipient Name 
Organization Name 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Email 

FOR Project or service description 
P.O. # If Needed 

Description Number of 
Items 

Cost per Item Total per Item 

Description and serial number for each item. 3 $100 $300 

Enter description 2   Enter amount 

Enter description 3   Enter amount 

Enter description 4   Enter amount 

This is a sample Invoice from your Vendor. 
Please have the following information on each invoice: 

Name of Vendor, Address and Remit to Address 
Organization’s Name and Address where items were delivered 

Invoice Number, Invoice Date 
Name of Project (if possible) and PO number used (if applicable) 

Description of Item(s) purchased include serial numbers on invoice (if possible) 
Number of Items purchased and cost of each individual item with total of all (see above example) 

Grand Total for the Invoice should match the amount reimbursed 
Please Note:  There should be NO Sales Taxes Paid 

 
 
 
Total  Enter total amount 

Make all checks payable to Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 

Payment is due within 30 days. 
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Name | Phone | Email 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

     

Exhibit H – Sample Vendor Invoice 





Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 27 of 29 

EXHIBIT I 
EQUIPMENT INVENTORY FORM 



EXHIBIT I 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Equipment Inventory Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Instructions - Please complete and submit this form for any capital equipment purchases approved in the grant 
agreement.  Capital equipment is defined as those items whose fair market value is $5,000 or greater and whose useful 
life is more than one year. This form must be submitted with the Reimbursement Request Form when reimbursement is 
being sought. 

Purchase Amount: $_____________________ Purchase Date: _____________________ 

Manufacturer: ________________________ Model #: __________________________ 

Serial #: _____________________________ AEL #: ____________________________ 

Estimated Useful Life: __________________ DHSEM Tag # (if applicable): ________________________ 

Item Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________  

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________    Signature: ________________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

DHSEM Master Asset List 

DHSEM Data Entered By: _____________________________    Date Entered: ____________________________ 

DHSEM Physical Inspections 

DHSEM Inspector Inspection Date 

_____________________________________________________________   ________________________



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 28 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT J 
DISCLOSURE OF PENDING APPLICATIONS FORM 

  



EXHIBIT J 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Subrecipient Disclosure of Pending Application Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

The Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM), as administrator of Federal 
grants, is responsible for ensuring compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations in the performance of grant 
work with regard to DHSEM Grantees. 

Grantees are to disclose whether they have pending or awarded applications for federally funded assistance that include 
requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this grant and will cover the identical cost items 
outlined in their application to DHSEM.  The disclosure should include both direct applications for federal funding (e.g., 
applications to federal agencies) and indirect applications for such funding (e.g., applications to state agencies that will be 
sub-awarding federal funds). This information is needed to help avoid any inappropriate duplication of funding. Leveraging 
multiple funding sources in a complementary manner to implement comprehensive programs or projects is encouraged 
and is not seen as inappropriate duplication. 

If ________________________________________ does not have any current or pending applications that was submitted 
within the last 12 months for federally funded assistance (through federal, state, or local agencies that will be sub-awarding 
Federal funds) that include requests for funding to support the same project (as mentioned in your Edward Byrne Justice 
Assistance Grant [JAG] Program grant application), and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application then, 
please certify the following statement is true, check the box and fill in your organization's name. 

“________________________________________ does not have pending applications submitted within the last 12 months 
for federally funded assistance, which includes requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under the 
UASI Grant Program, and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application."  □ TRUE  

If ________________________________________ does have a current or pending application as described above, please 
check the most appropriate box below and provide the following information in a separate document using the example 
outlined below with all pending or awarded applications submitted within the last 12 months. □ YES □ NO 

Grantees that have pending or awarded applications must show: 

1. The Federal or State funding agency.

2. The solicitation name/project name.
3. The point of contact information at the applicable funding agency.

EXAMPLE 
Federal or State Funding 

Agency 
Project Name Point of Contact at 

Funding Agency 
Application Date 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (Print): __________________________________     Signature: _________________________________________ 

Job Title: _______________________________________   Date: _____________________  



Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 29 of 29 

EXHIBIT K 
FINAL CLOSE-OUT FINANCIAL REPORT 



Date

Line
Subrecipient 

Contract 
Number

Category Description of Product/Services
FTE (# if subject 

to Personnel 
Cap)

Subject to 
Personnel Cap

 ($ Amount)
EHP (YorN)

Line Item Cost 
Attributable to 
Organization 

(UASI)

Proposed Change 
to UASI Budget 

 (+/-)

New Budget After 
Proposed Change 

(UASI)

LETPA (UASI)
 ($ Amount)

1 Equipment 0 -$  N -$  -$  -$  -$  

2 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

3 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

4 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

5 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

6 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

7 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

8 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

9 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

10 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

-$          -$          -$            -$            

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/government/grant/bulletins/info358.pdf

2017 Homeland Security Grant Program - Urban Area Security Initiative
Attachment A:  Budget Detail Worksheet

 TOTAL PROJECT REQUEST 

__x_ New (1st submission)
___  Updated/corrected
___  FINAL

Subrecipient Name

Project Subtotal

Category Legend Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Information

NOTE:  Once the New Budget Total has 
been approved, you will use that total 
as your total cost column numbers.

Planning https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html   Click on FY 2017 HSGP NOFO_6 1 17 900 FINAL.pdf
Organization
Equipment (Provide AEL #) Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Activity (LETPA) Definition
Training See Page 62 of the NOFO
Exercises
M&A Personnel Cap Definition

EXHIBIT K - SAMPLE PAGE OF FINAL CLOSEOUT REPORT
FULL REPORT WILL BE EMAILED TO SUBRECIPIENT

https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUBAWARD AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
OF BURR RIDGE AND THE COUNTY OF COOK FOR WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN

INTER-CONNECTION (GRANT CONTRACT #769-2019-10663-20236054c) 

WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge (“Village”) and the County 
of Cook acting on behalf of the State of Illinois through the 
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“Cook 
County”), desire to enter into a Subaward Agreement (Exhibit A), 
pertaining to the award of certain Urban Area Security Initiative 
funds awarded to the Village to utilize for costs relating to 
planning, organization, equipment, training, and exercise needs to 
prevent, protect against, mitigate, respond to, and recover from 
acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events (“Eligible 
Costs”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the said Agreement Cook County shall 
provide an amount not to exceed $33,000.00 to the Village for said 
Eligible Costs; and  

WHEREAS, in order to receive such funds the Village will 
allocate an amount not greater than $22,000.00 of non-Federal funds 
towards the said Eligible Costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Administrator and the Board of Trustees 
believe and hereby declare that it is in the best interest of the 
Village and its residents to approve said Agreement and shall 
allocate the amount not greater than $22,000.00 of non-Federal 
funds towards said Eligible Costs to receive said Funds; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

ADOPTED this 8th day of June, 2020, by a roll call vote as 

follows: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT:  

APPROVED this 8th day of June, 2020, by the Mayor of the 

Village of Burr Ridge. 

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 

    Deputy Village Clerk

7C



Burr Ridge-20236054c-17UASICOOK - 
2019 Subrecipient Agreement 

2017 HSGP GRANT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMW-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

AWARDED 10/01/2017 

Page 1 of 29 

TONI PRECKWINKLE 
PRESIDENT 

Cook County Board 
of Commissioners

WILLIAM M. BARNES, Jr 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Department of Homeland Security 
and Emergency Management 

SUBAWARD AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF COOK 
AND 

THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS 

THIS SUBAWARD AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into between the County of Cook 
(“County”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, acting through its Department of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management (“DHSEM”), and the Village of Burr Ridge, a 
municipal corporation in the State of Illinois, (“Subrecipient”), by and through its Village 
Administrator. 

 RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the U.S.  Department of Homeland Security (“DHS” or “Federal Awarding Agency”), 
through its Grant Programs Directorate (“GPD”) administers the Homeland Security Grant Program 
(“HSGP”), which includes the Urban Area Security Initiative (“UASI”) grant program. 

WHEREAS, DHS awarded the State of Illinois (“State”), through its Illinois Emergency Management 
Agency (“IEMA”), a 2017 UASI grant, Federal grant # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Agreement No. 2017UASICOOK (“2017 Grant Agreement”), a copy of which 
agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A, IEMA has awarded the County 2017 UASI grant funds in an 
amount not exceeding $20,361,280.17 (“2017 Grant”) to utilize for costs related to the 
planning, organization, equipment. training, and exercise needs that prevent, protect against, mitigate, 
respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism and other catastrophic events; and 

WHEREAS, the County wishes to subaward a portion of the 2017 UASI Grant (“Subaward”) to 
Subrecipient as further detailed in this Agreement;  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipts and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

The above recitals are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 2 of 29 

ARTICLE II  
SUBRECIPIENT INFORMATION AND CERTIFICATION 

2.1. Nature of Entity; FEIN Number; and DUNS Number.  Subrecipient certifies the following 
information is true and accurate: 

Subrecipient is ☒ a unit of government, ☐ an institution of higher education, ☐ a nonprofit 
organization;  

Subrecipient’s correct FEIN is 36-2517422; and 

Subrecipient’s correct DUNS number is 178938007. 

2.2. Standing and Authority. Subrecipient warrants that: 

(a) Subrecipient has the requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and
all documents to be executed by it regarding this Agreement, to perform its obligations
hereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, and the other documents to be executed by
Subrecipient regarding this Agreement, and the performance by Subrecipient of its obligations
hereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary entity action.

(c) It recognizes this Agreement and all other documents related to this Agreement, including the
2017 Grant Agreement, all applicable Federal laws, regulations, rules, and guidance, constitute
the legal, valid and binding obligations of Subrecipient enforceable against Subrecipient in
accordance with their respective terms.

2.3 Certification. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient certifies:  

i. All representations made in this Agreement are true and correct and

ii. All funds awarded pursuant to this Agreement shall be used only for the purpose(s)
described herein.

Subrecipient acknowledges its subaward is made solely upon this certification and that any false 
statements, misrepresentations, or material omissions shall be the basis for immediate termination of this 
Agreement and repayment of all funds awarded to Subrecipient. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 3 of 29 

ARTICLE III  
SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

3.1 Term and Extension.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 1, 2019 
(“Effective Date”) and shall expire on July 31, 2020 (“Expiration Date”), unless terminated pursuant to 
this Agreement.  This Agreement may only be extended upon the written agreement of the parties and as 
permitted by DHS at its sole discretion.  In no event shall payments be made for obligations incurred, 
equipment purchased, or work performed before the Effective Date or after the Expiration Date of this 
Agreement.   

3.2 Purpose of Subaward.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Subrecipient 2017 UASI Grant 
funds for the allowable costs of the Subrecipient’s project (“Project”) described in its Scope of Project 
and Budget Detail Worksheet (“Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet”), attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

3.3 Amount of Subaward and Use of Funds; Subrecipient Matching Funds.  The Subaward is for an 
amount not to exceed $33,000.00 and shall be used only to implement the Project, Village of Burr Ridge 
Public Works Department - Water Transmission Main Inter-Connection, in conformance with this 
Agreement and for no other purpose.  Subrecipient agrees to match the amount of the award with non-
Federal funds in the amount of $22,000.00. 

3.4 Grant Assurances; Other Requirements.  
(a) Subrecipient shall comply with all the conditions and limitations set forth in the 2017 UASI Grant
Agreement.

(b) In addition to complying with terms and conditions of the 2017 UASI Grant Agreement,
Subrecipient shall comply with all applicable statutes, regulations, executive orders, requirements,
policies, guides, guidelines, information bulletins, County policies and requirements and any conditions
imposed by DHS and IEMA (collectively “Requirements”) including but not limited to the following:

i. Department of Homeland Security Notice of Funding Opportunity Fiscal Year 2017
Homeland Security Grant Program
(https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992)

ii. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”)
(https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-
part200.pdf)

iii. The Department of Homeland Security’s Standard Terms and Conditions for Fiscal Year
2017
(https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%2

https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/131992
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/C.F.R.-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 4 of 29 

0Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-
17.pdf)

iv. Illinois Emergency Management Agency Federal Grants Policy Manual
(https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy
Manual.pdf)

All Requirements applicable to the Subaward are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference 
as if fully set forth herein.   

(c) By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees it is assumed to have read,
understood, and accepted all Requirements as binding.

3.5 Administrative Requirements.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the County is acting as 
a "pass-through entity" (as such term is defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.74) for this Subaward and that the 
County shall have the rights and obligations relating to this Subaward and its administration as set forth 
in this Agreement and in the Uniform Guidance.  

3.6 NIMS Implementation and Reporting. Subrecipients receiving HSGP funding are required to 
implement the National Incident Management System (“NIMS”). FY 2017 HSGP recipients must use 
standardized resource management concepts for resource typing, credentialing, and an inventory to 
facilitate the effective identification, dispatch, deployment, tracking and recovery of resources.  Sample 
Resource Typing Form can be found in Exhibit C. (The NIMS Training Program and the NIMS 
Implementation Objectives can be found at https://www.fema.gov/training-0 and  
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting, respectively.  Refer to the DHSEM Grant 
Guidance Manual for further information.) 

3.7 Procurement Requirements.  Subrecipient shall follow its own procurement requirements if those 
requirements comply with all applicable federal and State of Illinois, County and local laws, statutes, 
regulations, requirements, policies, guides, guidelines and instructions, including the most recent 
restrictions on the purchase of general purpose equipment and on purchases of specified controlled 
equipment.  See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 

3.8 Equipment List Requirements.  Subrecipient may only purchase equipment listed on the DHS 
Authorized Equipment List (AEL), a list of equipment types allowed under the HSGP consisting of 21 
equipment categories.  The AEL can be found at https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list.   

3.9 Accounting Requirements.  Subrecipient shall maintain effective control and accountability over 
all funds, equipment, property, and other assets under this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall keep records 
sufficient to permit the tracking of funds to ensure that expenditures are made in accordance with this 
Agreement and federal requirements. 

https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/Fiscal%20Year%202017%20DHS%20Standard%20Terms%20and%20Conditions%20Version%207-1%20Dated%2003-20-17.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www2.illinois.gov/iema/ITTF/Documents/IEMA_Federal_Grants_Policy%20Manual.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/training-0
https://www.fema.gov/implementation-guidance-and-reporting
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 5 of 29 

3.10 Financial Management and System of Internal Controls. As prescribed at 2 C.F.R. § 200.303, 
Subrecipient must: 

i. Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides
reasonable assurance that it is managing the Federal award in compliance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

ii. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal awards.

iii. Evaluate and monitor its compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of Federal awards.

iv. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including noncompliance
identified in audit findings.

v. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other
information DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County designate as sensitive or Subrecipient
considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state and local laws regarding privacy
and obligations of confidentiality.

3.11 Audit Requirements.  

(a) If Subrecipient expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards (from all sources including pass-
through subawards) during a fiscal year, Subrecipient shall arrange for a single organization-wide audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 C.F.R. Subpart F.  Such audit must be submitted to
DHSEM no later than nine (9) months after the end of the Subrecipient’s fiscal year.

(b) If Subrecipient expends less than $750,000 in Federal awards during its fiscal year and is not
subject to the audit requirements in subsection (a), Subrecipient must have a financial statement audit
conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS); if Subrecipient expends
between $500,000 and $749,999 in Federal and State awards combined, Subrecipient must have a financial
statement audit conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards
(GAGAS). Subrecipient shall submit these financial statement audit reports to DHSEM either within,

i. 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s) or
ii. 180 calendar days after the end of the audit period, whichever is earlier.

3.12 Project or Budget Revisions.  The Subrecipient shall only use the funds provided under this 
Agreement for the itemized expenditures identified in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet 
(Exhibit B) and shall not spend more than the specified amount for each such itemized expenditure. The 
Subrecipient may request, in writing, approval from DHSEM to modify the expenditures itemized or the 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 6 of 29 

amounts specified in any Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  Any request for project or budget revisions 
must be submitted for review and approval to the County using the Program Project Modification Request 
Form (Exhibit E).  This request shall be submitted in the form and manner specified by the DHSEM.  The 
Subrecipient must obtain DHSEM’s written approval prior to making an expenditure that is not in 
compliance with a Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet. 

3.13 Project Completion. Subrecipient shall complete the Project (“Project Completion”), which 
includes, but is not limited to ordering, accepting delivery, installing equipment and full completion of 
performance of any service agreements or contracts, by the Expiration Date of this Agreement ("Project 
Completion Deadline"). The Subrecipient shall pay out the funds, submit to DHSEM a final report and 
documentation of expenditures made, and submit to DHSEM all requests for payment no later than forty-
five (45) days after the Project Completion Deadline.  DHSEM has the discretion, and reserves the right, 
to not reimburse the Subrecipient for an expenditure that does not comply with all the requirements 
established in this paragraph. 

3.14 Close Out Financial Report.  Subrecipient must submit to DHSEM a final close-out financial report 
and narrative using the format provided in Exhibit K by July 17, 2020. 

3.15 Record Keeping.  Subrecipient shall (1) maintain records for equipment, non- expendable personal 
property, and real property and (2) as often as deemed necessary by DHS, FEMA, IEMA, County or any 
of their duly authorized representatives, permit DHS, FEMA, IEMA, Auditor General, Attorney General 
or any of their duly authorized representatives to have full access to and the right to examine any pertinent 
books, documents, papers and records of the Subrecipient involving transactions related to this 
Agreement. This provision requires, at a minimum, that Subrecipient shall: 

i. Cooperate with any compliance review or complaint investigation conducted by the DHS,
FEMA, IEMA or the County,

ii. Maintain appropriate backup documentation, and
iii. Comply with all other special reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements as may

be required by DHS, FEMA, IEMA or the County.
Subrecipient acknowledges the funds provided by this Agreement are federal pass-through funds that must 
be accounted for in the jurisdiction's single audit, if required, pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.   

3.16 Remedies for Noncompliance.  

(a) Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that, in the event Subrecipient fails to comply with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement or with any Requirements referenced in Section 3.4, above, the
Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County shall have the right to take one or more of the actions set
forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.338.  Such actions may include, without limitation, the withholding of cash
payments, suspension and/or termination of the Subaward, and the disallowing of certain costs incurred
under the Subaward.  Any costs incurred by Subrecipient during a suspension or after termination of the



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 7 of 29 

Subaward shall not be considered allowable under the Subaward unless allowed under 2 C.F.R. § 200.342. 
Subrecipient shall be liable to the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County for any Subaward funds 
used by Subrecipient in violation of any Requirements, and Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the County for any sums the Federal Awarding Agency or IEMA determines Subrecipient used 
in violation of such Requirements. 

(b) Subrecipient shall be granted the opportunity to object to and challenge the taking of any remedial
action by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA or the County in accordance with the provisions set forth
in 2 C.F.R. § 200.341.

3.17  Termination.  Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the Subaward, and any obligation to 
disburse to or reimburse Subrecipient in connection thereto, may be terminated in whole or in part by 
DHS, IEMA or the County as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate 
the Subaward only as set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.339.  In the event the Subaward is terminated, all 
obligations and requirements of this Agreement and the Subaward shall survive and continue in full force 
and effect with respect to any portion of the Subaward remaining prior to such termination, including, 
without limitation, the closeout and post closeout requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 
PAYMENT 

4.1 Basis of Payment.  The Subrecipient will be reimbursed on a cost reimbursement basis for 
allowable Project costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient pursuant to the Scope/Budget Detail 
Worksheet (Exhibit B). The Subrecipient must submit reimbursement request forms to DHSEM for each 
reimbursement request as detailed below in 4.2. 

4.2 Method of Payment.   

(a) Subrecipient will submit requests for reimbursement identifying the payment due for the Project
costs incurred and paid directly by the Subrecipient in such detail and supported by such documents as
the County may require using the Reimbursement Request Form (Exhibit G), including Original Invoices
and Proof of Payment (See, Exhibit H for examples) and the Equipment Inventory Form (Exhibit I) if
necessary. If the subrecipient paid for their Projects costs using checks, then a copy of the cancelled
check(s) – front and back (showing bank stamp) – should be submitted.  If a credit card was used, then
card receipt along with the credit card statement should be submitted.  If a bank transfer is used, then the
journal entry from the agencies accounting system should be submitted.  The requests for reimbursement
and supporting documents should be sent via email to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov.

(b) The County will reject any reimbursement requests that include costs that were incurred or paid
by any party other than the Subrecipient. The County will use reasonable efforts to respond to the
Subrecipient’s request for reimbursement within 30 calendar days after submission by either (i) processing

mailto:DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 8 of 29 

the payment or (ii) notifying the Subrecipient of the way in which the request is deficient and the 
adjustments the Subrecipient must make to receive payment. Within 15 days after receiving such 
notification from the County, and after completing such adjustment(s), the Subrecipient may resubmit a 
revised request for reimbursement form and the County thereafter will use reasonable efforts to respond 
to the Subrecipient’s request within 15 days.  

4.3 Waiver of Payment.  The Subrecipient waives all rights to payment if the request for 
reimbursement is submitted after the termination or completion of this Agreement. Costs incurred by the 
Subrecipient after the Expiration Date or after earlier termination of this Agreement will not be paid by 
the County.  

4.4. Allowable Costs.  All costs allowed by the Federal Awarding Agency, IEMA and/or DHSEM are 
not considered final and may be disallowed upon the completion of audits ordered or performed by the 
County or the appropriate federal agency. In the event of a disallowance, the Subrecipient will refund the 
amount disallowed to the County.  

4.5 Availability of Appropriation; Sufficiency of Funds.  This Agreement is contingent upon and 
subject to the availability of sufficient funds. The County may terminate or suspend this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, without penalty or further payment being required, if (i) sufficient funds for this 
Agreement have not been appropriated or otherwise made available to the County by the Federal funding 
source or (ii) the County determines that funds will not or may not be available for payment.  The County 
shall provide notice, in writing, to Subrecipient of any such funding failure and its election to terminate 
or suspend this Agreement as soon as practicable.  Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Section 
will be effective upon the date of the written notice unless otherwise indicated. 

4.6 Certification. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.415, each invoice and report submitted by Subrecipient 
must contain the following certification by an official authorized to legally bind the Subrecipient: 

By signing this report/payment request, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief 
that the report/payment request is true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, 
disbursements and cash receipts are for the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms 
and conditions of the Federal or State award. I am aware that any false, fictitious, or 
fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to criminal, 
civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. 
Code Title 18, Section 1001and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812). 

4.7 Overpayment.   If DHSEM or a subrecipient determines there has been an overpayment of federal 
preparedness funds, duplicate payment, or any other instance in which the subrecipient has received funds 
that are not associated with an authorized expenditure, this amount must be returned to DHSEM.  Any 
interest earned on the overpayment in excess of the maximum that may be retained shall be remitted to 
the DHSEM according to federal rules and regulations. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 9 of 29 

ARTICLE V 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Subrecipient represents and warrants each of the following as of the date of this Agreement and at all 
times throughout the term of this Agreement: 

Legal Authority.  Subrecipient’s execution of this Agreement is authorized by a resolution, 
ordinance or other evidence of legal authority from the Subrecipient’s governing body. The 
signature of the individual signing on the Subrecipient’s behalf has been made with complete 
and full authority to commit the Subrecipient to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Subrecipient must provide evidence of signature authority and the Subrecipient Signature 
Authorization Form (Exhibit F) to the County with the executed Agreement. 

No Misstatements. No document furnished or to be furnished by Subrecipient to the County in 
connection with this Agreement, any reimbursement request or any other document relating to 
any of the foregoing, contains or will contain any untrue statement of material fact or omits or 
will omit a material fact necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading, 
under the circumstances under which any such statement shall have been made. 

Eligibility to Receive Federal Funds. By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient represents 
and warrants it is eligible to receive federal funds, and specifically certifies as follows:   

(a) Subrecipient is not suspended, debarred or otherwise excluded from participation in
federal assistance programs, as required by Executive Order 12549 and 12689,
“Debarment and Suspension” and implemented by the DOJ at 2 CFR Part 2867.

(b) Subrecipient complies with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, Limitation on Use of Appropriated
Funds to Influence Federal Contracting and Financial Transactions, as implemented
by the DOJ at 28 CFR Part 69.

(c) Subrecipient complies with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as amended, 41
U.S.C. § 701 et seq., and will continue to provide a drug-free workplace as required
under that Act and implementing regulations. See, 2 CFR Part 182, Subpart B.

(d) Subrecipient is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt, including without
limitation, delinquent audit disallowances, loans, taxes, and any outstanding debts
with the Treasury.

Subrecipient acknowledges that the foregoing representations, warranties and certifications of 
eligibility to receive federal funds are material terms of the Agreement. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 10 of 29 

ARTICLE VI 
REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

Subrecipient shall be responsible for compliance with the certifications and assurances enumerated in any 
of the Requirements to the extent that same apply to Subrecipient including without limitation the 
following:  

a. No Pending Application(s) Disclosure.  Subrecipient has no pending request(s) for funding to
support the same project being funded under this Agreement and that seeks to cover the identical
cost items outlined in the Project’s Scope/Budget Detail Worksheet.  If Subrecipient cannot so
certify, it shall complete, execute and submit a Disclosure of Pending Applications form (Exhibit
J) upon execution of this Agreement.

b. Debarment. Subrecipient certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Agreement by any Federal
department or agency.

c. Criminal Convictions. Subrecipient certifies that neither it nor any managerial agent of
Subrecipient has been convicted of a felony under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or that at least
five (5) years have passed since the date of the conviction.

d. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006. Subrecipient certifies that it is in
compliance with the terms and requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 6101.

e. Lobbying and Political Activities.  Subrecipient certifies that:

i. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of
a Member of Congress in connection with awarding any Federal Contract, the making of
any federal grant, the making federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

ii. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress relating to this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.  See,
https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf

https://ojp.gov/funding/Apply/Resources/Disclosure.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 11 of 29 

iii. The undersigned shall require that the language of the foregoing two subsections be included
in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

f. Hatch Act.  Subrecipient certifies it will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§
1501-1508 and §§ 7324-7328) which limit the political activities of employees whose principal
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with federal funds.

g. Privacy and Personally Identifiable Information.  Subrecipient agrees to comply with all
confidentiality requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 3789g and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to
collection, use, and revelation of data or information. Subrecipient further agrees, as a condition
of Subaward approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. § 22.23.  See, https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf.

ARTICLE VII 
CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

Subrecipient will comply, as applicable, with all federal and state laws and regulations relating to civil 
rights protections and nondiscrimination. These include, but are not limited to: 

a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., which
provides that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.  The DHS regulations for this statute
are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.

b) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.,
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of gender in educational programs and activities. The
DHS regulations for this statute are codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

c) The Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which
prohibits recipients from discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities,
public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing
entities.  The implementing regulation for this statute is codified at 28 C.F.R. Part 35.

d) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.   The FEMA regulation for this statute is codified at 44 C.F.R. Part 7, Subpart E.

https://ojp.gov/ovc/pubs/victimswithdisabilities/pdf/PrivacyCertificate.pdf


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 12 of 29 

e) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which
provides that no otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the United States will, solely
by reason of the disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.
The DHS regulation for this statute is codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 15.

f) The requirements of any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under
which the application for Federal assistance is being made and any other applicable statutes.

ARTICLE VIII 
MAINTENANCE AND ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS; MONITORING 

8.1 Records Retention. Subrecipient shall maintain for three (3) years from the date of submission of 
the final expenditure report, adequate books, all financial records and, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Subaward, adequate to comply with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333, 
unless a different retention period is specified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. If any litigation, claim or audit related 
to the purchases contemplated herein is started before the expiration of the retention period, the records 
must be retained until all litigation, claims or audit exceptions involving the records have been resolved 
and final action taken. 

8.2 Accessibility of Records. Subrecipient, in compliance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, shall make books, 
records, related papers, supporting documentation and personnel relevant to this Agreement available to 
authorized County representatives, the County's Inspector General, Federal authorities, any person 
identified in 2 C.F.R. § 200.336, and any other person as may be authorized by the County (including 
auditors) or by the City of Chicago. Subrecipient shall cooperate fully in any such audit or inquiry. 

8.3 Failure to Maintain Books and Records. Failure to maintain books, records and supporting 
documentation, as described in this Article VIII, shall establish a presumption in favor of the State for the 
recovery of any funds paid by the State under this Agreement for which adequate books, records and 
supporting documentation are not available to support disbursement. 

8.4 Monitoring and Access to Information.  Subrecipient must monitor its activities to assure 
compliance with applicable Requirements and to assure its performance expectations are being achieved. 
County shall monitor the activities of Subrecipient to assure compliance with all requirements and 
performance expectations of the award. An annual monitoring visit is expected and will be scheduled with 
a 30-day notification.  Subrecipient shall timely submit all financial and performance reports, and shall 
supply, upon the County's request, documents and information relevant to the Subaward.  The County 
may make site visits as warranted by program needs. See, 2 C.F.R. § 200.328 and § 200.331. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 13 of 29 

ARTICLE IX  
EQUIPMENT OR PROPERTY REQUIREMENTS 

9.1 Equipment and Procurement.  Equipment acquired pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to 
the requirements of Title 2 C.F.R. § 200.313. For the purposes of this Article t, "Equipment" is defined as 
tangible nonexpendable property, having a useful life of more than one year which costs $5,000 or more 
per unit. Items costing less than $5,000 but acquired under the "Equipment" category of the Grant must 
also be listed on the Equipment Listing   

9.2 Use.  Equipment must be used by Subrecipient in the program or project for which it was acquired 
as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by Federal funds. 
When no longer needed for the original program or project, the Equipment may be used in other activities 
currently or previously supported by a Federal agency. 

9.3 Availability for Like Programs.  Subrecipient must make Equipment available for use on other like 
projects or programs currently or previously supported by the Federal Government, providing such use 
will not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it was originally acquired. First 
preference for other use must be given to other programs or projects supported by the awarding agency.  
In addition, in accordance with applicable DHS, FEMA, IEMA and Cook County policies and 
requirements, Subrecipient shall make the Equipment and supplies available to other authorized entities, 
including call out for mutual aid and interagency regional emergency responses. 

9.4 Prohibition against Disposition/Encumbrance. Subrecipient is prohibited from, and may not sell, 
transfer, encumber (other than original financing) or otherwise dispose of said equipment, material, or real 
property during the Term without prior approval of the County. Any real property acquired using Grant 
Funds must comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.311.

9.5. Equipment Listing.  Subrecipient must maintain a list of each piece of Equipment acquired with 
its Subaward. The Equipment Listing must be kept up to date at all times. Any changes must be recorded 
in the Equipment Listing within ten (10) business days and the updated list shall immediately be forwarded 
to DHSEM. Equipment records must be maintained that include: (a) a description of the property, (b) a 
serial number or other identification number, (c) the source of property, (d) who holds title, (e) the 
acquisition date, (f) cost of the property, (g) percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property, 
(h) the location, (i) use and condition of the property, (j) DHSEM asset tag number, and (k) any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property. Records must be retained by
the Subrecipient in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.313 (d) (1).
9.6 Identification Decal.  All Equipment obtained under this Agreement must have an appropriate
identification decal and asset tag (provided by DHSEM) affixed to it and, when practical, must be affixed
where it is readily visible.

9.7 Inventory.  A physical inventory of the Equipment must be taken by the Subrecipient and the 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 14 of 29 

results reconciled with the Equipment Listing at least once every two years or prior to any site visit by 
Federal or County auditors/monitors. The Subrecipient is required to submit a letter certifying as to the 
accuracy of the Equipment Listing to DHSEM, in the frequency as above.  

9.8. Transfer of Equipment. County shall have the right to require that Subrecipient transfer to County 
any equipment, including title thereto, purchased in whole with Subaward funds, if County determines 
that Subrecipient has not met the conditions of 2 C.F.R. § 200.439(a). County shall notify Subrecipient in
writing should County require the transfer of such equipment.  Upon such notification by County, and 
upon receipt or delivery of such equipment to County, Subrecipient will be deemed to have transferred 
the equipment to County as if Subrecipient had executed a bill of sale therefor. 

ARTICLE X 
INSURANCE 

10.1 Insurance coverage. As required by 2 C.F.R. § 310, Subrecipient must, at a minimum, provide 
insurance sufficient to cover the replacement cost of any and all real or personal property, or both, 
purchased or, otherwise acquired, or improved in whole or in part, with funds disbursed pursuant to this 
Agreement.   

10.2. Claims. If a claim is submitted for losses related to real or personal property, or both, purchased 
in whole with funds from this Agreement, any recovered monies shall be surrendered to County. 

ARTICLE XI 
INDEMNIFICATION; LIABILITY 

11.1 Indemnification.  Subrecipient agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its 
Commissioners, officials, employees, agents and representatives, and their respective heirs, successors 
and assigns, from and against any and all costs, expenses, attorney's fees, losses, damages and liabilities 
incurred or suffered directly or indirectly from or attributable to any claims arising out of or incident to 
the Subrecipient’s performance or nonperformance of this Agreement, or the acts or omissions of the 
Subrecipient’s officers, agents, employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees or invitees.  Subrecipient 
expressly understands and agrees that any performance bond or insurance protection required of the 
Subrecipient, or otherwise provided by the Subrecipient, shall in no way limit the responsibility to 
indemnify the County as hereinabove provided.  
11.2 Liability.  The County assumes no liability for actions of the Subrecipient under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, the negligent acts and omissions of the Subrecipient's agents, employees, and 
subcontractors in their performance of the Subrecipient's duties as described under this Agreement. In 
addition, the County makes no representations, or warranties, express or implied, as to fitness for use, 
condition of, or suitability of any equipment purchased pursuant to this Agreement, except as those 
representations are made by the manufacturer of said equipment. As to the nature and condition of said 
equipment, in the use of said equipment, the Subrecipient agrees to hold County harmless for any defects 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 15 of 29 

or misapplications. To the extent allowed by law, the Subrecipient agrees to hold harmless County against 
any and all liability, loss, damage, costs, or expenses, including attorney's fees, arising from the intentional 
torts, negligence, or breach of the Agreement by the Subrecipient, with the exception of acts performed in 
conformance with an explicit, written directive of the County or DHSEM. 

ARTICLE XII 
NOTICE 

12.1 The individuals identified in this section shall be authorized to act as the liaisons of the County 
and the Subrecipient, respectively, with respect to this Agreement:  

Notices to the County/DHSEM shall be addressed to: 
Ellen O’Connor, Grant Coordinator  
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
69 West Washington Street, Suite 2600  
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov 

Notices to Subrecipient shall be addressed to: 
David Preissig, Director of Public Works & Village Engineer 
Village of Burr Ridge 
7660 County Line Rd 
Burr Ridge, IL 60527 
dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov 

12.2 The Subrecipient must notify the County of any significant change in the Subrecipient’s 
organizational structure. Significant changes include, but are not limited to, changes in:  

i. The official(s) to whom notice regarding the Agreement is provided and their mailing
address; and

ii. The Subrecipient’s leadership, key staff and/or the Subrecipient’s program sites, including
the Chief or executive director, site director, fiscal director; name, ownership, Federal
employer identification number (FEIN), DUNS number or taxpayer certification; legal status
(including not-for-profit status); site address or agency official address or telephone
numbers; and the location or storage site of any Equipment purchased through this
Agreement.

Such communication must be directed within ten (10) calendar days of such occurrence (or, in the case of 
changes in legal status (including not-for-profit status), address, name, ownership, FEIN or taxpayer 
certification, forty-five (45) days in advance) to the County.  No promise or undertaking made in this 
Agreement is an assurance that the County agrees to continue this Agreement should the Subrecipient 

mailto:ellen.oconnor@cookcountyil.gov
mailto:dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov


Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 16 of 29 

reorganize, change owners, or otherwise substantially change the character of the Subrecipient’s structure, 
function, or purpose. 

ARTICLE XIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Assignment Prohibited. Subrecipient acknowledges that this Agreement (including Subrecipient’s 
right to receive payments hereunder) may not be sold, assigned, or transferred in any manner by 
Subrecipient.  Any actual or attempted sale, assignment, or transfer by Subrecipient without the prior 
written approval of the County shall render this Agreement null, void and of no further effect. 

13.2 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended at any time during its Term by mutual 
consent of the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties. 

13.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, its other provisions shall not 
be affected thereby. 

13.4 No Waiver. No failure of either Party to assert any right or remedy hereunder will act as a waiver 
of either Party's right to assert such right or remedy at a later time or constitute a course of business upon 
which either Party may rely for the purpose of denial of such a right or remedy. 

13.5 Applicable Law; Claims. This Agreement and all subsequent amendments thereto, if any, shall be 
governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.  The County does not waive 
sovereign immunity by entering into this Agreement. 

13.6 Compliance with Law. This Agreement and Subrecipient's obligations and services hereunder are 
hereby made and must be performed in compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, including, 
without limitation, Federal regulations and Cook  

13.7 Compliance with Freedom of Information Act. Upon request, Subrecipient shall make available to 
the County all documents in its possession that the County deems necessary to comply with requests made 
under the Freedom of Information Act. (5 ILCS 140/7(2)).  

13.8 Office of the Independent Inspector General.  Subrecipient agrees it will abide by all provisions of 
the Cook County Code of Ordinances pertaining to the authority of the Office of the Independent Inspector 
General and acknowledges it is unlawful for any person subject to the jurisdiction of said office to refuse 
to cooperate with the Independent Inspector General.  

13.9 Headings. Article and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 
and are not intended to define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof.  
13.10 Attachments.  This Agreement has the following attachments which are incorporated into this 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 17 of 29 

Agreement as if set out: 

Exhibit A: 2017 UASI Grant Agreement 
Exhibit B: Scope of Services and Budget Detail Worksheet 
Exhibit C: NIMS – Sample Resource Typing Form and Guidance 
Exhibit D: Sample of Authorized Equipment List with Hyperlink 
Exhibit E: Program/Project Modification Request Form 
Exhibit F: Subrecipient Signature Authorization Form  
Exhibit G: Reimbursement Request Form 
Exhibit H: Sample of Proof of Payment & Copy of Original Invoice 
Exhibit I: Equipment Inventory Form 
Exhibit J: 
Exhibit K: 

Disclosure of Pending Applications Form 
Final Close-Out Financial Report 

In the event of any inconsistencies or conflict between the language of this Agreement and the 
attachments, the language of the attachments shall control, but only to the extent of the conflict or 
inconsistency. 

13.11 Entire Agreement. Subrecipient and County acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes the 
entire agreement between them and that no promises, terms, or conditions not recited, incorporated or 
referenced herein, including prior agreements or oral discussions, shall be binding upon either 
Subrecipient or County. 

13.12 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be considered to be one and the same agreement, binding on all Parties hereto, notwithstanding that all 
Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Duplicated signatures, signatures transmitted via 
facsimile, or signatures contained in a Portable Document Format (PDF) document shall be deemed 
original for all purposes. 



Burr Ridge-20236054c-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

Page 18 of 29 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is hereby executed on behalf of the parties through their 
authorized representatives as set forth below.  

ON BEHALF OF COOK COUNTY: 

__________________________________ 
William M. Barnes Jr., Executive Director   
Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management  

Date: ______________________________ 

ON BEHALF OF THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS : 

___________________________________ 
J. Douglas Pollock, Village Administrator

Date: ______________________________ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 19 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
2017 UASI GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

  





































































  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 20 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND BUDGET DETAIL WORKSHEET 

  



  EXHIBIT B 

 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient - Scope of Services & Budget Detail Worksheet 

 

 

    Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________  DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________  UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

 
Scope of Services: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Budget Detail: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Sub-Recipient DUNS Number: ________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Name (Print): __________________________________________ 

DHSEM Staff Signature: _____________________________________________  

Operating Expenses Award Amount 

Training $ 

Consumable Expenses (Training) $ 

Exercise $ 

Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) $ 

Equipment Less Than $5,000 $ 

Supplies $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

  

Sub-Total $ 

Capital Equipment (Asset More Than $5,000) 

Computer Equipment $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ 

Security Upgrades $ 

Other Equipment $ 

Other, please specify: 
$ 

  

Sub-Total $ 

TOTAL AWARDED $ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 21 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
NIMS – SAMPLE RESOURCE TYPING FORM  



Equipment or 
Training

NIMS Typed Discipline 
or State/Local 

Discipline/Community 
of Interest Supported

NIMS Typed Resource 
Supported

NIMS 
Type #

State/Local Typed 
Resource Supported 

(if applicable)

Typed Equipment 
Purchased

# of Personnel 
Trained for 

Typed Teams

# of Typed 
Teams Trained

Sustain Current 
Capability/Add New 

Capability
Core Capability Supported Cost of Purchase Comments

Grant-Funded Typed Resource Report

Tool Instructions:
1. Each row should contain one piece of equipment purchased with or training held using grant funds for current reporting period. Only report purchases and trainings that have already been completed and funds have been expended and drawn down.
2. Choose from the drop-down menu whether the line is for equipment or training, the NIMS Typed Discipline, NIMS Typed Resource and NIMS Type #, as published by FEMA's National Integration Center (NIC) that the equipment supports, if NIMS Typed.
2a. If equipment or training is not NIMS Typed, choose "State/Local Other" in drop-down menu and provide State/Local typing or Community of Interest information in the Comments.
3. Choose whether the piece of equipment or training is to "Sustain Current" existing capabilities or will increase or "Add New" capability .
4. Choose the Core Capability or Capabilities that the Typed Resource supports. If more than one Core Capability is applicable, expand the columns by clicking the '+' above the 'Cost of Purchase' column to show more 'Core Capability Supported' columns.
5. Enter the cost of the equipment or training.
6. Enter additional information in the Comments, including a brief description of whether the training or equipment purchased sustains existing capabilities; adds or improves an existing capability; or builds a new capability from scratch.

SAMPLE

EXHIBIT C



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 22 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT D 
SAMPLE FEMA - AUTHORIZED EQUIPMENT LIST (Use Hyperlink) 

  



EXHIBIT D
Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management

(SAMPLE) FEMA Authorized Equipment List (Partial Listing - Use Hyperlink)
https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list

AEL # Title

01WF-01-COLD Outerwear, Cold Weather, Wildland Fire Fighting Protective 04HW-02-BARC Equipment, Bar Code Reading and Printing

02EX-00-EXTR Materials, Energetic, Bomb Squad Training 04HW-02-RFID Devices, Radio Frequency Identification

03OE-01-VSTO Vests, Operational 04MD-01-VCAM Camera, Video

03OE-02-FIBR Systems, Fiber Optic 04MD-02-PROJ Projector, Video

03OE-03-DAMS Devices, Containment/Diversion 04MD-03-DISP Display, Video

03OE-03-LOTO System, Lock Out/Tag Out 04SN-01-PTMS Station, Portable Meteorological

03OE-04-BALA Balaclava, Fire Resistant 04SN-01-XMIT Transmission Device, Wireless, Remote Sensor

03OE-07-ROBT Robots 04SW-04-NETW Software, Network

03OE-07-ROVL Vehicles, Remotely Operated, Land 04SW-05-SCAD System, SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition)

03OE-07-SUAS System, Small Unmanned Aircraft 05AU-00-BIOM Device, Biometric User Authentication

03OE-07-UMVS System, Unmanned Maritime Vehicle 05AU-00-TOKN System, Remote Authentication

04AP-01-CADS System, Dispatch, Computer Aided 05EN-00-ECRP Software, Encryption

04AP-02-AVLS Systems, Automatic Vehicle Locating (AVL) 05EN-00-ETRN Encryption, Data Transmission

04AP-02-DGPS Device, Global Positioning System (GPS) 05HS-00-FRNS Software, Forensic

04AP-02-OAPT System, Operations Area Personnel Tracking 05HS-00-MALW Software, Malware Protection

04AP-03-GISD Data, Geospatial 05HS-00-PFWL System, Personal Firewall

04AP-03-GISS System, Geospatial Information (GIS) 05NP-00-FWAL Firewall, Network

04AP-04-RISK Software, Risk Management 05NP-00-IDPS System, Intrusion Detection/Prevention

04AP-05-CDSS Systems and Tools, ICS 05NP-00-SCAN Tools, Vulnerability Scanning

04AP-05-CRED System, Credentialing 05NP-00-SEIM System, Security Event/Incident Management

04AP-05-SVIS Software, Operational Space Visualization 05PM-00-PTCH System, Patch/Configuration Management

04AP-06-CBRN Software, CBRNE/Commercial Chemical/Hazard 06CC-01-CELL Communications and Computing Device, Handheld

04AP-06-PMOD Software, Plume Modeling 06CC-02-2WAY Device, Messaging, 2-Way Text

04AP-06-TRAF Software, Traffic Modeling 06CC-02-DSAD Device, Data Service Access

04AP-07-INVN Software, Equipment Tracking and Inventory 06CC-02-PAGE Services/Systems, Paging

04AP-08-SIMS Simulators 06CC-03-SATB Phone, Satellite Base

04AP-09-ALRT Systems, Public Notification and Warning 07ED-04-LASR Detector, Explosive, Laser-Based, Standoff

04AP-10-GNAI System, Artificial Intelligence 10PE-01-PCHG Chargers, Phone and Radio

04HW-01-INHW Hardware, Computer, Integrated 10PE-01-WCHG Chargers, Power Chair

04HW-01-MOBL Computer, Mobile Data 11RE-00-RFCB References, CBRNE

11RE-00-RFDB Databases, Reference 19AF-01-FEED Equipment and Supplies, Feeding Support

11RE-00-RFEX References, Field Expedient 19AF-01-HYGN Equipment and Supplies, Personal Hygeine

https://www.fema.gov/authorized-equipment-list


AEL # Title

11RE-00-RFNC Reference Materials, Non-CBRNE 19AF-01-MOB Equipment, Mobility Support

12TR-00-H2OT Trailer, Water/Source 19AF-02-BACC Bedding and Accessories, Service Animal

12TR-00-MOVR Mover, Prime, for Equipment/Water Trailers 19AF-02-RELF Relieving Stations, Service Animal

12TR-00-TEQP Trailer, Equipment 19FD-01-IRAT Rations, Initial Deployment

12VE-00-ABUS Vehicle, Mass Casualty Transport 19FD-01-URAT Rations, Unit-Feeding

12VE-00-CMDV Vehicle, Command, Mobile 19FD-01-WATR Water, Potable, Packaged

12VE-00-MISS Vehicle, Specialized Mission 19GN-00-BGPK Bags / Packs

12VE-00-SPEC Vehicle, Specialized Emergency Management 19GN-00-COMP Compressors and Systems, Breathing Air

13IT-00-INTL Systems, Intelligence Sharing 19GN-00-FANE Fan, Intrinsically Safe, Exhaust

14CI-00-COOP System, Information Technology Contingency Operations 19GN-00-FANV Fan, Cooling/Heating/Ventilation

14EX-00-BCAN Receptacles, Trash, Blast-Resistant 19GN-00-FUEL Container, Fuel Storage

14EX-00-BSIR Systems, Building, Blast/Shock/Impact Resistant 19GN-00-H2OD System, Water Distribution

14SW-01-DOOR Doors and Gates, Impact Resistant 19GN-00-HSSF Housing, Subsistence and Sanitation

14SW-01-EXTM System, Fire Extinguisher Monitoring 19GN-00-OPCK Overpack

14SW-01-LITE Lighting, Area, Fixed 19GN-00-RFGR Refrigerator/Freezer

14SW-01-PACS System, Physical Access Control 19MH-00-BULK Equipment, Bulk Material Handling

14SW-01-SIDP Systems, Personnel Identification 19MH-00-CART Cart, Field

14SW-01-SIDV Systems, Vehicle Identification 19MH-00-CHMS Containers, Hazardous Material Shipping

14SW-01-SNSR Sensors/Alarms, System and Infrastructure Monitoring, Standalone 19MH-00-CONT Containers, Storage

14SW-01-VIDA Systems, Video Assessment, Security 19MH-00-CPAC Carts, Portable Air Cylinder

14SW-01-WALL Barriers: Fences; Jersey Walls 19MH-00-CPGC Carts, Portable Compressed Gas Cylinder

14SW-02-RADR Systems, Radar 19SS-00-SHEL Systems, Shelter, Rapid Deployment

14SW-02-SONR Systems, Sonar 19SS-00-SHEN System, Environmental Control

14SW-02-VBAR Barriers, Vessel 19SS-00-SHEP System, Collective Protective

16AC-01-ACRS Equipment and Supplies, Small Animal Capture and Restraint 20CS-01-AFIS Equipment, Fingerprint Processing and Identification

16AD-03-RFID Radio Frequency Information Devices 20CS-02-EVID Systems and Equipment, Evidence Collection

16AD-03-TAGS Tags and markers 20CS-02-SUPP Equipment and Supplies, Crime Scene Processing

17WC-00-BOAT Watercraft, CBRNE Prevention and Response 20CS-02-UVLT Equipment, Alternate Light Source Detection

18AC-00-ACFT Aircraft, CBRNE 20TE-00-NTRY Equipment, Tactical Entry

18AC-00-ACMC Equipment/Kits, Aircraft Mass Casualty Conversion 21GN-00-CCEQ Equipment, Citizen Corps

18AC-00-ACUP Equipment and Upgrades, Aircraft, CBRNE 21GN-00-CNST Consulting Services in Support of Equipment Acquisition

19AF-01-CHLD Equipment and Supplies, Infants and Children 21GN-00-INST Installation

19AF-01-COMM Equipment, Communications and Sensory Support 21GN-00-LEAS Leasing of Space for Equipment Storage

21GN-00-SHIP Shipping 21GN-00-MAIH Maintenance, HDER

21GN-00-TRNG Training 21GN-00-MAIN Maintenance

21GN-00-XMLP Programming for XML Compliance 21GN-00-OCEQ Equipment & Supplies, Information/Emergency Operations/Fusion Centers





  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 23 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
PROGRAM/PROJECT MODIFICATION REQUEST FORM 

  





EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  _________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Request Date: ________     Type of Modification: _____________    

Budget Expense Category: ______________     Scope of Services: ________________ 

Instructions - Please respond to the questions below.  Incomplete forms will not be considered.  Note: The term of the agreement 
can only be modified by DHSEM and approved by the State of Illinois (IEMA). 

1. Is the modification requested within the original approved category?  Please explain.

2. Will the modification request allow for the project to be completed within the original performance period of the project?

3. Have the original project objectives for the project been accomplished?

4. Please list all Authorized Equipment List (AEL) numbers, a brief description of the equipment, per unit cost estimate, and 
number of units (if applicable). For training costs, list the FEMA approved training course numbers that apply to this
modification (if applicable).

5. Provide a justification for the project modification.  What is the modification your organization would like to make and 
why is the project modification being requested?  Please include details.

Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below (if applicable). 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________________  Signature: _______________________________________ 

Job Title: ________________________________________    Date: __________________________________ 



EXHIBIT E 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Program/Project Modification Request Form 

Page 2 of 2 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

Grant Coordinator  Director of Finance 

Name: ___________________________________         Name: _______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: ____________________________ 

□ Approved □ Denied □ Approved □ Denied

COMMENTS: 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 24 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT F 
SUBRECIPIENT SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION FORM 

  



  EXHIBIT F 
 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
Sub-Recipient Signature Authorization Form 

Name of Entity: _________________________________________________________ 
 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 
Contract # _________________________      FY: _______       Fund: _____________            Project:  _____________

 
Urban Areas Security Initiative Program (UASI)    _______________       _______________        _____________________ 
Grant Program and Year                  Grant Start Date          Grant End Date              CFDA# 

                                                              THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY SUB-RECIPIENT 
 
 

Sub-Recipient Contact Name (Point of Contact) 
 
 

 Agency FEIN# 
 

 
 

Address                                                                  DUNS #  

City, State, Zip Code  Sub-Recipient  Contact  Phone#       

Sub-Recipient Contact Email  Sub-Recipient Contact Fax #  

 

THIS DOCUMENT IS PART OF THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN DHSEM AND THE SUB-RECIPIENT IDENTIFIED ABOVE. 
 

The person whose signature is furnished below is hereby authorized to sign reimbursement request forms and other 
related documents for the UASI Grant program indicated above and funded by DHSEM via a grant award.  Upon 
acceptance of this grant award, the following information is needed to complete your grant sub-agreement and should 
be emailed to DHSEM as soon as possible to DHSEM.Finance@cookcountyil.gov. 

 
Signatory Name (Print): ________________________________________________________ 
            
Signatory Titles (Print): ________________________________________________________ 
           
Signatory Signature: ___________________________________________________________         
 
Describe any limitations on the above person's authority here: 
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
DATE OF THIS APPROVAL: ______________________________________________________         
   
This form is to be completed as part of executing a Sub-Recipient agreement identified by the above fund and contract number.  Completing this form is 
one of the conditions necessary to receive funds from Cook County DHSEM. A copy of this form must be on file for all persons with authorization and 
approved by an individual of higher authority than the person being granted authority.



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 25 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT G 
REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST FORM 

 
 

 
  



EXHIBIT G

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Reimbursement Request Form 

Sub-Recipient Organization:  ________________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Project Name: _________________________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Submittal Date: ______________ Submittal # _________ 

Instructions - Please use the space below to provide the amount and a description of the expense you are seeking reimbursement for in the appropriate approved expenditure category shown below. This 
form must be submitted with the supporting invoices(s) documenting the expense(s) incurred and proof that the expense(s) has been paid by you before the expense is considered for review and approval 
for reimbursement. 

Expenditure Category Total Award Amount AEL# 

Reimbursement Amount 
Requested 

Balance of Award 
Available Notes 

Operating Expense 

     Training $ $ $ 

Consumable Expenses $ $ $ 

Personal Protection 
Equipment (PPE) 

$ $ $ 

Exercise $ $ $ 

Equipment Less Than 
$5,000 per 1 Item 

$ $ $ 

Supplies $ $ $ 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

Capital Expense (Asset Greater Than $5,000 per 1 Item) 

Computer Equipment $ $ $ 

Infrastructure Upgrades $ $ $ 

Security Upgrades 

Other (please specify) $ $ $ 

Sub-Total $ $ $ 

TOTAL $ $ $ 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory: DHSEM Reviewer: 

Name (print): _____________________________  Name (print): ______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________  Signature: _________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Job Title: __________________________________ 

Date: ____________________________________  Date: _____________________________________



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 26 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT H 
SAMPLE OF PROOF OF PAYMENT & ORIGINAL INVOICE 

 
 
 

  



Exhibit H – Proof of Payment 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. If equipment or services are purchased with a check, include the invoice (proof of expense) and 
obtain a front and back copy of the canceled check image that corresponds with the check 
number used for payment. 

2. Check must be written out to Vendor. 
3. Amount requested should match amount paid to vendor. 
4. Invoice number should be on the check and/or Purchase Order number. 
5. If equipment or services are purchased with a credit card, then print a copy of the bank or credit 

card statement that shows your proof of payment, include the credit card receipt.  
6. Retain proof of all correspondence with the grantor (DHSEM) concerning your payment(s). 

Authorized Signature(s) Invoice # and PO # if applicable 

Name of Vendor Same as Invoice 

Must be prior to end 
of Grant Date 

Organization Name 

 

Same as Invoice 



Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 
Vendor Information Below: 

INVOICE 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Fax Enter fax 
Email | Website 

INVOICE # 1959 
 DATE July 31, 2019 

TO: 
Sub-Recipient Name 
Organization Name 
Street Address 
City, ST ZIP Code 
Phone Enter phone | Email 

FOR Project or service description 
P.O. # If Needed 

Description Number of 
Items 

Cost per Item Total per Item 

Description and serial number for each item. 3 $100 $300 

Enter description 2   Enter amount 

Enter description 3   Enter amount 

Enter description 4   Enter amount 

This is a sample Invoice from your Vendor. 
Please have the following information on each invoice: 

Name of Vendor, Address and Remit to Address 
Organization’s Name and Address where items were delivered 

Invoice Number, Invoice Date 
Name of Project (if possible) and PO number used (if applicable) 

Description of Item(s) purchased include serial numbers on invoice (if possible) 
Number of Items purchased and cost of each individual item with total of all (see above example) 

Grand Total for the Invoice should match the amount reimbursed 
Please Note:  There should be NO Sales Taxes Paid 

 
 
 
Total  Enter total amount 

Make all checks payable to Name of Vendor 
Remit To:  Address of Vendor 

Payment is due within 30 days. 
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Name | Phone | Email 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! 

     

Exhibit H – Sample Vendor Invoice 





  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 27 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT I 
EQUIPMENT INVENTORY FORM 

  



EXHIBIT I 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Sub-Recipient Equipment Inventory Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________ DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________ UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

Instructions - Please complete and submit this form for any capital equipment purchases approved in the grant 
agreement.  Capital equipment is defined as those items whose fair market value is $5,000 or greater and whose useful 
life is more than one year. This form must be submitted with the Reimbursement Request Form when reimbursement is 
being sought. 

Purchase Amount: $_____________________ Purchase Date: _____________________ 

Manufacturer: ________________________ Model #: __________________________ 

Serial #: _____________________________ AEL #: ____________________________ 

Estimated Useful Life: __________________ DHSEM Tag # (if applicable): ________________________ 

Item Description: 

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________  

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 

Name (print): ______________________________    Signature: ________________________________________ 

Job Title: _________________________________  Date: ____________________________ 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM 

DHSEM Master Asset List 

DHSEM Data Entered By: _____________________________    Date Entered: ____________________________ 

DHSEM Physical Inspections 

DHSEM Inspector Inspection Date 

_____________________________________________________________   ________________________



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 28 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT J 
DISCLOSURE OF PENDING APPLICATIONS FORM 

  



  EXHIBIT J 
 

Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
UASI Subrecipient Disclosure of Pending Application Form 

Grantee Organization:  ___________________________________  DHSEM Contract #: __________________ 

Program Category: ______________________________  UASI Grant Award Year: 20____ 

The Cook County Department of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DHSEM), as administrator of Federal 
grants, is responsible for ensuring compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations in the performance of grant 
work with regard to DHSEM Grantees. 
 
Grantees are to disclose whether they have pending or awarded applications for federally funded assistance that include 
requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under this grant and will cover the identical cost items 
outlined in their application to DHSEM.  The disclosure should include both direct applications for federal funding (e.g., 
applications to federal agencies) and indirect applications for such funding (e.g., applications to state agencies that will be 
sub-awarding federal funds). This information is needed to help avoid any inappropriate duplication of funding. Leveraging 
multiple funding sources in a complementary manner to implement comprehensive programs or projects is encouraged 
and is not seen as inappropriate duplication. 
 
If ________________________________________ does not have any current or pending applications that was submitted 
within the last 12 months for federally funded assistance (through federal, state, or local agencies that will be sub-awarding 
Federal funds) that include requests for funding to support the same project (as mentioned in your Edward Byrne Justice 
Assistance Grant [JAG] Program grant application), and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application then, 
please certify the following statement is true, check the box and fill in your organization's name. 
 
“________________________________________ does not have pending applications submitted within the last 12 months 
for federally funded assistance, which includes requests for funding to support the same project being proposed under the 
UASI Grant Program, and will cover the identical cost items outlined in the application."  □ TRUE  
 
If ________________________________________ does have a current or pending application as described above, please 
check the most appropriate box below and provide the following information in a separate document using the example 
outlined below with all pending or awarded applications submitted within the last 12 months. □ YES □ NO 
 
Grantees that have pending or awarded applications must show: 

1. The Federal or State funding agency. 

2. The solicitation name/project name. 
3. The point of contact information at the applicable funding agency. 

 
EXAMPLE 

Federal or State Funding 
Agency 

Project Name Point of Contact at 
Funding Agency 

Application Date 

    
 

Sub-Recipient Authorized Signatory 
 

Name (Print): __________________________________     Signature: _________________________________________  

 

Job Title: _______________________________________   Date: _____________________         
 



  

 
 

 
Burr Ridge-20236054a-
17UASICOOK - 2019 
Subrecipient Agreement 

17UASICOOK GRANT AGREEMENT 
FEDERAL AWARD # EMS-2017-SS-00051-S01, CFDA # 97.067 

 

Page 29 of 29 

 
 

EXHIBIT K 
FINAL CLOSE-OUT FINANCIAL REPORT  

 



Date

Line
Subrecipient 

Contract 
Number

Category Description of Product/Services
FTE (# if subject 

to Personnel 
Cap)

Subject to 
Personnel Cap

 ($ Amount)
EHP (YorN)

Line Item Cost 
Attributable to 
Organization 

(UASI)

Proposed Change 
to UASI Budget 

 (+/-)

New Budget After 
Proposed Change 

(UASI)

LETPA (UASI)
 ($ Amount)

1 Equipment 0 -$  N -$  -$  -$  -$  

2 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

3 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

4 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

5 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

6 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

7 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

8 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

9 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

10 -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

-$          -$          -$            -$            

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/government/grant/bulletins/info358.pdf

2017 Homeland Security Grant Program - Urban Area Security Initiative
Attachment A:  Budget Detail Worksheet

 TOTAL PROJECT REQUEST 

__x_ New (1st submission)
___  Updated/corrected
___  FINAL

Subrecipient Name

Project Subtotal

Category Legend Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Information

NOTE:  Once the New Budget Total has 
been approved, you will use that total 
as your total cost column numbers.

Planning https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html   Click on FY 2017 HSGP NOFO_6 1 17 900 FINAL.pdf
Organization
Equipment (Provide AEL #) Law Enforcement Terrorism Prevention Activity (LETPA) Definition
Training See Page 62 of the NOFO
Exercises
M&A Personnel Cap Definition

EXHIBIT K - SAMPLE PAGE OF FINAL CLOSEOUT REPORT
FULL REPORT WILL BE EMAILED TO SUBRECIPIENT

https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf
https://www,grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html%20%20%20Click%20on%20FY%202017%20HSGP%20NOFO_6%201%2017%20900%20FINAL.pdf


DuPage Senior Citizens Council

April 20, 2020

Mayor Gary G rasso

Village of Burr Ridge

7660 County Line Road

Burr Ridge, lL 60527

Dear Mayor G rasso,

We are called to serve those living in our communities and to help meet their physical and relational
needs. When people need help or find it difficult to meet their own needs, it is our responsibility to do
what we can to help them. Now that we find ourselves in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic, it
becomes more important than ever.

There is simply not enough funding to care for every senior who needs our help now in Burr Ridge.

Quite frankly, knowing that there are seniors who fall through the cracks is unacceptable to those of us
who care about our residents.

This ls Where Our Partnership Can Help

For over 40 years, DSCC has been serving the needs of seniors in DuPage County with home delivered
meals, well-being checks, minor home repairs and other needed services. Our dedicated staff and
volunteers meet the needs of seniors in Burr Ridge day in and day out.

Our lnvestment ln Burr Ridge

ln Burr Ridge, last year alone, DSCC invested over 511,0fi) in serving seniors in need. But that
investment is greater than the amount of funds that are available for Burr Ridge, which mea ns we have
a shortfall. This shortfall is Iikely to increase and could impact the needed services that we provide.

We Have A Plan

The strategic plan for DSCC includes a continued investment in Burr Ridge so that the growing needs of
the senior population can be met.

Here is how you can help DSCC and seniors in Burr Ridge

As you continue to partner with DSCC, you continue to take an active role in your commitment to your
senior residents. Knowing that DSCC has been consistently supporting Burr Ridge through the years
should assure you that your financial support will be multiplied many times over.

Being a consistent partner with DSCC, you can be assured that seniors who are in need will have access
to our programs and services that will help them live independently in Burr Ridge. Without proper
funding, the services that seniors depend on may be reduced or eliminated. Agency on

ACINC

W,^lry ),ur,l* an"l, )rtaw. . .

O Continue with your support and investment in DSCC.

O Learn more about how DSCC cares for seniors in Burr Ridge.
O Get involved with DSCC as a partner, volunteer and as an advocate.

l99O Springer Drive, Lombard, lL 60'148 Off ice 630-620-0804 - Fax 630-620-'158
Web: wwwDu PageSeniorcouncil.org - Email: info@DuPageseniorCouncil.org

8C



For more informatlon on DSCC and how we have been serving senior residents in Burr Ridge, please see
the next few pages.

Thank you,

Ma
Exec irector

J. Douglas Pollock, Village Administrator
Jerry Sapp, Fina nce Director

encl: Attochment A - Past Support & Request Jor Funding
Attochment B - Report of Services for the Villoge ol Burr Ridge

cc



Attochment B - Report ol Services for the Villoge of Burr Ridge - Page 1

Report of Services for the Village of Burr Ridge
FY2o1e (LO I L I LB-Oe I 30 I Lel

About Those We Serve

Every community has a vulnerable senior population that need us. These elderly persons have earned
respect and deserve to live with dignity; however, many of them have become frail or otherwise lack the
resources to provide for their own needs and rely on others for help.

ln fact, most of our clients are homebound seniors who live alone, and nearly 99% of them are at or
below the poverty level. DSCC is a safety net for many individuals who might not otherwise eat a meal
during the course of the day, have someone to help with a task or simply have someone to check in on
them.

Who Helps Us Help The Seniors

DSCC historically receives approximately half our funding from federal and state grants, but this
proportion continues to drop substantially. The State of lllinois continues to face a fiscal crisis which
jeopardizes state funding for community-based services, like those we provide. That is why support
from the municipalities we serve is needed now more than ever so that we can maintain service levels
for seniors and avoid cutting critical life-saving components.

How We Help Seniors

DSCC is a non-profit agency committed to seniors and operates several programs, including the "Meals
on Wheels" program in DuPage County. Since starting in 1975, our mission has been to promote the
ability of elderly persons to live in dignity with as much independence as possible.

We live our mission and serve the senior community in many ways. Below are a few of the services that
seniors in Burr Ridge depend on the most:

Home Delive red Meals and Communitv Dinins
We've delivered 7.0W) medls to 20 unduplicoted seniors in Burr Ridge lost year

Home Delivered Meals ("Meals on Wheels") are packed and delivered each weekday (Monday-
Friday) to frail homebound seniors in Burr Ridge by DSCC staff and volunteers who have been
trained in safe food handling. We also have severalCommunity Dlning Sites located throughout
DuPage County that provide an opportunity for seniors to socialize, participate in activities, and
receive valuable health and wellness information. Allmeals served are low salt, fresh, hot and
are ready to eat. Special dietary meals are available such as diabetic. Vegetarian meals are
available upon request. Each meal is equivalent to 1/3 of the Dietary Reference lntake for
ad ults 60 and over.



Attochment B - Report of Services for the Villdge of Burr Ridge - Poqe 2

Hea lth and Wellness Education
We've educoted approximately 25 senior residents eoch month in Burr Ridge last yedr.

Keeping seniors informed about issues and topics that are important to them is important. DSCC

offers a variety of educational information directly to seniors through monthly presentations at
our Community Dining Sites, and special visits from our volunteers and staff to our homebound
seniors. As seniors become aware of preventive measures and helpful topics, they can help
improve their health and wellness and avoid the loss of their independence.

Well Beine Checks and Emergency Follow-Ups
We've performed over 70O Well Beino Checks ond Emeraencv Follow-uo for seniors in Burr
Ridge lost yeor.

When we find a senior is not at home when they should be, our Emergency Follow-Up
procedure allows crucialcollaboration between the Burr Ridge police and fire departments to
make sure every senior is safe and accounted for.

These Well Being checks and Emergency Follow-Up procedures provide a realcost-savings to
Burr Ridge when compared to the cost of EMT services.

Friend lv Visits & Assistance
We've performed over 2 Friendlv Visits for seniorc living in Burr Ridge lost yeor.

For help with smaller household tasks, companionship and socialization, DSCC offers our
Friendly Visit & Assistance service. Many seniors just need a little help from time to time with
taking out the garbage, moving furniture and heavy items or getting Christmas decorations
downfromashelf. At other times, they may just need someone to talk to. Ou r volunteers take
the time to interact and engage with seniors who could benefit from a friendly visit. [g
enco urage Burr Ridse to refer ootential individuals to us for this service.

Home Maintena nce Proqram
We've performed over 7 Minor Home Repoirs & Ydtd Cleon lJp Services to seniors living in Burr
Ridge ldst year.

Living alone as a senior has its challenges and everyday tasks can be impossible or dangerous for
seniors. DSCC'S Home Maintenance program provides low-cost minor home repairs to assist
older persons with basic home responsibilities associated with daily living.

Every senior who receives service from us also receives a Well Being Check, which allows DSCC

to observe any changes in a senior's physicalor mental health or physicalsurroundings. This
extra step has resulted in several documented cases where staff and volunteers have saved lives
by finding a fallen or injured senior or uncovered a dangerous household situation.



Attochment B - Report of Services for the Villoge ol Burr Ridge - Page 3

Some examples of common home maintenance include repairing or replacing leaky faucets or
toilets and installing smoke and carbon monoxide detectors, light fixtures, locks or deadbolts.
Additionalservices which enhance seniors'safety and security include installing bath benches,

grab bars, and non-slip strips, as well as repairing and reinforcing walkway steps and stair
railings.

ln cases where homes require larger repair services, DSCC also offers estimates and provides

contractor referrals to seniors. These services help seniors stay in their homes longer.

Yard Clean Ups
Some seniors who live alone in their homes find it hard to keep their yards clean and safe. That's
why we offer Yard Clean Ups. For three weekends d uring the spring a nd fall, groups of DSCC

volunteers help seniors with various outside chores such as raking leaves, gardening, trimming
shrubs, and other yard tasks.



6/8/2020

6/9/2020

FUND FUND NAME PAYABLE TOTAL

AMOUNT

10 General Fund 86,861.46$        86,861.46$         

23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 16,546.35          16,546.35           

41 Debt Service Fund 59,700.00          59,700.00           

51 Water Fund 6,837.06 6,837.06

52 Sewer Fund 817.50 817.50

61 Information Technology 18,661.83 18,661.83
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 189,424.20$      189,424.20$       

TOTAL

PAYROLL

Administration 35,764.96

Finance 7,873.50             

Police 116,194.74         

Public Works 20,961.41           

Water 22,329.87           

Sewer 7,634.40             
TOTAL 210,758.88$       

GRAND TOTAL 400,183.08$       

PAYROLL

PAY PERIOD ENDING May 30, 2020

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE APPROVAL REPORT

          BOARD DATE:  

PAYMENT DATE:

FISCAL 20-21

8D



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 1/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

1,096.91 05/28/2005/28/20Barbara PoppHealth Insurance Reimbursement 10-0000-22-2220

1,096.91 Total For Dept 0000 Assets, Liabilities, Fund Bal

Dept 0300 Revenues
500.00 05/28/2005/28/20Environmental Recycling & DisposalRefund Overpayment of Scavenger License 10-0300-31-3120

500.00 Total For Dept 0300 Revenues

Dept 1010 Boards & Commissions
27.72 05/29/2005/29/20Chicago TribuneChicago Tribune 4 Weeks10-1010-40-4040

119.85 05/21/2005/21/20Gary Grasso11/03/19 & 01/21/20 Lunch Board Business10-1010-40-4042
50.00 06/01/2006/01/20Gary GrassoCell Phone Grasso, G10-1010-50-5030

120.67 05/21/2005/21/20Julie TejkowskiRetirement Party Supplies/Sympathy Cards10-1010-80-8010
24.50 05/04/2005/04/20Spring Forest DeliLunch for E. Walter10-1010-80-8010

342.74 Total For Dept 1010 Boards & Commissions

Dept 2010 Administration
169.00 05/01/2005/01/20Crains Chicago BusinessAnnual Subscription10-2010-40-4040
32.20 05/28/2005/28/20Evan B. WalterReimburse Mileage Walter, E10-2010-40-4042

303.75 20050105/08/20Urban Forest Management Inc.Permit 9250 Forest Edge Drive10-2010-50-5020
40.06 70224777305/27/20FedExBudget Filing FY 20-2110-2010-50-5025

234.35 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - Admin10-2010-50-5030
225.00 5371805/12/20B&F Construction Code Services IncPlan Review Permit 20-04510-2010-50-5075

1,920.00 05/31/2005/31/20Don Morris Architects P.C.Building Examinations May2010-2010-50-5075
1,670.00 05/31/2005/31/20Don Morris Architects P.C.Inspections May2010-2010-50-5075
4,248.84 299805/04/20JoJo Couture LLC5000 Masks/50 Face Shields Covid-1910-2010-60-6010
1,648.00 302705/06/20JoJo Couture LLCDisposable Masks Covid-1910-2010-60-6010

59.89 05/18/2005/18/20Walgreen'sMasks Covid-1910-2010-60-6010

10,551.09 Total For Dept 2010 Administration

Dept 4010 Finance
242.00 04/20/2004/20/20IGFOAIGFOA Annual Membership10-4010-40-4040
35.00 62002505/06/20IGFOACovid-19 Forecasting Seminar10-4010-40-4042
35.00 296403005/07/20IGFOAForecasting Training10-4010-40-4042

257.97 287298234225 May2005/22/20AT&T MobilityWireless Hot Spot Covid-1910-4010-50-5030
46.87 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - Finance10-4010-50-5030

625.00 BK0123046805/29/20BKD, LLPSuccessor Auditor Documentation to L&A10-4010-50-5060
60.99 1113239666094022604/29/20Amazon.com CreditReplacement Calculator10-4010-60-6000
23.92 1118341617693221604/29/20Amazon.com CreditOffice Supplies FIN10-4010-60-6000

1,326.75 Total For Dept 4010 Finance

Dept 4020 Central Services
39.95 11420637888606628 05/06/20Amazon.com CreditPump Center Office Supplies Covid-1910-4020-60-6010
56.86 1125143435128984604/14/20Amazon.com CreditKitchen Supplies PD10-4020-60-6010

109.45 15811605/21/20Commercial Coffee Service, Inc.Kitchen Coffee Supplies VH10-4020-60-6010

206.26 Total For Dept 4020 Central Services

Dept 5010 Police
100.00 05/11/2005/11/20Ill. Police Accreditation Coalition2020-21 Membership Dues10-5010-40-4040
987.34 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - Police10-5010-50-5030

8.99 1111877311079063305/08/20Amazon.com CreditMaintenance Vehicles  PD10-5010-50-5051
13.98 1116859273915306905/11/20Amazon.com CreditMaintenance-Vehicles PD10-5010-50-5051
20.97 1113839263329301505/15/20Amazon.com CreditMaintenance-Vehicles PD10-5010-50-5051
17.98 1112640511995865105/15/20Amazon.com CreditMaintenance-Vehicles PD10-5010-50-5051



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 2/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 5010 Police

316.58 13665305/06/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceMaintenance-Vehicles10-5010-50-5051
51.95 13666205/08/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceSquad 1703 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
51.95 13668905/12/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceSquad 1612 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
66.43 13670905/15/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceSquad 1705 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
53.00 13672105/18/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceSquad 1711 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
33.00 13672605/18/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceMaintenance Tire Repair10-5010-50-5051
24.95 13672805/19/20B & E Auto Repair ServiceSquad 1809 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051

590.32 6324683/205/19/20Willowbrook FordSquad 1817 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
272.18 6324729/105/20/20Willowbrook FordSquad 1703 Maintenance10-5010-50-5051
59.62 1112908082374500805/07/20Amazon.com CreditThermometer Covid-1910-5010-60-6010
48.98 1124771461181542904/14/20Amazon.com CreditMedia Discs10-5010-60-6010
82.75 1116060153364826305/11/20Amazon.com CreditMotorola Antenna10-5010-60-6010

(29.52)1123099003316664204/28/20Amazon.com CreditOperating Supplies10-5010-60-6010
7.49 1110755875631785505/08/20Amazon.com CreditOperating Supplies PD10-5010-60-6010

437.00 13440705/04/20Kiesler's Police Supply, Inc.Metal Jacket10-5010-60-6010
404.75 6554439205/23/20Wex BankGasoline & Oil10-5010-60-6020

3,620.69 Total For Dept 5010 Police

Dept 6010 Public Works
72.14 39067905/19/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning10-6010-40-4032
40.00 05/13/2005/13/20Illinois TollwayReplenish I Pass10-6010-40-4042

424.51 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - PW10-6010-50-5030
1,337.40 743003673905/21/20Tredroc Tire Services LLCMaintenance-Equipment10-6010-50-5050

86.39 193681348105/06/20Auto ZoneMaintenance-Vehicles10-6010-50-5051
1,185.00 20-9705/27/20Car ReflectionsInstall Letters & Logos10-6010-50-5051
2,841.70 180505/11/20Power Equipment Leasing Co.Unit 26; Aerial boom equip. service 10-6010-50-5051

927.10 185805/13/20Power Equipment Leasing Co.Unit 26; Aerial Equipment Repairs10-6010-50-5051
3,839.74 3407605/19/20Sandi Auto Truck RepairUnit 16:brakes, steering, wheel bearings10-6010-50-5051
4,456.00 PS32197205/14/20Lakeshore Recycling Systems LLCStreet Sweeping Cycle10-6010-50-5053

175.00 69245305/30/20Meade Electric Company, Inc.Maintenance - Traffic Signals10-6010-50-5055
1,435.50 1745110000105/15/20Constellation NewEnergy, IncVillage Street Lighting10-6010-50-5065
1,461.67 72964612 May2005/29/20Constellation NewEnergy, IncComEd Street Lighting10-6010-50-5065

4.50 39067905/19/20Breens Inc.Shop Towel Rentals10-6010-50-5085
8,000.00 BR105/13/20DuPage County Stormwater ManagementRentals Vactor Services10-6010-50-5085

11,350.00 00101037405/18/20Clarke Environmental Mosquito MgmtMosquito Abatement Services May10-6010-50-5095
11,350.00 00101038305/19/20Clarke Environmental Mosquito MgmtMosquito Abatement Services June10-6010-50-5095

82.86 05/15/2005/15/20Mr. & Mrs. Samuel RapinchukReimburse for Mailbox damage10-6010-50-5095
89.97 1118735256201061805/13/20Amazon.com CreditTrash & Garbage Pickers10-6010-60-6010
93.15 5034505/21/20Menards - HodgkinsOperating Supplies PW10-6010-60-6010
28.84 4957905/11/20Menards - HodgkinsOperating Supplies Covid-1910-6010-60-6010
24.24 4936405/08/20Menards - HodgkinsOperating Supplies Covid-1910-6010-60-6010

494.67 11053005/29/20Ozinga Materials, Inc.Crushed Stone10-6010-60-6010
51.52 5110079605/06/20FleetPride, Inc.Supplies-Vehicles10-6010-60-6041

929.10 10396905/12/20Traffic Control & Protection, IncWarning Signs; WATER ON ROAD10-6010-60-6042
19.99 1111773962730425505/06/20Amazon.com CreditSmall Tools PW10-6010-60-6050

190.00 8722604/30/20Trafic Services, Inc.Small Tools10-6010-60-6050

50,990.99 Total For Dept 6010 Public Works

Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds
294.78 156405103505/10/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.Quarterly monitoring - PD10-6020-50-5052
278.50 52782205/13/20Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.PW Security Alarm Service10-6020-50-5052
106.00 9404707005/22/20Cintas Fire ProtectionMaintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052

8.86 9404711005/22/20Cintas Fire ProtectionMaintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 3/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

Fund 10 General Fund
Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds

423.73 0F9404708605/22/20Cintas Fire ProtectionPW Fire Extinguishers; Inspect & Service10-6020-50-5052
1,768.00 19006205/27/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyHVAC maintenance - Village Hall10-6020-50-5052

848.40 19006205/27/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyHVAC maintenance - Police Station10-6020-50-5052
459.16 19006205/27/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyHVAC maintenance - Public Works10-6020-50-5052
175.00 68280605/27/20Goldy Locks, Inc.Maintenance-Buildings10-6020-50-5052

1,124.52 2254805/19/20Rag's Electric, Inc.Emergency/ Exit Lights Installed at VH10-6020-50-5052
36.29 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCTurf Weed Control and Fertilizer10-6020-50-5057

124.46 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCUtility and Park Sites10-6020-50-5057
238.76 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCAdded Areas10-6020-50-5057
20.50 39067505/19/20Breens Inc.Mat rentals - PW10-6020-50-5058

980.50 872805/19/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Covid-19 Disinfecting extra services. 10-6020-50-5058
673.74 872705/28/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Janitorial Services - PD10-6020-50-5058
855.36 872705/28/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Janitorial Services - VH10-6020-50-5058
401.28 872705/28/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.Janitorial Services - PW10-6020-50-5058
19.25 008917000May2005/26/20Flagg Creek Water Reclamation DistPublic Works10-6020-50-5080

210.90 66468914693 May2005/19/20NICOR GasPolice Station10-6020-50-5080
37.91 5796140000905/18/20NICOR GasVillage Hall Garage10-6020-50-5080

332.21 47025700007 May2005/18/20NICOR GasVillage Hall10-6020-50-5080
54.47 81110732419 May2005/18/20NICOR GasRustic Acres10-6020-50-5080

243.99 1111561719520181005/14/20Amazon.com CreditBatteries for disinfector Covid-1910-6020-60-6010
31.98 1142612501687304505/06/20Amazon.com CreditDisinfectant Spray Bottles Covid-1910-6020-60-6010
60.41 5-00355005/15/20AUCA Western First Aid & SafetyFirst Aid Supplies PD10-6020-60-6010

145.76 5-00358605/21/20AUCA Western First Aid & SafetyFirst Aid Supplies PW10-6020-60-6010
129.00 5-00358705/21/20AUCA Western First Aid & SafetyEyewash Maintenance10-6020-60-6010
116.00 872905/19/20Eco-Clean Maintenance, Inc.4 cases of Bleach10-6020-60-6010

1,020.00 032127105/21/20Government Forms and Supplies, LLCCountertop Shields Covid-1910-6020-60-6010
109.74 032127105/21/20Government Forms and Supplies, LLCFreight10-6020-60-6010
75.00 9386005/21/20Industrial Electric Supply IncGloves Covid-1910-6020-60-6010

450.00 702305/28/20Industrial Electric Supply IncSanitizing & Disinfecting Wipes Covid-1910-6020-60-6010
18.99 4960605/11/20Menards - HodgkinsOperating Supplies10-6020-60-6010

5,086.40 8002073905/15/20Robotunits, Inc.Partitions Admin Covid-1910-6020-60-6010
9.77 04/28/2004/28/20Walgreen'sDisinfecting Wipes10-6020-60-6010

38.94 04/27/2004/27/20Walgreen'sLysol Wipes10-6020-60-6010
1,217.47 417905/15/20Rollins Aquatic SolutionsImprovements10-6020-70-7010

18,226.03 Total For Dept 6020 Buildings & Grounds

86,861.46 Total For Fund 10 General Fund

Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
Dept 7030 Special Revenue Hotel/Motel

4,019.36 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCMunicipal Campus23-7030-50-5069
4,148.33 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCMedians and Gateways23-7030-50-5069
1,003.81 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCCounty Line Rd at I5523-7030-50-5069

609.60 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCSpring and Fall Cleanup23-7030-50-5069
1,402.08 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCTurf Weed Control and Fertilizer23-7030-50-5069

753.85 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCUtility and Park Sites23-7030-50-5069
1,038.86 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCRoadside Mowing23-7030-50-5069
1,081.53 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCAdded Areas23-7030-50-5069

363.43 9641505/29/20Premier Landscape Contractors, Inc.Vet Memorial Spec. Landscape Maintenance23-7030-50-5069
1,102.50 5976105/13/20Ron Clesen's Ornamental Plants, IncBeg Fib Whopper Red/Brnz23-7030-50-5075

260.00 5976105/13/20Ron Clesen's Ornamental Plants, IncImp x Sunpatien Cmpct Hot Coral23-7030-50-5075
728.00 5976105/13/20Ron Clesen's Ornamental Plants, IncImp x Sunpatien Compct White23-7030-50-5075
35.00 5976105/13/20Ron Clesen's Ornamental Plants, IncDelivery23-7030-50-5075



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 4/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
Dept 7030 Special Revenue Hotel/Motel

16,546.35 Total For Dept 7030 Special Revenue Hotel/Motel

16,546.35 Total For Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Fund 41 Debt Service Fund
Dept 4030 Debt Service

59,700.00 159015104/27/20US BankInterest-Debt Crt Series 201741-4030-80-8117

59,700.00 Total For Dept 4030 Debt Service

59,700.00 Total For Fund 41 Debt Service Fund

Fund 51 Water Fund
Dept 6030 Water Operations

79.18 39067905/19/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning51-6030-40-4032
305.31 630325420904 Apr2004/22/20AT&TWell Pumping Line51-6030-50-5030
477.35 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell  Phone - Water51-6030-50-5030
179.28 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - Water Modems51-6030-50-5030
390.30 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCUtility and Park Sites51-6030-50-5052
36.29 1006506/01/20Desiderio Landscaping LLCTurf Weed Control and Fertilizer51-6030-50-5052

386.46 19006205/27/20Dynamic Heating & Piping CompanyHVAC maintenance - Pump Center51-6030-50-5052
615.41 0029127044 May2005/15/20COMEDWell #451-6030-50-5080
40.00 166801505/11/20Hinsdale Nurseries, Inc.Mulch51-6030-60-6010

3,855.00 M33455605/12/20Core & Main LPSensus 1.5-inch Omni C2 Water Meters 51-6030-70-7000
225.00 M33455605/12/20Core & Main LPSensus 1.5-inch LF Brass Flange Kits51-6030-70-7000
247.48 1188635203/19/20Hach CompanyEquipment51-6030-70-7000

6,837.06 Total For Dept 6030 Water Operations

6,837.06 Total For Fund 51 Water Fund

Fund 52 Sewer Fund
Dept 6040 Sewer Operations

24.63 39067905/19/20Breens Inc.Uniform rentals/cleaning52-6040-40-4032
29.88 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessCell Phone - Sewer Modems52-6040-50-5030

762.99 34970605/26/20RJN Group, Inc.2019 MWRD Program52-6040-70-7010

817.50 Total For Dept 6040 Sewer Operations

817.50 Total For Fund 52 Sewer Fund

Fund 61 Information Technology Fund
Dept 4040 Information Technology

64.98 04/26/2004/26/20Hulu, LLCStreaming Services61-4040-40-4040
280.00 05/26/2005/28/20Electric Brain Media, LLCBoard Meeting Video Editing61-4040-50-5020
375.00 557022005/28/20Orbis SolutionsIT Support Covid-1961-4040-50-5020

2,530.00 557021705/28/20Orbis SolutionsIT Support Remote/Webcam61-4040-50-5020
2,341.85 557019605/21/20Orbis SolutionsIT Support Remote/Onsite61-4040-50-5020

36.00 985305514704/21/20Verizon WirelessMobile Hot Spot61-4040-50-5030
28.63 1117581498209544905/13/20Amazon.com CreditReplace Phone61-4040-50-5050

641.91 1114884628543141005/18/20Amazon.com CreditReplacement Headsets61-4040-50-5050
21.25 27547095105/29/20Constant ContactCRM Monthly /Charge61-4040-50-5061

149.25 55878505/29/20ElementorWeb Page Design Tool61-4040-50-5061
199.00 55873905/29/20ElementorElementor Pro61-4040-50-5061

3,400.00 9382316504/29/20ESRI Inc.GIS Annual Support61-4040-50-5061
3,038.00 52501105/25/20Virtual Computing Systems, Inc.VMWare Servers & Systems Annual Support61-4040-50-5061



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 5/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

Fund 61 Information Technology Fund
Dept 4040 Information Technology

14.99 1858962405/01/20Zoom Video Communications, Inc.Video Conferencing61-4040-50-5061
322.22 1114063767848186805/03/20Amazon.com CreditScanner Replacement61-4040-60-6010
87.96 1118428138405062205/04/20Amazon.com CreditMonitor Stands61-4040-60-6010
91.99 1117203229167385205/04/20Amazon.com CreditMemory Upgrades61-4040-60-6010

206.88 1110621488515626105/05/20Amazon.com CreditPrinter - PW61-4040-60-6010
64.97 1125118860240264705/06/20Amazon.com CreditCisco Unified IP Phone61-4040-60-6010

178.99 1118879552973061005/04/20Amazon.com CreditOperating Supplies61-4040-60-6010
322.22 1139539979031703005/06/20Amazon.com CreditReplacement Scanner61-4040-60-6010
364.86 1112255668564504205/04/20Amazon.com CreditDesktop Replacement61-4040-60-6010
203.00 1118368800823622205/06/20Amazon.com CreditWebcam Monitor61-4040-60-6010
76.48 1121818290388504005/10/20Amazon.com CreditKeyboard/Mouse61-4040-60-6010
39.87 1114858501622501905/07/20Amazon.com CreditDVD Drive61-4040-60-6010
98.99 1114007402744746904/25/20Amazon.com CreditStanding Desk61-4040-60-6010

656.02 1118780557149141905/04/20Amazon.com CreditDesktop - PD61-4040-70-7000
739.76 1113803435831382805/05/20Amazon.com CreditDesktop61-4040-70-7000
739.76 1125026361203303105/06/20Amazon.com CreditDesktop61-4040-70-7000

1,347.00 1132450389247625405/13/20Amazon.com CreditPrinter Upgrades - Admin61-4040-70-7000

18,661.83 Total For Dept 4040 Information Technology

18,661.83 Total For Fund 61 Information Technology Fund



AmountInvoiceInvoice DateVendorInvoice Line DescGL Number

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE 6/6Page:06/04/2020 03:33 PM
User: asullivan
DB: BURR RIDGE

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 06/08/2020 - 06/08/2020
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

86,861.46 Fund 10 General Fund
16,546.35 Fund 23 Hotel/Motel Tax Fund
59,700.00 Fund 41 Debt Service Fund
6,837.06 Fund 51 Water Fund

817.50 Fund 52 Sewer Fund
18,661.83 Fund 61 Information Technology Fund

Fund Totals:

189,424.20 Total For All Funds: 


	Agenda
	Summary
	5A Board Meeting Minutes 05-26-2020
	5B  Plan Commission Minutes 06-012020
	6A Ordinance PUD 7000 County Line Rd
	6B Ordinance Sign Variation 7000 Couny Line
	6C Ordinance Auction PW Vehicles
	7A Resolution Subaward Village Hall Security Upgrades
	7B Resolution Subaward Water Dist. Security
	7C Resolution Subaward Water Transmission Inter-Connection
	8C Request for Donation DuPage Senior Citizens
	8D Vendor List

	Program Category: Urban Area Security Initiative
	UASI Grant Award Year 20: 19
	Text1: Village of Burr Ridge
	Text2: 769-2019-10663-20236054a 
	Text3: 19
	fill_16: 
	fill_18: 
	fill_19: 
	fill_20: 
	fill_22: 
	fill_24: 
	fill_25: 
	fill_27: 
	fill_29: 
	fill_31: 45,000
	fill_33: 
	fill_35: 
	Name print: 
	undefined: Village of Burr Ridge
	check the most appropriate box below and provide the following information in a separate document using the example: NO
	Job Title: Village Administrator
	Scope of Services 1: The Burr Ridge Village Hall Security Upgrades project aims to protect the key
	Scope of Services 2: staff of the Village of Burr Ridge from possible threats of gunfire and to permit a safe and 
	Scope of Services 3: expedient escape route. The doors and locks of the Village Hall building have not been 
	Scope of Services 4: changed since its original construction and therefore security of this facility and its personnel
	Scope of Services 5: is outdated. The project also aims to address some critical deficiencies noted in the 
	Scope of Services 6: building's infrastructure and design.
	Scope of Services 7: 
	fill_15: 
	Other please specify: 
	Other please specify_2: 
	SubRecipient DUNS Number: 
	DHSEM Staff Name Print: 
	SubRecipient Organization: Urban Area Security Initiative
	Type of Modification: 
	1: 
	1_2: 
	2: 
	2_2: 
	1_3: 
	2_3: 
	3: 
	1_4: 
	2_4: 
	modification if applicable 1: 
	modification if applicable 2: 
	modification if applicable 3: 
	why is the project modification being requested  Please include details 1: 
	why is the project modification being requested  Please include details 2: 
	why is the project modification being requested  Please include details 3: 
	Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below if applicable 1: 
	Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below if applicable 2: 
	Please indicate the proposed associated budget impacts below if applicable 3: 
	SubRecipient Authorized Signatory: 
	Name: 
	Name_2: 
	Approved: Off
	Denied: Off
	Approved_2: Off
	Denied_2: Off
	COMMENTS 1: 
	COMMENTS 2: 
	1_5: 
	2_5: 
	1_6: 
	2_6: 
	THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DHSEM: 
	FY: 
	Fund: 
	Project: 
	Grant Start Date: 
	Grant End Date: 
	CFDA: 
	Sub-Recipient POC: David Preissig
	Agency FEIN: 362517422
	Sub-Recipient Address: 7760 County Line Road
	Agency DUNS #: 178938007
	City State Zip Code: Burr Ridge, IL 60527
	Sub-Recipient Phone #: 630-323-4733 x 6000
	Sub-Recipient Email: dpreissig@burr-ridge.gov
	Sub-Recipient Contact Fax #: 630-323-4798
	be emailed to DHSEM as soon as possible to DHSEMFinancecookcountyilgov: Douglas Pollock
	Signatory Name Print: Village Administrator
	Describe any limitations on the above persons authority here 1: 
	Describe any limitations on the above persons authority here 2: 
	Describe any limitations on the above persons authority here 3: 
	Project Name: 
	Submittal Date: 
	Submittal: 
	fill_44: 
	fill_17: 
	fill_45: 
	fill_46: 
	fill_21: 
	fill_48: 
	fill_23: 
	fill_49: 
	fill_26: 
	fill_51: 
	fill_28: 
	fill_52: 
	fill_30: 
	fill_53: 
	fill_32: 
	fill_55: 
	fill_34: 
	fill_36: 
	fill_56: 
	fill_37: 
	fill_38: 
	fill_57: 
	fill_39: 
	fill_40: 
	fill_58: 
	fill_41: 
	Name print_2: 
	Job Title_2: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: 
	Text28: 
	Text29: 
	Text30: 
	Purchase Amount: 
	Purchase Date: 
	Manufacturer: 
	Model: 
	Serial: 
	AEL: 
	Estimated Useful Life: 
	DHSEM Tag  if applicable: 
	Item Description 1: 
	Item Description 2: 
	Item Description 3: 
	Job Title 1: 
	DHSEM Data Entered By: 
	DHSEM Inspector 1: 
	DHSEM Inspector 2: 
	undefined_2: 
	If: Village of Burr Ridge
	TRUE: On
	If_2: Village of Burr Ridge
	Federal or State Funding AgencyRow1: 
	Project NameRow1: 
	Point of Contact at Funding AgencyRow1: 
	Application DateRow1: 
	Name Print: Douglas Pollock


